
 

  

Date: September 05, 2023 

 

To, 

BSE Limited 

Department of Corporate Services, 

SP. J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 001 

(Scrip Code-508933) 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited  

Exchange Plaza, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra 

(E), Mumbai – 400 051 

(Symbol : AYMSYNTEX) 
 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 

 

Subject: Notice of 40th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and Annual Report for the financial year 

ended 2022-23 & E- Voting Information.  

 

In compliance with Regulation 30 and 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, please find attached herewith the Annual Report of the Company for the financial 

year 2022-23 along with the Notice of the 40th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”), dispatched to the 

members on September 05, 2023. The Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled to be 

held on Friday, September 29, 2023 at 12.00 noon (IST) through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other 

Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) without the physical presence of the Members. 

 

Further, pursuant to Regulation 44 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, read with Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is providing e-voting facility to its 

shareholders in respect of resolutions to be considered at the AGM. The Company has engaged the 

services of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) as the authorized agency to provide remote 

e-voting facility.  

 

The remote e-voting facility shall be kept open from Tuesday, 26th September 2023 (9:00 a.m.) to 

Thursday, 28th September, 2023 (5:00 p.m.) for shareholders to cast their votes electronically. The 

cut-off date for voting (including remote e-voting) shall be Friday, 22nd September 2023. Detailed 

instructions with respect to voting have been mentioned in the Notice convening the AGM.  

 

Pursuant to General Circular dated May 5, 2020, read with other relevant circulars issued subsequently 

from time to time, latest being circular dated December 28, 2022 issued by the Ministry of Corporate 



 

  

Affairs (“MCA”) (collectively referred to as 'MCA Circulars') and SEBI Circular no. SEBI/HO 

/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 read with other relevant circulars issued 

subsequently from time to time, latest being Circular dated January 5, 2023 (collectively referred to 

as “SEBI Circulars”) , it is permitted to hold the AGM through VC / OAVM, without the physical 

presence of the Members at a common venue. The Annual Report together with the Notice of the 

AGM is being dispatched only by electronic mode to those Shareholders whose email addresses are 

registered with the Company/ Depository Participants. 

 

The Annual Report and Notice of AGM is available on Company’s website at www.aymsyntex.com & 

on the website of Stock exchanges i.e on BSE Limited (“BSE”) and National Stock Exchange of India 

Limited (“NSE”) at www.bseindia.com and at www.nseindia.com respectively. The same is also 

available of the website of National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) at www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

Kindly take the above on record.  

 

For AYM SYNTEX Limited 

 

 

 

Ashitosh Sheth 

Company Secretary 

ACS 25997 

 

http://www.aymsyntex.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.nseindia.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/


NOTICE is hereby given that the 40th (For�eth) Annual General 
Mee�ng of AYM Syntex Limited will be held on Friday 29th 
September 2023 at 12 noon through Video Conferencing (VC) or 
Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) to transact the following 
businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt 

 a. the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the 
Company for the financial year ended March 31st, 
2023 together with the reports of the Board of 
Directors and the Auditors thereon; and

 b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of 
the Company for the financial year ended March 
31st, 2023 together with the reports of the Board of 
Directors and the Auditors thereon. 

2. To appoint a director in place of Mrs. Khushboo 
Mandawewala (DIN: 06942156), who re�res by rota�on, 
and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Ra�fica�on of remunera�on payable to the Cost Auditor

3. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as an Ordinary 
Resolu�on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 
148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules 2014 
and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
(including statutory modifica�ons or re-enactment 
thereof, for the �me being in force), payment of 
remunera�on of Rs. 1,30,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Thirty 
Thousand Only) to M/s. Kiran J Mehta & Co., the Cost 
Accountant (Registra�on Number: 000025) appointed by 
the Board of Directors of the Company, to conduct the 
audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial 
year ending 31st March 2024, be and is hereby ra�fied and 
approved.

Appointment of Mr. Kan�lal N. Patel (DIN: 00019414) as an 
Independent Director of the Company 

4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as a SPECIAL 
RESOLUTION: 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�ons 
149, 150 and 152 read with Schedule IV and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“Act”), and the rules framed thereunder, the SEBI (Lis�ng 
Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 
2015 (“SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons”) (including any statutory 
modifica�on(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the �me 
being in force), and the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the 
Company, and pursuant to the recommenda�on of the 
Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee and the Board 
of Directors (“Board”), Mr. Kan�lal N. Patel (DIN: 

00019414), who is appointed as an Addi�onal Director of 
the Company (in the capacity of Independent Director) by 
the Board with effect from July 29, 2023 in terms of Sec�on 
161 of the Act, and in respect of whom the Company has 
received a no�ce from a Member proposing his 
candidature for the office of Director under Sec�on 160 of 
the Act, and who has submi�ed a declara�on that he 
meets the criteria of independence as prescribed under 
the Act and the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons and being eligible 
for appointment as an Independent Director, be and is 
hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the 
Company to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecu�ve 
years with effect from July 29, 2023 to July 28, 2028 (both 
days inclusive), not liable to re�re by rota�on.

                By order of the Board

 Sd/
Place : Mumbai   Ashitosh Sheth
Date:  May 5, 2023 Company Secretary
                                                                  ACS:25997

NOTES:

1. An explanatory statement pursuant to Sec�on 102(1) of 
the Act and pursuant to the relevant Regula�ons of SEBI 
(Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015 (“Regula�ons”), which sets out details 
rela�ng to the ordinary/special business to be transacted 
at the mee�ng, is annexed hereto as an Annexure - I and 
forms part of the no�ce.

2. In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 
pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be followed and 
pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, 
Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 issued by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 
20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 
dated January 13, 2021 and all other relevant circulars 
issued from �me to �me, physical a�endance of the 
Members to the EGM/AGM venue is not required and 
general mee�ng be held through video conferencing (VC) 
or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members 
can a�end and par�cipate in the ensuing EGM/AGM 
through VC/OAVM.

3. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, 
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the facility to 
appoint proxy to a�end and cast vote for the members is 
not available for this EGM/AGM. However, the Body 
Corporates are en�tled to appoint authorised 
representa�ves to a�end the EGM/AGM through 
VC/OAVM and par�cipate there at and cast their votes 
through e-vo�ng.

4. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM 
mode 15 minutes before and a�er the scheduled �me of 
the commencement of the Mee�ng by following the 
procedure men�oned in the No�ce. The facility of 
par�cipa�on at the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be 
made available for 1000 members on first come first 

NOTICE



served basis. This will not include large Shareholders 
(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), 
Promoters, Ins�tu�onal Investors, Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit 
Commi�ee, Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee 
and Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee, Auditors etc. 
who are allowed to a�end the EGM/AGM without 
restric�on on account of first come first served basis.

5. The a�endance of the Members a�ending the EGM/AGM 
through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 
reckoning the quorum under Sec�on 103 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

6. Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 108 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014 (as 
amended) and Regula�on 44 of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons 2015 (as 
amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and 
May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote 
e-Vo�ng to its Members in respect of the business to be 
transacted at the EGM/AGM. For this purpose, the 
Company has entered into an agreement with Na�onal 
Securi�es Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilita�ng vo�ng 
through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The 
facility of cas�ng votes by a member using remote e-
Vo�ng system as well as venue vo�ng on the date of the 
EGM/AGM will be provided by NSDL.

7. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) 
Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the No�ce 
calling the EGM/AGM has been uploaded on the website 
of the Company at www.aymsyntex.com.  The No�ce can 
also be accessed from the websites of the Stock 
Exchanges i .e. BSE Limited and Na�onal Stock 
Exchange of India Limited at  and www.bseindia.com
www.nseindia.com respec�vely and the EGM/AGM 
No�ce is also available on the website of NSDL (agency 

for providing the Remote e-Vo�ng facility) 
 i.e. www.evo�ng.nsdl.com.

8. EGM/AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in 
compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 
08, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 
2020, MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and 
MCA Circular No. 2/2021 dated January 13, 2021.

9. The remote e-vo�ng period begins on 26th September, 
2023 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 28th September, 2023 at 
05:00 P.M. The remote e-vo�ng module shall be disabled 
by NSDL for vo�ng therea�er. The Members, whose 
names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial 
Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Friday 25th 
August, 2023, may cast their vote electronically. The 
vo�ng right of shareholders shall be in propor�on to their 
share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company 
as on the cut-off date, being Friday 25th August, 2023. 

10. How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Vo�ng system?

 The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Vo�ng system 
consists of “Two Steps” which are men�oned below: 

 Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Vo�ng system

 A) Login method for e-Vo�ng and joining virtual mee�ng 
for Individual shareholders holding securi�es in demat 
mode 

 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-
Vo�ng facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode are 
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained 
with Depositories and Depository Par�cipants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number 
and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-
Vo�ng facility.

Type of shareholders  Login Method

Individual Shareholders 
holding securi�es in demat 
mode with NSDL.

1. Exis�ng IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.  h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the 
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ sec�on , this will 
prompt you to enter your exis�ng User ID and Password. A�er successful authen�ca�on, you 
will be able to see e-Vo�ng services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Vo�ng” 
under e-Vo�ng services and you will be able to see e-Vo�ng page. Click on company name or 
e-Vo�ng service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Vo�ng website of NSDL for 
cas�ng your vote during the remote e-Vo�ng period or joining virtual mee�ng & vo�ng during 
the mee�ng.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, op�on to register is available 
at   Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com.
at h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3. Visit the e-Vo�ng website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
h�ps://www.evo�ng.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 
home page of e-Vo�ng system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ sec�on. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID 
(i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a 
Verifica�on Code as shown on the screen. A�er successful authen�ca�on, you will be 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode is given below:



redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Vo�ng page. Click on company 
name or e-Vo�ng service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Vo�ng website of 
NSDL for cas�ng your vote during the remote e-Vo�ng period or joining virtual mee�ng & 
vo�ng during the mee�ng. 

 Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by 
scanning the QR code men�oned below for seamless vo�ng experience.

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their exis�ng user id 
and password. Op�on will be made available to reach e-Vo�ng page without any further 
authen�ca�on. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user your 
exis�ng my easi username & password.

2. A�er successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Vo�ng op�on for eligible 
companies where the evo�ng is in progress as per the informa�on provided by company. On 
clicking the evo�ng op�on, the user will be able to see e-Vo�ng page of the e-Vo�ng service 
provider for cas�ng your vote during the remote e-Vo�ng period or joining virtual mee�ng & 
vo�ng during the mee�ng. Addi�onally, there is also links provided to access the system of all 
e-Vo�ng Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Vo�ng service providers' website 
directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, op�on to register is available at CDSL website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registra�on 
op�on.

 Alterna�vely, the user can directly access e-Vo�ng page by providing Demat Account Number 
and PAN No. from a e-Vo�ng link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authen�cate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 
Account. A�er successful authen�ca�on, user will be able to see the e-Vo�ng op�on where 
the evo�ng is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Vo�ng Service 
Providers.

Individual Shareholders 
holding securi�es in demat 
mode with CDSL

You can also login using the login creden�als of your demat account through your Depository 
Par�cipant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Vo�ng facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see 
e-Vo�ng op�on. Click on e-Vo�ng op�on, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site 
a�er successful authen�ca�on, wherein you can see e-Vo�ng feature. Click on company name or 
e-Vo�ng service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Vo�ng website of NSDL for 
cas�ng your vote during the remote e-Vo�ng period or joining virtual mee�ng & vo�ng during the 
mee�ng.

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securi�es in demat 
mode) login through their 
depository par�cipants

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ 
Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 
Password op�on available at abovemen�oned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securi�es in 
demat mode for any technical issues related to login through 
Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type  Helpdesk details 

Individual  Members facing any technical issue in
Shareholders  login can contact NSDL helpdesk by
holding securi�es  sending a request at evo�ng@nsdl.co.in
in demat mode  or call at 022-4886 7000 and 
with NSDL  022-2499 7000

Individual  Members facing any technical issue in
Shareholders  login can contact CDSL helpdesk by
holding securi�es  sending a request at
in demat mode   orhelpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com
with CDSL  contact at 1800 22 55 33

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ 
Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 
Password op�on available at abovemen�oned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securi�es in 
demat mode for any technical issues related to login through 
Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.



Login type  Helpdesk details 

Individual  Members facing any technical issue in
Shareholders  login can contact NSDL helpdesk by
holding securi�es  sending a request at evo�ng@nsdl.co.in
in demat mode  or call at toll free No. 1800 1020 990  and 
with NSDL  1800 22 44 30

Individual  Members facing any technical issue in
Shareholders  login can contact CDSL helpdesk by
holding securi�es  sending a request at
in demat mode   orhelpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com
with CDSL  contact at 022-23058738 or
 022-23058542-42

B)  Login Method for e-Vo�ng and joining virtual mee�ng for 
shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding 
securi�es in demat mode and shareholders holding 
securi�es in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Vo�ng website?

1. Visit the e-Vo�ng website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
typing the following URL: h�ps://www.evo�ng.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Vo�ng system is launched, click on 
the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder / 
Member’ sec�on.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, 
your Password/OTP and a Verifica�on Code as shown on the 
screen. Alterna�vely, if you are registered for NSDL 
eservices a�er using your log-in creden�als, click on e-
Vo�ng and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 
electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below

Manner of holding  Your User ID is: 
shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or 
Physical  

a) For Members who  8 Character DP ID followed by 8
 hold shares in  Digit Client ID For example if your
 demat account  DP ID is IN300*** and  Client ID
 with NSDL.  is 12****** then your user ID is 

IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who  16 Digit Beneficiary ID For 
 hold shares in demat  example if your Beneficiary ID is
 account with CDSL. 12************** then 
  your user ID is 12*************

c) For Members  EVEN Number followed by Folio
 holding  shares in  Number registered with the
 Physical  Form.  company For example if folio
  number is 001*** and EVEN is
  101456 then user ID is
  101456001*** 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual 
shareholders are given below:

 a) If you are already registered for e-Vo�ng, then you can 
user your exis�ng password to login and cast your vote.

 b) If you are using NSDL e-Vo�ng system for the first �me, 
you will need to retrieve the ‘ini�al password’ which 
was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 
‘ini�al password’, you need to enter the ‘ini�al 
password’ and the system will force you to change your 
password.

 c) How to retrieve your ‘ini�al password’?

  (i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account 
or with the company, your ‘ini�al password’ is 
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the 
email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. 
Open the email and open the a�achment i.e. a .pdf 
file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the 
.pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, 
last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf 
file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘ini�al 
password’. 

   If your email ID is not registered, please follow 
steps men�oned below in process for those 
shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Ini�al 
password” or have forgo�en your password:

 a) Click on “ ”(If you are Forgot User Details/Password?
holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or 
CDSL) op�on available on www.evo�ng.nsdl.com.

 b) ” (If you are holding Physical User Reset Password?
shares in physical mode) op�on available on 
www.evo�ng.nsdl.com.

 c) If you are s�ll unable to get the password by aforesaid 
t w o  o p � o n s ,  y o u  c a n  s e n d  a  r e q u e s t  a t 
evo�ng@nsdl.co.in men�oning your demat account 
number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your 
registered address etc.

7. Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based 
login for cas�ng the votes on the e-Vo�ng system of NSDL.

8. A�er entering your password, �ck on Agree to “Terms and 
Condi�ons” by selec�ng on the check box.

9. Now, you will have to click on “Login” bu�on.

10. A�er you click on the “Login” bu�on, Home page of e-Vo�ng 
will open.

 Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General 
Mee�ng on NSDL e-Vo�ng system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Mee�ng 
on NSDL e-Vo�ng system

1. A�er successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the 
companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and 
whose vo�ng cycle and General Mee�ng is in ac�ve status

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your 
vote during the remote e-Vo�ng period and cas�ng your 
vote during the General Mee�ng. For joining virtual 
mee�ng, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under 
“Join Mee�ng



3. Now you are ready for e-Vo�ng as the Vo�ng page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selec�ng appropriate op�ons i.e. assent 
or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which 
you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 
“Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirma�on, the message “Vote cast successfully” 
will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by 
clicking on the print op�on on the confirma�on page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolu�on, you will not 
be allowed to modify your vote. 

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Ins�tu�onal shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, 
NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG 
Format) of the relevant Board Resolu�on/ Authority le�er 
etc. with a�ested specimen signature of the duly 
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to 
the Scru�nizer by e-mail to  with cshiteshoffice@gmail.com
a copy marked to . Ins�tu�onal evo�ng@nsdl.co.in
shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can 
also upload their Board Resolu�on / Power of A�orney / 
Authority Le�er etc. by clicking on ”Upload Board 
Resolu�on / Authority Le�er” displayed under ”e-Vo�ng” 
tab in their login.

 It is strongly recommended not to share your password 
with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confiden�al. Login to the e-vo�ng website will be 
disabled upon five unsuccessful a�empts to key in 
the correct password. In such an event, you will need 
to go through the “ ” or Forgot User Details/Password?
“ ” op�on available on Physical User Reset Password?
www.evo�ng.nsdl.com to reset the password.

 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked 
Ques�ons (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-vo�ng user 
manual for Shareholders available at the download sec�on 
of  or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 and www.evo�ng.nsdl.com
022 - 2499 7000 or send a request to (Name of NSDL 
Official) at evo�ng@nsdl.co.in 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not 
registered with the depositories for procuring user id and 
password and registra�on of e mail ids for e-vo�ng for the 
resolu�ons set out in this no�ce:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide 
Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share 
cer�ficate (front and back), PAN (self a�ested scanned copy 
of PAN card), AADHAR (self a�ested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) by email to

 complianceofficer@aymgroup.com 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide 
DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), 
Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account 
statement, PAN (self a�ested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self a�ested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
complianceofficer@aymgroup.com. If you are an 
Individual shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode, 
you are requested to refer to the login method explained at 

step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Vo�ng and joining virtual 
mee�ng for Individual shareholders holding securi�es in 
demat mode.

3. Alterna�vely shareholder/members may send a request to 
evo�ng@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password for 
e-vo�ng by providing above men�oned documents.

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-
Vo�ng facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode are allowed 
to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Par�cipants. Shareholders are 
required to update their mobile number and email ID 
correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Vo�ng 
facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE 
DAY OF THE EGM/AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Vo�ng on the day of the EGM/AGM is 
same as the instruc�ons men�oned above for remote e-
vo�ng.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in 
the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not 
casted their vote on the Resolu�ons through remote e-
Vo�ng and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be 
eligible to vote through e-Vo�ng system in the EGM/AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Vo�ng will be 
eligible to a�end the EGM/AGM. However, they will not be 
eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any 
grievances connected with the facility for e-Vo�ng on the 
day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person men�oned 
for Remote e-vo�ng.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE 
EGM/AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to a�end the 
EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Vo�ng 
system. Members may access by following the steps 
men�oned above for Access to NSDL e-Vo�ng system. A�er 
successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed 
under “Join mee�ng” menu against company name. You 
are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join 
Mee�ng menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in 
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company 
will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not 
have the User ID and Password for e-Vo�ng or have 
forgo�en the User ID and Password may retrieve the same 
by following the remote e-Vo�ng instruc�ons men�oned in 
the no�ce to avoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Mee�ng through 
Laptops for be�er experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use 
Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during 
the mee�ng.

4. Please note that Par�cipants Connec�ng from Mobile 
Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connec�ng via Mobile 
Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to 



Fluctua�on in their respec�ve network. It is therefore 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connec�on to 
mi�gate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views / 
have ques�ons may send their ques�ons in advance 
atleast 3 days prior to the date of AGM i.e. Tuesday, 
26th September, 2023 men�oning their name demat 
account number /  folio number, email id, mobile number at

 . The same will be complianceofficer@aymgroup.com
replied by the company suitably.

6. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a 
speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 
ques�ons during the mee�ng. Only those shareholders, 
who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and 
have not casted their vote on the Resolu�ons through 
remote e-Vo�ng and are otherwise not barred from doing 
so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Vo�ng system 
available during the AGM. 

7. Members who need assistance before or during the AGM 
with use of technology can: 

 a. Send a request at or use Toll free no.: 
  1800-222-990; orevo�ng@nsdl.co.in 

 b. Contact Ms. Sarita Mote, representa�ve of NSDL at the 
designated email ID: or at telephone 

   number +91-022-24994890.saritam@nsdl.co.in

GENERAL INFORMATION: 

1. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular 
No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the No�ce calling the 
AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 
www.aymsyntex.com. The No�ce can also be accessed from 
the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and 
N a � o n a l  S t o c k  E x c h a n g e  o f  I n d i a  L i m i t e d  a t 
www.bseindia.com www.nseindia.com and respec�vely 
and the AGM No�ce is also available on the website of NSDL 
(agency for providing the Remote e-Vo�ng facility) i.e. 
www.evo�ng.nsdl.com.

2. The vo�ng rights shall be as per the number of equity shares 
held by the Member(s) as Tuesday 19th September, 2023 
being the cut-off date. Members are eligible to cast vote 
electronically only if they are holding shares as on that date.

3. The Company has appointed Mr. Hitesh Gupta, Company 
Secretary in whole �me prac�ce (ACS-No. 33684; CP No.-
12722) as the scru�nizer to scru�nize the e-vo�ng process in 
a fair and transparent manner.

4. Ins�tu�onal/Corporate shareholders (i.e. other than 
individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolu�on/ 
Authority le�er etc. with a�ested specimen signature of the 
duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, 
to the Scru�nizer by e-mail to   cshitesh.gupta@gmail.com
with a copy marked to evo�ng@nsdl.co.in.

5. The result of vo�ng shall be declared by the Chairman of the 
mee�ng on or a�er AGM of the Company. The results 
declared along with the Scru�nizer’s Report shall be placed 
on the Company’s website www.aymsyntex.com and will be 
communicated to the Stock Exchanges where the shares of 

the Company are listed.

PROCEDURE FOR INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS: 

1. All the documents referred to in the accompanying No�ce 
and Explanatory Statements, shall be available for 
inspec�on through electronic mode, basis the request being 
sent on . complianceofficer@aymgroup.com

2. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and 
their Shareholding maintained under Sec�on 170 of the Act 
and the Register of Contracts or arrangements in which 
Directors are interested under Sec�on 189 of the Act shall be 
available electronically for inspec�on. Members seeking to 
inspect such documents can request the Company by 
sending an e-mail to .complianceofficer@aymgroup.com

OTHERS: 

1. As per Regula�on 40 of SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, as 
amended, securi�es of listed companies can be transferred 
only in dematerialised form with effect from, 1st April, 2019, 
except in case of request received for transmission or 
transposi�on of securi�es. In view of this and to eliminate all 
risks associated with physical shares and for ease of por�olio 
management, members holding shares in physical form are 
requested to consider conver�ng their holdings to 
dematerialised form. Members can contact the Company at 
its email ID i.e. or its complianceofficer@aymgroup.com 
RTA, M/s. Link In�me India Private Limited (‘Link In�me’) for 
the same.

2. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its 
circular dated 20th April, 2018 has mandated registra�on of 
Permanent Account Number (PAN) and Bank Account 
Details for all securi�es holders. Members holding shares in 
physical form are therefore, requested to submit their PAN 
and Bank Account Details to the Company by sending a duly 
signed le�er along with self-a�ested copy of PAN Card and 
o r i g i n a l  c a n c e l l e d  c h e q u e  t h r o u g h  e m a i l  a t 
complianceofficer@aymgroup.com or members can send 
the foresaid documents to Link In�me India Private Limited 
at C-101, 247Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli (w), Mumbai -400083. 
The original cancelled cheque should bear the name of the 
Member. In the alterna�ve, Members are requested to 
submit a copy of bank passbook / statement a�ested by the 
bank. 

3. Members holding shares in demat form are requested to 
submit the aforesaid informa�on to their respec�ve 
Depository Par�cipant (DPs) with whom they maintain their 
demat accounts.

Place: Mumbai By order of the Board
Date:  May 5, 2023   Ashitosh Sheth
  Company Secretary
 ACS:25997
Registered Office of the Company:
Plot no.1, Survey no.374/1/1, Village Saily, 
Silvassa 396230, U.T of Dadra & Nagar Haveli
CIN: L99999DN1983PLC000045
Phone:+ 91-022-61637000/7001 
E-mail: complianceofficer@aymgroup.com
Website: www.aymsyntex.com



ITEM NO. 3

Ra�fica�on of remunera�on payable to the Cost Auditor

In accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies (Cost Records 
and Audit) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable provisions of the 
Act, Our Company is required to appoint a cost accountant in 
prac�ce, as the cost auditor to conduct the audit of Company's 
Cost Records and accordingly, on the recommenda�on of the 
Audit Commi�ee, The Board of Directors in their mee�ng held 
on 5th May, 2023 have appointed M/s. Kiran J Mehta & Co., Cost 
Auditors to conduct the audit of cost records of the Company 
for the financial year ending March 31, 2024.

The remunera�on payable to the Cost Auditors has to be 
ra�fied by the shareholders of the Company. Accordingly, 
consent of the members is sought for passing an ordinary 
resolu�on as set out in Item No. 3 of the No�ce for ra�fica�on of 
the remunera�on payable to M/s. Kiran J Mehta & Co., Cost 
Auditors for the financial year ending March 31, 2024.

None of the Directors or any key managerial personnel or any 
rela�ve of any of the Directors of the Company or the rela�ves 
of any key managerial personnel is, in anyway, concerned or 
interested (financially or otherwise) in the above resolu�on. 

The Board recommends the ordinary resolu�on as set out in 
Item no. 3 of this no�ce for the approval of members.

ITEM NO. 4

Appointment of Mr. Kan�lal N. Patel as Independent Director of 
the Company.

Pursuant to recommenda�on of the Nomina�on & 
Remunera�on Commi�ee, the Board by way of passing circular 
resolu�on appointed Mr. Kan�lal N. Patel (DIN: 00019414) as an 
Addi�onal Director of the Company (in the capacity of being 
Non- Execu�ve Independent Director) for a term of 5 (Five) 
consecu�ve years with effect from July 29, 2023 to July 28, 2028 
(both days inclusive), not liable to re�re by rota�on, subject to 
approval of the Members. 

Mr. Kan�lal N. Patel has over four decades of experience in the 
corporate world. His rich experience in Financial Management, 
Corporate Taxa�on, Investments, Mergers, Financial 
Restructuring, Acquisi�on, etc. will be invaluable to the Board. 
The Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee and Board have 
iden�fied, amongst others, Corporate Strategy and Planning, 
Leadership as the skills and capabili�es for the role and Mr. 
Kan�lal N. Patel meets such requirements. Details of 
remunera�on to Independent Directors shall be disclosed as 
part of the Annual Report. 

The Company has received, inter alia, the following consents, 
declara�ons, and confirma�ons from Mr. Kan�lal N. Patel 
regarding the proposed appointment: 

(i) Consent to act as Director of the Company in terms of 
Sec�on 152 of the Act and declara�on that he is not 
disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of 
Sec�on 164 of the Act. 

(ii) Declara�on that he is not debarred from holding the 
office of Director by virtue of any SEBI order or any other 
such authority. 

(iii) Declara�on that he meets the criteria of independence 
as prescribed under the Act and the SEBI Lis�ng 
Regula�ons. 

(iv) Confirma�on that he is not aware of any circumstance or 
situa�on which exists or may be reasonably an�cipated 
that could impair or impact his ability to discharge his 
du�es as an Independent Director of the Company. 

(v) Confirma�on that he has registered himself with the 
Independent Directors' databank and sa�sfied the 
requirement regarding the online proficiency self-
assessment  test  in  terms  of  the  Companies 
(Appointment and Qualifica�ons of Directors) Rules, 
2014. 

Further, in terms of Sec�on 160 of the Act, the Nomina�on & 
Remunera�on Commi�ee and Board have recommended the 
appointment of Mr. Kan�lal N. Patel and the Company has also 
received a no�ce in wri�ng from a Member proposing his 
candidature for appointment as an Independent Director. 

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Kan�lal N. Patel fulfils the 
condi�ons of Independence as specified in the Act and the SEBI 
Lis�ng Regula�ons for his proposed appointment as an 
Independent Director and is independent of the Management. 
Based on Mr. Kan�lal N. Patel's skills, experience and exper�se 
as men�oned above, the Board is of the opinion that his 
associa�on will add value and it will be in the best interest of the 
Company to appoint him as an Independent Director for a term 
of 5 (Five) consecu�ve years with effect from July 29, 2023. 

Addi�onal informa�on in respect of Mr. Kan�lal N. Patel, 
pursuant to Regula�on 36 of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons and 
the Secretarial Standard on General Mee�ngs (SS-2), along with 
his brief profile is provided at Annexure 1 to this No�ce.

Except Mr. Kan�lal N. Patel and/or his rela�ves, none of the 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their 
rela�ves are in any way concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, in the Special Resolu�on set out in Item No. 4. 

The Board recommends the Resolu�on in rela�on to the 
appointment of Mr. Kan�lal N. Patel as an Independent Director 
as set out in Item No. 4 for approval of the Members by way of a 
Special Resolu�on. 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND SECRETARIAL STANDARD – 
2 ON GENERAL MEETINGS ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA



Annexure-1

Details of the Directors proposed to be re-appointed at the AGM. 

(Pursuant to Regula�on 26 (4) and 36(3) of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 and 

Secretarial Standard on General Mee�ng (SS-2))

Par�culars Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala Mr. Kan�lal N. Patel 

Age and date of birth 36 years, 29th January 1987 72 years, 30th May, 1951

Date of first appointment Date of first appointment Date of first appointment

Brief Resume (including 
profile, qualifica�on, 
experience and exper�se in 
specific func�onal areas)

She has completed Bachelor of Engineering 
in Informa�on Technology in July 20009 from 
D.J. Sanghvi College of Engineering with 
dis�nc�on.

At present, she is the Whole Time Director of 
the Company. She is the head of Human 
Resources and Administra�on department, 
Corporate Social Responsibility and is 
responsible for strategizing Company's CSR 
v is ion and op�mum deployment of 
Company's human resources.

He has pursued B.Com (Hons); F C A 

B.Com (1st Rank in N M College of Com & 
Economics, Mumbai.) Final C A (32nd Rank). 

Mr. Patel was associated with JSW Group for 
26 years and prior to JSW Group he was associated 
for 21 years with Standard Industries (Mafatlal 
Group). Mr. Patel possesses over 47 years of rich 
and varied experience in the areas of Financial 
Management, Management Informa�on Systems, 
Corporate  Taxa�on,  Corporate  F inance, 
Investment, Mergers/ Acquisi�ons/ Restructuring 
/ Reorganisa�on and Fund Management, etc

Shareholding in the Company 
(as on the date of the  No�ce 
of AGM)

NIL NIL

Rela�onship with other 
Director/ Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company

No. of Board Mee�ngs 
a�ended

Yes. Mr. Rajesh Mandawewala, Chairman 
and Mr. Abhishek Mandawewala, Managing 
Director and CEO

She has a�ended all the four mee�ngs held 
during the year.

No

Not Applicable 

Directorships held in other 
companies (including the 
Company as on the date of the 
No�ce of AGM)

• Mandawewala Enterprises Limited

• Totsol Commercial Private Limited

• AYM Tex�les Private Limited 

• Arah Real�es Private Limited

• Mertz estate Limited

• JSW Holdings Limited

• JSW Cement Limited

• JSW Infrastructure Limited

• JSW Jaigarh Port Limited

• JSW GMR Cricket Private Limited

• JSW Recharge Sports Private Limited

• JSW Sports Ventures Private Limited

• JSW Realty Private Limited

• Svamaan Financial Services Private Limited

Companies in which Director 
is Chairman/Member* of the 
Commi�ee of the Board (as 
on the date of the No�ce of 
AGM)

*Note: For the purpose of 
coun�ng membership in 
Board Commi�ee, 
Chairmanship / Membership 
of the Audit Commi�ee and 
the Stakeholders Rela�onship 
Commi�ee alone are 
considered.

Chairperson of Audit Commi�ee: NIL

Member of Audit commi�ee: NIL

Member of Stakeholders Rela�onship 

Commi�ee: NIL

Chairperson of Audit Commi�ee: NIL 

Member of Audit commi�ee: 2

• JSW Holdings Limited 

• JSW Infrastructure Limited 

Member of Stakeholders Rela�onship 

Commi�ee: 1

• JSW Holdings Limited 

Terms and condi�ons of re-
appointment

As men�oned in the Explanatory statement 

a�ached to the No�ce

As men�oned in the Explanatory statement 

a�ached to the No�ce





“Each year we forge ahead fueled by optimism and a 
shared vision as we build a future �lled with sustainable 

achievements and unparalleled excellence.”

Recover Reimagine Rebuild.
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Europe

South America

Global Economy

Recover Reimagine Rebuild 

Statutory Report | Economic Overview



Indian Economy

36

Statutory Reports
Financial Statem

ents
Strategic Snapshot



Industry Overview

Recover Reimagine Rebuild 

Statutory Report | Industry Overview



38

Statutory Reports
Financial Statem

ents
Strategic Snapshot



Threats
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Floor covering
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Changing consumer preferences

Foreign currency exposure
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DIVIDEND

In order to conserve the resources of the Company, the Board 
has not recommended dividend on equity shares during the 
year under review. 

AMOUNT TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Your directors do not propose to transfer any amount to the 
reserves.

COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE AND OUTLOOK

Standalone:

Revenues from opera�ons (net) were at Rs. 1,45,778.22 Lakhs as 
compared to Rs. 149,145.95 Lakhs in the previous year. Exports 
during the financial year 2022-23 were of Rs. 67,719.78 Lakhs as 
compared to Rs. 66,157.75 Lakhs during the previous year.

The Profit Before Tax for the full year has declined to Rs. 1,063.57 
Lakhs as compared to Rs. 7,956.76 Lakhs and PAT has declined to 
Rs. 716.74 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 5,081.43 Lakhs in the 
financial year 2022-23.

Consolidated:

The Company incorporated a subsidiary “AYM Tex�le Private 
Limited” on June 27, 2022. Accordingly, the Company is required 

to prepare consolidated financial statements for the first �me 
for the year ended March 31, 2023. During the period ended 
March 31, 2023, subsidiary has not carried any commercial 
transac�ons. Accordingly, the consolidated financial results are 
tabulated above.

As the subsidiary was incorporated during the FY 2022-23, 
corresponding figures for the year ended March 31, 2022 are not 
required to be furnished in the these consolidated financial 
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND LISTING

Issue of Employee Stock Op�ons  

Pursuant to the exercise of op�ons by the grantees, the 
Company has allo�ed 1,02,680 equity shares under the AYM 
ESOP Scheme 2018 and 97,000 equity shares at the face value of 
Rs. 10/- each under the AYM ESOP Scheme 2021. The said shares 
are listed on The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and The 
Na�onal Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

In compliance with the provisions of Rule 12(9) of the 
Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 and SEBI 
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regula�ons, 2014, as 
amended thereto, the details of Employees Stock Op�on 
Schemes of the Company as on March 31, 2023, are furnished in 
Annexure A a�ached herewith and forms part of this Report. 

Issue of Equity Shares with Differen�al Rights

The Company does not have any equity shares with differen�al 
rights.

Issue of Sweat Equity Shares

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any 
sweat equity share.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Sec�on 134(3) (c) read with Sec�on 134(5) of the 
Act, the Directors hereby confirm that:

a) in the prepara�on of the annual accounts, the applicable
Accoun�ng Standards had been followed along with
proper explana�on rela�ng to material departures;

b) the directors had selected such accoun�ng policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and
es�mates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at
the end of the financial year March 31, 2023 and of the
profit and loss of the Company for that period;

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preven�ng and detec�ng fraud and other irregulari�es;

BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

thYour Directors are pleased to present 40  Annual Report 
together with Audited Statement of Accounts of the 
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Rs. in Lakhs)

*Revenue from opera�ons 1,45,778.22 1,49,145.95 1,45,778.22

Other Income 786.85 435.91 786.85

Total revenue 1,46,565.07 149,581.86 1,46,565.07

EBIDTA  10,314.85 16,606.47 10,314.32

EBIDTA Margin (%) 7.08 11.10 7.08

Finance Costs 3,599.41 3,593.89 3599.42

Deprecia�on and 
amor�za�on expense 5,651.87 5,055.83 5651.87

Profit before tax  1,063.57 7,956.76 1063.03

Current Tax  435.59 1,403.55 435.59

Deferred tax (88.76) 1,471.78 (88.76)

Profit a�er tax 716.74 5,081.43 716.20

Other comprehensive income 
for the year, net of tax 74.92 13.06 74.92

Total comprehensive income
for the year 791.66 5,094.49 791.12

Earnings per share (Basic) 1.43 10.14 1.42

Earnings per share (Diluted) 1.41 10.01 1.41

          Standalone Consolidated

Par�culars 2022-23 2021-22 2022-23

*Revenue from opera�ons excludes other opera�ve income.
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d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a
going concern basis;

e) the directors have laid down internal financial controls to
be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were opera�ng
effec�vely; and

f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and opera�ng
effec�vely.

DIRECTORS/ KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

The Company’s Board comprises of a mix of execu�ve and non-
execu�ve directors with considerable experience and exper�se 
across a range of fields such as finance, accounts, general 
management and business strategy. 

There has been no change in the composi�on of Board of 
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel during the year under 
review. The details of the directors and their mee�ngs held 
during the year have been given in the Corporate Governance 
Report, which forms part of the Annual Report.

Pursuant to the provisions of sub-regula�on (6)(e) of Regula�on 
17 of the SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015, the Members of the 
Company have approved the remunera�on payable to Mr. 
Abhishek Mandawewala, Managing Director and CEO & Mrs. 
Khushboo Mandawewala, Whole Time Director of the 
Company, by passing special resolu�on(s) vide postal ballot 
no�ce dated February 4, 2023.

Further, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company, Mrs. 
Khushboo A. Mandawewala is re�ring by rota�on at the 40th 
Annual General Mee�ng and being eligible has been 
recommended for re-appointment as a director liable to re�re 
by rota�on by the Board. 

A brief resume and other details as required under the Act and 
Lis�ng Regula�ons for re-appointment of Directors is provided 
in the No�ce of the 40th AGM of your Company.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Informa�on on the Audit commi�ee, the Nomina�on and 
Remunera�on commi�ee, the Stakeholders Rela�onship 
commi�ee, the Corporate Social Responsibility Commi�ee and 
mee�ngs of those commi�ees held during the year is given in 
the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Report.

DECLARATION BY AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S)

All Independent Directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Atul 
Desai, Mr. Mohan K. Tandon and Mr. K.H. Viswanathan, have 
given their declara�on that they meet the eligibility criteria of 
independence as provided in Sec�on 149(6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“The Act”) and Regula�on 25(8) of SEBI (LODR) 

Regula�ons, 2015 (“LODR”) and that there is no change in the 
circumstances as on the date of this report which may affect 
their status as an independent director.

Your Board confirms that in its opinion, all the independent 
directors fulfill the condi�ons prescribed under the Act and 
LODR and they are independent of the Company and its 
management. All the independent directors on the Board of the 
Company are registered with the Indian Ins�tute of Corporate 
Affairs (IICA), Manesar, Gurgaon, Haryana-122052 as no�fied by 
the Central Government under Sec�on 150(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and are exempted from undergoing online proficiency 
self-assessment test.

Policy on Directors’ Appointment and Remunera�on including 
criteria for determining qualifica�ons, posi�ve a�ributes, 
independence of a director and other ma�ers provided under 
sub-sec�on (3) of sec�on 178 of the Act is placed on website of 
the Company and web link thereto is
h�ps://www.aymsyntex.com/investors/corporate-governance/policies-code-compliances

BOARD EVALUATION

During the year under review, the evalua�on of the annual 
performance of individual Directors including the Chairman of 
the Company and Independent Directors, Board and 
Commi�ees of the Board was carried out under the provisions 
of the Act, relevant Rules, and the Corporate Governance 
requirements as prescribed under Regula�on 17 of Lis�ng 
Regula�ons and based on the circular issued by SEBI dated 
January 5, 2017, with respect to Guidance Note on Board 
Evalua�on. The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee had 
approved the criteria for the performance evalua�on of the 
Board, its commi�ees and individual Directors as per the SEBI 
Guidance Note on Board Evalua�on.

The evalua�on for the performance of the Board as a whole and 
of the Commi�ees were conducted by way of ques�onnaires. In 
a separate mee�ng of Independent Directors, the performance 
of Non-Independent Directors and performance of the Board as 
a whole was evaluated. Further, they also evaluated the 
performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into 
account the views of the Execu�ve Directors and Non-execu�ve 
Directors.

The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee reviewed the 
performance of the individual Directors based on the criteria 
such as qualifica�on, experience, knowledge and competency, 
fulfilment of func�ons, availability and a�endance, ini�a�ve, 
integrity, contribu�on and commitment etc., and the 
Independent Directors were addi�onally evaluated on the basis 
of independence, independent views and judgement etc. 
Further the evalua�on of Chairman of the Board, in addi�on to 
the above criteria for individual Directors, also included 
evalua�on based on effec�veness of leadership and ability to 
steer the mee�ngs, impar�ality, etc.

The Chairman and other members of the Board discussed upon 
the performance evalua�on of every Director of the Company 
and concluded that they were sa�sfied with the overall 



performance of the Directors individually and that the Directors 
generally met their expecta�ons of performance. 

The summary of the feedback from the members were 
therea�er discussed in detail by the members. The respec�ve 
Director, who was being evaluated, did not par�cipate in the 
discussion on his/her performance evalua�on.

They were sa�sfied with the overall performance of the 
Directors individually and that the Directors generally met their 
expecta�ons of performance.

The Board also assessed the fulfillment of the independence 
criteria as specified in Lis�ng Regula�ons, by the Independent 
Directors of the Company and their independence from the 
management. The performance of the Board was evaluated by 
the Board a�er seeking inputs from all the Directors on the basis 
of various criteria such as diversity in the Board, competency of 
Directors, strategy and performance evalua�on, evalua�on of 
performance of the management and feedback, independence 
of the management from the Board etc. The performance of the 
Commi�ees was evaluated by the Board a�er seeking inputs 
from the Commi�ee members on the basis of criteria such as 
mandate and composi�on, effec�veness of the commi�ee, 
independence of the commi�ee from the Board, contribu�on to 
decisions of the Board, etc.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The CSR policy of our Company as approved by the Board of 
directors’ is hosted on the Company’s website and web link 
thereto is  h�ps://www.aymsyntex.com/investors/corporate-governance/policies-code-compliances

The annual report on CSR, under Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014, is annexed as 
Annexure B;

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Four mee�ngs of the Board of Directors were conducted during 
the financial year 2022-23, details of which are given in the 
Corporate Governance Report forming part of the Annual 
Report. The maximum interval between any two mee�ngs did 
not exceed as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015.

HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE 
COMPANIES

The Company is a subsidiary of Mandawewala Enterprises 
Limited.

Further, the Board in its mee�ng held on May 7, 2022, had 
approved forming a new Wholly Owned Subsidiary (WOS) 
Company namely AYM Tex�les Private Limited (AYM Tex�les). As 
on March 31, 2023 the Company has 1 subsidiary Company and 
there have been no commercial transac�ons during the year.  
AYM Tex�les was incorporated vide Cer�ficate of Incorpora�on 
dated June 27, 2022 duly issued by the Registrar of Companies, 
Mumbai. 

AYM Tex�les has yet to commence its business opera�ons. AYM 
Tex�les was incorporated as WOS of the Company to fulfill the 
s�pula�ons specified for par�cipa�on under the New 
Produc�on Linked Incen�ve (PLI) Scheme of GOI for Tex�les.  A 
report on the performance and financial posi�on of (AYM 
Tex�les is a�ached in Form AOC-1 as Annexure C to this Report. 
The Policy on Material Subsidiaries of the Company is placed on 
the website of the Company and can be accessed at 
h�ps://www.aymsyntex.com/investors/corporate-governance/policies-code-compliances

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 136 of the Act, the 
financial statements of the Company, consolidated financial 
statements along with relevant documents and separate 
audited financial statements in respect of subsidiaries, are 
available on the Company’s website at (link).

The Company did not have any joint ventures or associate 
companies during the year under review. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE ACT

Par�culars of investments made, loans and guarantee given and 
securi�es, if any provided under Sec�on 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 form part of the notes to the financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The statement of disclosures of remunera�on as required under 
Sec�on 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014, as amended from �me to �me, is annexed as 
Annexure E and forms an integral part of this Report.

The informa�on regarding employee remunera�on as required 
pursuant to Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the above Rules is available for 
inspec�on. A statement showing the names and other 
par�culars of the employees drawing remunera�on in excess of 
the limits set out in the said Rules will be provided upon request. 
In terms of first proviso to Sec�on 136 of the Act, the Report and 
Accounts are being sent to the members and others en�tled 
thereto, excluding the informa�on on employees’ par�culars, 
which is available for inspec�on by the members. Any member 
interested in obtaining a copy thereof may write to the Company 
Secretary.

None of the employees holds (by himself or along with his / her 
spouse and dependent children) more than 2% of the equity 
shares of the Company.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL 
FINANCIAL CONTROLS (IFC) WITH REFERENCE TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Company believes that internal control is a prerequisite of 
governance and that ac�on emana�ng out of agreed business 
plans should be exercised within a framework of checks and 
balances. The Company has a well-established internal control 
framework, which is designed to con�nuously assess the 
adequacy, effec�veness and efficiency of financial and 
opera�onal controls. The management is commi�ed to 
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ensuring an effec�ve internal control environment, 
commensurate with the size and complexity of the business, 
which provides an assurance on compliance with internal 
policies, applicable laws, regula�ons and protec�on of 
resources and assets.

Your Company has well documented Standard Opera�ng 
Procedures (SOPs) for various processes which are periodically 
reviewed for changes warranted by business needs.  The 
Internal Auditors con�nuously monitor the efficiency of the 
internal controls / compliance with the SOPs with the objec�ve 
of providing to the Audit Commi�ee and the Board of Directors, 
an independent, objec�ve and reasonable assurance of the 
adequacy and effec�veness of the organisa�on’s risk 
management, control and governance processes.

For the year ended March 31, 2023, the Board is of the opinion 
that your Company has sound IFC commensurate with the 
nature of its business opera�ons, wherein adequate controls are 
in place and opera�ng effec�vely and no material weakness 
exists.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH 
RELATED PARTIES

Your Company has formulated a policy on related party 
transac�ons, which is also available on Company’s website at
h�ps://www.aymsyntex.com/investors/corporate-governance/policies-code-compliances

This policy deals with the review and approval of related party 
transac�ons and any significant modifica�ons in the said 
transac�ons. The Board of Directors of the Company has 
approved the criteria for making the omnibus approval by the 
Audit Commi�ee within the overall framework of the policy on 
related party transac�ons. Prior omnibus approval is obtained 
for related party transac�ons which are of repe��ve nature and 
entered in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s length 
basis. All related party transac�ons are placed before the Audit 
Commi�ee for review and approval. 

All related party transac�ons entered during the year 2022-23 
were in ordinary course of the business and at arm’s length 
basis. No material related party transac�ons i.e., transac�on 
exceeding 10% of the annual consolidated turnover as per the 
last audited financial statement, were entered during the 
Financial Year by your Company. Accordingly, the disclosure of 
related party transac�ons as required under Sec�on 134(3)(h) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, in Form AOC-2 is not applicable to 
your Company and hence does not form part of this report.

Members may refer to note no. 48 to the financial statement 
which sets out related party disclosures pursuant to IND AS-24.

VIGIL MECHANISM

Your Company is commi�ed to the highest standards of ethical, 
moral and legal business conduct. Accordingly, the Board of 
directors has formulated Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil 
Mechanism for its directors and employees and any director or 
employee may make protected disclosures to the Chairman of 
the Audit Commi�ee. No personnel have been denied access to 

the Audit commi�ee.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to sec�on 134(3)(a) and sec�on 92(3) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014, a copy of the 
annual return is placed on the website of the Company and can 
be accessed at  h�ps://www.aymsyntex.com/investors/shareholder-informa�on

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

a. Conserva�on of energy:

(i) the steps taken or impact on conserva�on of
energy:

• Installed high efficiency motors in 5 U�lity
Machines resul�ng in saving of 15% power
consump�on.

• Installed DIDW (double inlet double width)
AHU supply fans by replacing SISW (Single
inlet single width) AHU supply fans resul�ng in
saving of 15% power consump�on.

• Replaced 3 Screw compressors with one
centrifugal compressor.

• Reduce the Speed of Dyeing 11 Pump By Ac
d r i ve  I n sta l l a� o n  to  re d u c e  e n e rg y
consump�on by 7.5 Kw/hr.

• Jet Cleaning of MEE to reduce energy
consump�on by 7.75 KW/hr i.e., 186 Unit/day.

(ii) the steps taken by the Company for u�lizing
alternate sources of energy:

• Biomass Boiler installed by replacing Furnace
oil boiler for steam genera�on.

(iii) the capital investment on energy conserva�on
equipment: Rs. 286 Lakhs.

b. Technology absorp�on:

(i) The efforts made towards technology absorp�on:

• Converted Line 6A/6B/7B/7C from PET POY to
PET FDY

• Converted Line 9/11/14/15 from 4 End to 8
end produc�on.

• Converted 6 BCF manufacturing lines from
regular BCF to  product.Alterna�ve

• Installa�on of 5 new Mother Yarn manufactu
-ring lines and 1 IDY manufacturing lines.
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• Install 3 new WSF machines to improve the
yarn quality

(ii) The benefits derived like product improvement,
cost reduc�on, product development or import
subs�tu�on:

• Reduc�on in Energy Consump�on and cost
saving

• Improvement in product quality

• Improvement in machine opera�ng efficiency

• Reduc�on in packing material cost

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during
the last three years reckoned from the beginning
of the financial year): NIL

(iv) Research and Development expenditures:

Rs. in Lakhs

Par�culars 2022-23 2021-22

Revenue expenditure 1001.81 1,255.64

Capital expenditure NIL 23.86

Total 1001.81 1279.50

c. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows
during the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during
the year in terms of actual ou�lows.

Earning in Foreign exchange  - Rs. 677,19.78 Lakhs

Outgo in Foreign exchange - Rs. 532,53.12 Lakhs

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning 
of Chapter V to Companies Act, 2013. Further, no amount on 
account of principal or interest on deposit was outstanding at 
the end of the year under report.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

As per Sec�on 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), read 
with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the 
Members of the Company at their 39th  Annual General 
Mee�ng have approved the appointment of M/s Price 
Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, Chartered Accountants 
(ICAI Registra�on No- 012754N/N-500016), as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company for a second term of 5 years 
commencing from the conclusion of the 39th Annual General 
Mee�ng �ll the conclusion of 44th Annual General Mee�ng. The 
Auditors are holding a valid cer�ficate issued by the Peer Review 
Board of the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India.

AUDITORS’ REPORT 

The Report given by M/s Price Waterhouse Chartered 
Accountants LLP on the financial statement of the Company for 
the year 2022-23 is part of the Annual Report. There has been no 
qualifica�on, reserva�on or adverse remark or disclaimer in 
their Report.

There is no qualified opinion in the Auditors’ Report. However, 
we refer to para i (c) of Annexure B of Independent Auditor’s 
Report and state that in respect of documents of �tle deeds of 
residen�al flats belonging and in possession of the Company 
carrying gross value of Rs. 14.85 lakhs are not traceable. The 
Company is in the process of tracing the physical agreements of 
the aforesaid flats. 

COST AUDITOR AND COST RECORDS

In terms of the Sec�on 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the 
Act’) read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, 
it is stated that the cost accounts and records have been 
prepared and maintained by the Company as specified by the 
Central Government. 

In terms of Sec�on 148 of the Act read with Companies (Cost 
Records and Audits) Rules, 2014 and in accordance with the 
recommenda�on of the Audit Commi�ee, the Board of 
Directors has appointed M/s Kiran J Mehta & Co., Cost 
Accountants, being eligible, as Cost Auditors of your Company to 
carry out the cost audit of products manufactured by the 
Company. Your Company has received their wri�en consent 
from M/s Kiran J Mehta & Co. to the effect that their 
appointment is in accordance with the applicable provisions of 
the Act and rules framed thereunder. The remunera�on of Cost 
Auditors has been approved by the Board of Directors on the 
recommenda�on of Audit Commi�ee and in terms of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereunder. Requisite resolu�on 
for ra�fica�on of remunera�on of the Cost Auditors, by the 
members, has been set out in the No�ce of the 40th Annual 
General Mee�ng of your Company. 

During the year 2022-23 the Cost Accountants had not reported 
any ma�er under Sec�on 143 (12) of the Act, therefore no detail 
is required to be disclosed under Sec�on 134(3)(ca) of the Act.

Members are requested to ra�fy remunera�on as fixed by the 
Board of directors by passing an ordinary resolu�on in the 
Annual General Mee�ng.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND AUDIT REPORT 

The Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2022-
23, as required under Sec�on 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regula�on 24A of the 
Lis�ng Regula�ons, was conducted by Mr. Hitesh J. Gupta, 
Prac�cing Company Secretary (CP No. 12722). The Secretarial 
Audit Report is annexed as Annexure D and forms an integral 
part of this Report.
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There has been no qualifica�on, reserva�on or adverse remark 
or disclaimer in the Secretarial Audit Report. During the year 
2022-23, the Secretarial Auditor had not reported any ma�er 
under Sec�on 143 (12) of the Act, therefore no detail is required 
to be disclosed under Sec�on 134(3)(ca) of the Act. 

As per the provisions of Regula�on 24A of SEBI (LODR) 
Regula�ons, 2015, the Company has obtained an Annual 
Secretarial Compliance Report for the year ended March 31, 
2023 from Mr. Hitesh Gupta, Prac�cing Company Secretary, who 
is also the Secretarial Auditor of the Company. The Annual 
Secretarial Compliance Report does not contain any 
qualifica�on, reserva�on or adverse remark or disclaimer.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year 2022-23, your Company has complied with the 
applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Ins�tute of 
Company Secretaries of India.

CERTIFICATION FROM COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE

Pursuant to the provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015, the 
Company has obtained a cer�ficate from Mr. Hitesh J. Gupta, 
Prac�cing Company Secretary that none of the Directors on the 
Board of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from 
being appointed or con�nuing as a Director of the Company by 
SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such regulatory 
authority. 

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS 
OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE 
CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

The Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors and Secretarial Auditors of 
the Company have not reported any fraud to the Audit 
Commi�ee or to the Board of Directors under Sec�on 143(12) of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Audit Commi�ee has been entrusted with the responsibility 
of overseeing various organiza�onal risks (strategic, opera�onal 
and financial). The Audit Commi�ee also assesses the adequacy 
of mi�ga�on plans to address such risks. An overarching Risk 
Management Policy which was approved by the Board is in 
place. The Company has developed and implemented an 
integrated Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework 
through which it iden�fies monitors, mi�gates & reports key 
risks which impact the Company’s ability to meet its strategic 
objec�ves. The ERM team engages with all Func�on heads to 
iden�fy internal and external events that may have an adverse 
impact on the achievement of Company’s objec�ves and 
periodically monitors changes in both internal and external 
environment leading to emergence of a new threat/risk. These 
risks are captured in a risk register with all the relevant 
informa�on such as risk descrip�on, root cause and any exis�ng 
mi�ga�on plans. The risk register is refreshed semi-annually. 
Risks are categorised into Strategic, Financial, Opera�onal, 
Compliance & Reputa�onal. ERM risk assessments covering 

Company’s various businesses and func�ons are a key input for 
the annual internal audit program. During FY22, the focus was 
on reviewing effec�veness of ac�ons taken to mi�gate business, 
cyber security and other opera�onal & Compliance risks.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR THE INDEPENDENT 
DIRECTORS

In compliance with the requirements of Regula�on 25(7) of the 
Lis�ng Regula�ons, the Company has put in place a 
Familiariza�on Programme for the Independent Directors to 
familiarize them with the Company, their roles, rights, 
responsibili�es in the Company, nature of the industry in which 
the Company operates, business model etc., so as to enable 
them to take well-informed decisions in �mely manner.  The 
details of the Familiariza�on Programme conducted are 
available on the website of the Company:
h�ps://aymsyntex.com/investors/corporate-governance/policies-code-compliances

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has Code of Conduct for Board members and 
Senior Management personnel. A copy of the Code of conduct 
has been placed on the Company’s website for informa�on of all 
the members of the Board and management personnel. 

All Board members and senior management personnel have 
affirmed compliance of the same.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF 
WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION 
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and 
harassment free workplace for every individual working in 
Company’s premises through various interven�ons and 
prac�ces. The Company always endeavors to create and provide 
an environment that is free from discrimina�on and harassment 
including sexual harassment. 

The Company has in place a robust policy on preven�on of 
sexual harassment at workplace which is in line with the 
requirements of POSH Act. The Company has complied with 
provisions rela�ng to the cons�tu�on of Internal Complaints 
Commi�ee (‘ICC’) under POSH Act. ICC has been set up to 
redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All 
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees) 
are covered under this policy.

During the year under review, no cases of sexual harassment 
were reported in your Company. During the year, the Company 
has not received any complaints. There are no complaints 
pending as at the end of the financial year.  

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In terms of Regula�on 34 of the Securi�es Exchange Board of 
India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015 (hereina�er “Lis�ng Regula�ons”), a Report 
on Corporate Governance along with Compliance Cer�ficate 
issued by Statutory Auditors of the Company is a�ached as 
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Annexure F and forms integral part of this Report (hereina�er 
“Corporate Governance Report”). 

Management Discussion and Analysis Statement is separately 
given in the Annual Report. 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE 
REGULATORS / COURTS / TRIBUNALS

No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators 
or Courts or Tribunals which impacts the going concern status 
and Company’s opera�ons in future.

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

No applica�on was made, or any proceedings filed against the 
Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016; 
hence the requirement to disclose the details of applica�on 
made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016, against the Company during the year 
along with their status as at the end of the financial year is not 
applicable.

MISCELLANEOUS

During the year under Report, there was no change in the 
general nature of business of the Company.

No material change or commitment has occurred which would 
have affected the financial posi�on of the Company between 
the end of the financial year to which the financial statements 
relate and the date of the report.

During the year under Report, no funds were raised through 
preferen�al allotment or qualified ins�tu�onal placement.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The informa�on and statements in the Management’s 
Discussion & Analysis regarding the objec�ves, expecta�ons or 
an�cipa�ons may be forward-looking within the meaning of 
applicable securi�es, laws and regula�ons. Actual results might 
differ materially from those either expressed or implied in the 
statement depending on the circumstances. 
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1. Date of shareholders approval 28th February 2018 5th March, 2021 5th March, 2021

2. Op�ons granted 7,81,700 Equity shares of the  6,00,000 Equity shares of the  3,90,000 Equity shares of the 
face value of Re. 10/- each  face value of Re. 10/- each face value of Re. 10/- each

3. Exercise Price per stock op�on Rs. 10/-  Rs. 10/-  Rs. 10/- 

4. Ves�ng requirements  ESOPs will vest not earlier that  ESOPs will vest not earlier that  ESOPs will vest not earlier that
One (1) year from the date of  One (1) year from the date of  One (1) year from the date of
Grant Grant  Grant

5. Maximum term of op�ons granted  5 years from the date of Ves�ng 5 years from the date of Ves�ng 6  years from the date of Ves�ng

6. Source of shares  Primary  Primary  Primary 

7. Op�ons movement during the year 

Par�culars  Details  

Number of op�ons outstanding at the  3,15,600 Equity shares of the  6,00,000 Equity shares of the  3,90,000 Equity shares of the 
beginning of the year  face value of Re. 10/- each face value of Re. 10/- each face value of Re. 10/- each

Number of op�ons granted during the  NIL NIL NIL
year  

Number of op�ons forfeited/lapsed/ 7,560 NIL 20,000
Cancelled  during the year 

Number of op�ons vested during  1,02,680 60,000 37,000
the year  

Number of op�ons exercised during  1,02,680 60,000 37,000
the year  

Number of shares arising as a result  1,02,680 60,000 37,000
of exercise of op�ons  

Money realizes by exercise of op�ons  Rs. 10,26,800 Rs. 6,00,000 Rs. 3,70,000
(INR), if scheme is implemented  
directly by the Company  

Loan repaid by the Trust during the  NA NA NA
year from exercise price received  

Number of op�ons outstanding at  2,05,360 Equity shares of the  5,40,000 Equity shares of the  3,33,000 Equity shares of the
the end of the year  face value of Re. 10/- each face value of Re. 10/- each face value of Re. 10/- each

Number of stock exercisable at the  NIL NIL NIL
end of the year  

8. Varia�on of terms of op�ons N.A. N.A. N.A.

9. Money realized by exercise of Op�ons Rs. 10,26,800 Rs. 6,00,000 Rs. 3,70,000

10. Total Number of Op�ons in force 2,05,360 5,40,000 3,33,000

11. Employee-wise details of 
Op�ons granted to  

(i) Senior Managerial Personnel/ KMP-46900 KMP-200000 NIL
Key Managerial Personnel 

(ii) Any other employee who 3 Employees - 2,55,000 4 Employees - 6,00,000 9 Employees – 3,90,000
receives a grant, in any one year, 
of Op�ons amoun�ng to 5% or 
more of Op�ons granted during
that year 

(iii) Iden�fied employees who were NIL NIL NIL 
granted Op�ons, during any 
one year, equal to or exceeding 
1% of the issued capital 
(excluding outstanding warrants 
and conversions) of the
Company at the �me of grant 

A. Relevant disclosures in terms of the ‘Guidance note on accoun�ng for employee share-based payments’:

The disclosure is provided in Notes 50 to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023.

ANNEXURE A
Disclosure of Informa�on in respect of Employees Stock Op�on Scheme:

Sr. No. Par�culars Employee Stock  Employee Stock  Employee Stock 
Op�ons Scheme-2018 –  Op�ons Scheme-2021 - Op�ons Scheme-2021 – 
Grant I  Grant I   Grant II 
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Sr. No. Par�culars Employee Stock  Employee Stock  Employee Stock 
Op�ons Scheme-2018 –  Op�ons Scheme-2021 - Op�ons Scheme-2021 – 
Grant I  Grant I ( 24.04.2021)  Grant II ( 29.01.2022)

12. Diluted Earnings per Share (EPS)  
pursuant to issue of shares on  Rs 1.41 per share Rs 1.41 per share Rs 1.41 per share
exercise of op�ons calculated in  (as on 31.03.2023) (as on 31.03.2023) (as on 31.03.2023)
accordance with Indian  
Accoun�ng Standard (Ind AS) 102 

13. Weighted average exercise price 
and weighted average fair value of 
op�ons whose exercise price equals 
or exceeds or is less than market 
price of the stock-   

 a)  Weighted average exercise  Rs.10 Rs.10 Rs.10
price  per stock op�on 

b) Weighted Average Fair Value Rs. 34.58 Rs. 34.25 Rs. 127.60
of op�ons 

14. Method and significant 
assump�ons used to es�mate the 
fair value of Op�ons granted 
during the year  

i) Method Adopts the Black  Adopts the Black Adopts the Black
Scholes Model  Scholes Model  Scholes Model 

ii) Significant Assump�ons: a) Weighted average a) Weighted average a) Weighted average 
risk-free interest rate risk-free interest rate risk-free interest rate

b) Weighted average b) Weighted average b) Weighted average 
remaining contractual remaining contractual remaining contractual
life of op�ons life of op�ons life of op�ons 
outstanding  (years)

c) Weighted average c) Weighted average c) Weighted average 
expected vola�lity expected vola�lity expected vola�lity

d) Weighted average d) Weighted average d) Weighted average
expected dividends expected dividends expected dividends

e) Weighted average e) Weighted average e) Weighted average 
market price market price market price

                FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sd/-

 Rajesh R Mandawewala

Place: Mumbai Chairman

Date: 05/05/2023 DIN: 00007179
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1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy:

To spend at least 2% average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years calculated
in accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 198 of the Companies Act 2013 in the sectors as men�oned in schedule VII of the
Act.

To give preference to local area and areas around where it operates, for spending the amount earmarked for corporate social
responsibility ac�vi�es.

List of ac�vi�es to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 as men�oned in the
policy is placed on website of the Company at htpps://www.aymsyntex.com

2. The composi�on of the CSR Commi�ee:

ANNEXURE B

CSR Ac�vi�es for the Financial year commencing on or a�er 1st April 2022

1 Mr. Atul Desai Chairman 1 1

2 Mr. Rajesh R. Mandawewala Member 1 1

3 Mr. Abhishek R. Mandawewala Member 1 1

4 Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala Member 1 1

Sr. No. Name of the Director Designa�on / Nature of Number of mee�ng of CSR Number of mee�ng of CSR
Directorship Commi�ee held during  Commi�ee a�ended during 

the year the year

3. Provide the web-link where Composi�on of CSR commi�ee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on
the website of the company: htpps://www.aymsyntex.com

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable.

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any.

(Rs. In Lakhs)

1 2022-23 15.59 NA

Sr. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off from Amount required to be  set-off for
preceding financial years (in Rs.) the financial year, if any (in Rs.) 

6. Average net profit of the Company for  2019-20 , 2020-21 and 2021-22 : Rs. 3,802.84 Lakhs

7. a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sec�on 135(5): Rs. 72.41  Lakhs

b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or ac�vi�es of the previous financial years: NIL

c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Rs. 15.59 Lakhs

d) Total CSR obliga�on for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs. 56.82  Lakhs

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial year:

79.05 Nil NA Nil Nil NA

Total Amount  Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Spent for the Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII as 
Financial Year Account as per sec�on 135 (6) per second proviso to sec�on 135 (5)
(in Rs. Lakhs) 

Amount Date of transfer Name of the  Fund Amount Date of transfer   
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State District Name CSR Reg. No.

1. Implemen�ng  (ii) Promo�ng YES Mahara Palghar/ 23.29 YES NA NA
and suppor�ng  Educa�on shtra/  Silvassa 
educa�on  U.T of  
program Dadra  

& Nagar  
Haveli  
Mahara 
shtra 

2. Provision of  (ii) Promo�ng YES Mahara Palghar/ 17.85 YES NA NA
safe drinking  Healthcare shtra/  Silvassa
water U.T of 

Dadra  
& Nagar 
Haveli 
Mahara

3. Covid-19  (ii) Promo�ng YES Mahara Palghar/ 19.08 YES NA NA
Vaccina�on/ Healthcare shtra/  Silvassa
Vaccina�on  U.T 
Mobile Van of Dadra  

& Nagar 
Haveli 
Mahara
shtra 

4 CSR  Administra�on Mahara Palghar/ 3.23 YES NA NA
monitoring  Expenses shtra/ Silvassa 
and  U.T. of
administra�ve  Dadra &
exp including  Nagr
salaries.  Haveli

Mahara
shtra

Total 63.46 YES NA NA

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year - NA

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
SI.No. Name of Item  Local  Loca�on of Project Amount Amount  Amount Mode of Mode of 

 the  from the  area the project.  Dura�on allocated spent  transferred  implemen- implementa�on
Project. list of  (Yes/No). for the in the  to Unspent  ta�on ta�on Through

ac�vi�es in  project current  CSR Account  Direct implemen�ng
Schedule VII  (in Rs.). financial  for  the  (Yes/No.) Agency
to the Act. Year  project as per 

(in Rs.). Sec�on 135(6) 
 (in Rs.).

State District Name CSR Reg no.

1 

2 

Total 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
SI.No. Name of Item  Local  Loca�on of Amount  Mode of Mode of 

 the  from the  area the project. spent  implementa�on implementa�on
Project. list of  (Yes/No). for the Direct Through

ac�vi�es in  project (Yes/No.) implemen�ng
Schedule VII  (in Rs.) Agency
to the Act. 
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(d) Amount spent in Administra�ve Overheads- Rs.3.23  Lakhs

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable- NIL

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)- Rs. 63.46 Lakhs

(g) Excess amount for set off- Rs. 3 Lakhs

SI. Par�cular Amount 
No. (in Rs. Lakhs)

i. Two percent of average net profit of the company as persec�on 135(5) 72.41

ii. Total amount spent for the Financial Year 79.05

iii. Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 6.64

iv. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes orac�vi�es of the previous financial years, if any NIL

v. Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years[(iii)-(iv)] 6.64

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NA

SI.No Preceding Amount Amount  Amount transferred to any fund   Amount
Financial transferred to spent in specified under Schedule VII   tremaining 
Year. Unspent CSR  the repor�ng as per sec�on 135(6), if any.  to be spent  

Account under  Financial  in succeeding  
sec�on 135 (6) Year(in Rs.)  financial 
(in Rs.) years. (in Rs.)

Name of the  Amount  Date of 
Fund (in Rs). transfer 

1 

2 

3 

Total 

1 

2 

3 

Total 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): NA

SI.No Project ID Name of  Financial Year Project  Total amount Amount spent Cumula�ve  Status of the
the project in which the  dura�on allocated for on the project amount spent project - 

project was the project in the repor�ng at the end of Completed
commenced (in Rs.) Financial Year repor�ng  / on going

(in Rs.) Financial  
year 
(in Rs.) 

10. In case of crea�on or acquisi�on of capital asset, furnish the details rela�ng to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the
financial year (asset-wise details).

(a) Date of crea�on or acquisi�on of capital asset(s): NA

(b) Amount of CSR spent for crea�on or acquisi�on of capital asset : NA

(c) Details of the en�ty or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc. : NA

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and loca�on of the capital asset). : NA

11. Specify the reason, if the Company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit as per Sec�on 135(5).- NA

For AYM Syntex Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Rajesh R. Mandawewala Atul Desai
Chairman Chairman CSR Commi�ee
DIN-00007179 DIN-00019443
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ANNEXURE C
FORM NO. AOC-1

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of 

Subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-sec�on (3) of sec�on 129 

read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

BOARD’S REPORT

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Informa�on in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs)

S No. Par�culars Details

1 Sl. No. 1

2 Name of the subsidiary AYM Tex�les Private Limited

3 Repor�ng period for the subsidiary concerned, if different 
from the holding company’s repor�ng period NA

4 Repor�ng currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of 
the relevant financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries INR (Indian Rupee)

5 Share capital 1,00,000

6 Reserves & surplus (54.31)

7 Total assets 75.69

8 Total Liabili�es 30.00

9 Investments -

10 Turnover -

11 Profit before taxa�on (54.31)

12 Provision for taxa�on -

13 Profit a�er taxa�on (54.31)

14 Proposed Dividend -

15 % of shareholding 100%

Sr. No. Name of Associates / Joint Ventures Details

1 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

2 Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end

No.

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture

Extend of Holding %

3 Descrip�on of how there is significant influence

4 Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated

5 Net-worth a�ributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet

6 Profit / Loss for the year

i. Considered in Consolida�on

ii. Not Considered in Consolida�on

Notes: The following informa�on shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence opera�ons: AYM Tex�les Private Limited

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Not Applicable

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Sec�on 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures 

66



BOARD’S REPORT

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence opera�ons: Not Applicable

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  

Rajesh Mandawewala Abhishek Mandawewala

Chairman CEO and Managing Director

DIN 00007179 DIN 00737785

Himanshu Dhaddha Ashitosh Sheth

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place:  Mumbai

Date: May 05, 2023



ANNEXURE D

FORM NO. MR-3

Secretarial Audit Report
stFor the Financial year ended March 31 , 2023

[Pursuant to sec�on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
AYM Syntex Limited 
Survey No. 394(P), Plot No.1,
Village Saily, Silvassa,
U.T. of Dadra & Nagar Haveli

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable 
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate prac�ces by 
AYM Syntex Limited (CIN - L99999DN1983PLC000045) (hereina�er 
called “The Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 
that provided us a reasonable basis for evalua�ng the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verifica�on of the Company’s books, papers, minute 
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company and also the informa�on provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorized representa�ves during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, I hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, 
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st 
March, 2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 
and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance 
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
repor�ng made hereina�er:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial 
year ended on 31st March, 2023 according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made
thereunder;

ii. The Securi�es Contract (Regula�on) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the
rules made thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regula�ons and Bye-laws
framed thereunder;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and
regula�ons made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings;

v. The following Regula�ons and Guidelines prescribed under the
Securi�es and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

a. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Substan�al
Acquisi�on of Shares and Takeovers) Regula�ons, 2011;

b. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Prohibi�on of
Insider Trading) Regula�ons, 2015;

c. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital
and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2018 (Not
Applicable to the Company during the financial year under
review);

d. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regula�ons, 2021;

e. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue and
Lis�ng of Debt Securi�es) Regula�ons, 2008 (Not
Applicable to the Company during the financial year under

review);

f. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an
Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regula�on 1993 regarding
the Act and dealing with client (Not Applicable to the
Company during the financial year under review);

g. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Delis�ng of
Equity Shares) Regula�ons, 2021 (Not Applicable to the
Company during the financial year under review);

h. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of
Securi�es) Regula�ons, 2018 (Not Applicable to the
Company during the financial year under review); and

i. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng
Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons,
2015.

vi. The Management has iden�fied the compliances of the following
laws as specifically applicable to the Company:

a. Air (Preven�on and Control of Pollu�on) Act, 1981 and
Rules issued by the State Pollu�on Control Boards;

b. Contract Labour (Regula�on and Aboli�on) Act, 1970;

c. Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions
Act, 1952;

d. Employee’s State Insurance Act, 1948;

e. Environment Protec�on Act, 1986;

f. Equal Remunera�on Act, 1976;

g. Factories Act, 1948;

h. Industrial Dispute Act, 1947;

i.  Maternity Benefits Act, 1961;

j.  Minimum Wages Act, 1948;

k. Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;

l.  Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;

m.  Payment of Wages Act, 1936;

n. Water (Preven�on and Control of Pollu�on) Act, 1974 and
rules issued by the State Pollu�on Control Boards.

Having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company, I 
further report that on the examina�on of the relevant documents and 
records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has 
complied with the same.   

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the 
Secretarial Standards issued by the Ins�tute of Companies Secretaries 
of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the 
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regula�ons, Guidelines, standards etc. 
men�oned above.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly cons�tuted with proper 
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Balance of Execu�ve Directors, Non-Execu�ve Directors and 
Independent Directors. The changes in the composi�on of the 
Board of Directors took place during the period under review 
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate No�ce is given to all directors to schedule the Board 
Mee�ngs, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at 
least 7 days in advance and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further informa�on and clarifica�ons on the agenda 
items before the mee�ng and for meaningful par�cipa�on at 
the mee�ng. 

All decisions at Board Mee�ngs and Commi�ee Mee�ngs are 
carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the 
mee�ngs of the Board of Directors or Commi�ee of the Board as 
the case may be. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes 
in the Company commensurate with the size and opera�ons of 
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
rules, laws, regula�ons and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period:

i. The Company has allo�ed 97,000 Equity Shares pursuant
to exercise of ESOP op�ons by employees under AYM
Employee Stock Op�on Scheme 2021.

ii. Members of the Company at the AGM held on September
28, 2022 have approved the re-appointment of Mrs.
Khushboo Abhishek Mandawewala (DIN: 06942156) as
Whole-Time Director of the Company for a period of 5
years with effect from July 29, 2022.

iii. Members of the Company on March 17, 2023, through
postal ballot have approved the revised remunera�on of
Mr. Abhishek Rajesh Mandawewala, Managing Director &
CEO and Mrs. Khushboo Abhishek Mandawewala, Whole
Time Director of the Company.

Hitesh J. Gupta  
Prac�cing Company Secretary

M No. A33684
CP No.12722

UDIN:  A033684D000285694

Date:   05th May 2023
Place: Mumbai

Note: This report is to be read with my le�er of even date which 
is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE - I’ and forms an integral part of this 
report.

To, 
The Members,
AYM Syntex Limited 
Survey No. 394(P), Plot No.1,
Village Saily, Silvassa,
U.T. of Dadra & Nagar Haveli

My report of even date is to be read along with this le�er.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of
the management of the company. My responsibility is to
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on
my audit.

2. I have followed the audit prac�ces and processes as were
appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verifica�on was done on test basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the
processes and prac�ces, I followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of
financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management
representa�on about the compliance of laws, rules and
regula�ons and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other
applicable laws, rules, regula�ons, standards is the
responsibility of management. My examina�on was
limited to the verifica�on of procedures on test basis.

 6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to
the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or
effec�veness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the company.

Hitesh J. Gupta  
Prac�cing Company Secretary

M No. A33684
CP No.12722

UDIN:  A033684D000285694

Date: 05th May 2023
Place: Mumbai
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1. The ra�o of the remunera�on of Execu�ve Director to the median  Mr. Abhishek R. Mandawewala 87.7
remunera�on of the employees of the Company for the financial year (Managing Director & CEO) 

Mr. Khushboo A. Mandawewala 10.7
(Whole Time Director) 

2. The percentage increase in remunera�on of Execu�ve Director,  Mr. Abhishek R. Mandawewala 152.5
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Execu�ve Officer, Company Secretary  (Managing Director & CEO) 
in the financial year. 

Mr. Khushboo A. Mandawewala -3.3
(Whole Time Director)

Mr. Himanshu Dhaddha 31.2
(Chief Financial Officer) 

Mr. Ashitosh Sheth -5.4
(Company Secretary) 

i. The percentage increase in the median remunera�on of employees in 
the financial year. 12.5

ii. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as 
on March 31, 2023. 1131

iii. Average percen�le increase already made in the salaries of employees  7.2
other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year and 
its comparison with the percen�le increase in the managerial 
remunera�on and jus�fica�on thereof and point out if there are 
any excep�onal circumstances for increase in the managerial  
remunera�on. 

iv. Affirma�on that the remunera�on is as per the remunera�on policy  Affirmed
of the Company 

ANNEXURE E

Disclosure of Remunera�on under Sec�on 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment and 
Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Sr.  Requirement Informa�on Ra�o
No 
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Note: 1. Mr. Abhishek R. Mandawewala, Managing Director & CEO and Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala, Whole �me Director of 
the Company has not received any remunera�on from Mandawewala Enterprises Limited, the holding Company.

2. Remunera�on paid includes value of ESOPs received under the Company's ESOP Scheme, 2018 & 2021 and commission
on profits paid during the year.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Rajesh R Mandawewala
Chairman
DIN: 00007179

Place: Mumbai
Date: 05/05/2023



ANNEXURE F

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

AYM Syntex Limited believes that for a Company to succeed on a sustained basis, it must maintain global standards of corporate
conduct towards its employees, shareholders, consumers and society. The primary objec�ve is to create and adhere to a
corporate culture of consciousness, transparency and openness.

 2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

a) Composi�on

Present strength of the Board of Directors is 6. Details of composi�on of the exis�ng Board of Directors as on March 31,
2023 is given below:

Sr. Name of the Director Category No. of Directorship  No.  of shares  Member /  No. of Board  A�endance
No. in other  and  conver�ble  Chairman in  Mee�ngs  at last AGM

Companies instruments  No. of Commi�ees  A�ended  
held by  in  Companies# (01/04/22 to  
Non-Execu�ve  31/03/23) 
Director 

Public Private

1.  Mr. Rajesh R. Mandawewala P,NE,C 08^ 07 Nil (1)M 3 No

2. Mr. Abhishek R. Mandawewala P, E 01^ 08 Nil (1) C/(1)M 4 Yes

3. Mr. Atul Desai I, S, NE 06^ 00 30 Equity shares (4)C/(3)M 4 Yes

4. Mr. Mohan Tandon I, NE 01 Nil Nil (1)C/(2)M 4 Yes

5. Mr. K. H. Viswanathan I, NE 06^ 01 Nil (5)C/(4)M 4 Yes

6 Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala P, WTD, W 2^ 3 Nil Nil 4 Yes

^  Includes unlisted public companies.

# For the purpose of considering the limit of the commi�ees on which a director can serve, all public limited companies, whether 
listed or not, are included and all other companies including private limited companies, foreign companies and companies 
under Sec�on 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 are excluded. 

Further for the purpose of coun�ng membership in Board Commi�ee of other Companies, Chairmanship/ Membership of the 
Audit Commi�ee and the Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee alone are considered.

Abbrevia�ons:

P = Promoter, E = Execu�ve Director, NE = Non - Execu�ve Director, I = Independent Director, W= Woman Director, S = 
Shareholders, C = Chairman, M = Member, WTD=Whole �me Director.

BOARD’S REPORT



BOARD’S REPORT

b) The names of the listed en��es where the director is Director and category of directorship and matrix of the
skills/exper�se/competence iden�fied by the board of directors as required in the context of its business(es) and sector(s)
for it to func�on effec�vely and those actually available with the board and directors who have such skills / exper�se /
competence. Details of current members of the Board is given below:

Sr. Name of the Director Skill / exper�se / competence Name of Listed Entry Category
No.

1 Mr. Rajesh R Mandawewala Leading figure in tex�les and Steel, believes  Welspun India Limited  Execu�ve Vice Chairman
in drivinginnova�on through Con�nuous AYM Syntex Limited  Director and Non
research and product developments, Strategy  Execu�ve Chairman
and Business Management Welspun Corp Limited  Director

Welspun Enterprises Limited  Director  

2. Mr. Abhishek R Mandawewala Strategy and Business management, Excellent AYM Syntex Limited Managing Director &
managerial skill, leadershipquality CEO

3. Mr. Atul Desai Li�ga�on & Arbitra�on AYM Syntex Limited Independent  Director
Welspun Specialty  Independent  Director
Solu�ons Limited 
Welspun Investments  Independent  Director
and Commercials Limited 
TCFC Finance Limited Independent  Director
JSW Holdings Limited Independent  Director

4. Mr. Mohan Tandon Professional with experience in AYM Syntex Limited Independent  Director
Organiza�on Restructuring and designing  Welspun Enterprises Limited Independent  Director 
Produc�vity oriented Incen�ve Schemes 

5. Mr. K H Viswanathan  Corporate Tax and Legal, Transac�on advisory  AYM Syntex Limited Independent  Director
and structuring, Internal, Management and  Welspun Corp Limited Independent Director
Due-diligence, audits, formula�on of business  
strategy, mergers and acquisi�ons etc 

6. Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala So�ware engineer, strategic, Business development  AYM Syntex Limited Whole �me Director
skill and excellent leadership quality 

c) In the table below, the specific areas of focus or exper�se of individual Board members have been highlighted:

Name of the Director Business Leadership Informa�on General & Finance,  Corporate
Development Skill Technology Commercial  Taxa�on and Governance

Laws Insurance 

Mr. Rajesh R Mandawewala      

Mr. Abhishek Mandawewala    -  -

Mr. Atul Desai - - -   

Mr. Mohan Tandon - - -   

Mr. K H Viswanathan - -    

Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala    - - -

Note: These skills/competencies are broad-based, encompassing several areas of exper�se/experience. Each Director may possess 
varied combina�ons of skills/experience within the described set of parameters, and it is not necessary that all Directors possess all 
skills/experience listed therein. 
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d) Details of Date of Board Mee�ngs:

Four mee�ngs of the Board of Directors were held during
the financial year 2022-23 on following dates:

May 7,  2021 August  10, 2023

November 12, 2022 February  4, 2023

e) Disclosure of rela�onship between Directors inter se:

i. Mr. Rajesh Mandawewala, Chairman of the company
is father of Mr. Abhishek Mandawewala, Managing
Director & CEO and father-in-Law of Mrs. Khushboo A
Mandawewala, Whole Time Director of the
Company.

ii. Mr. Abhishek Rajesh Mandawewala, Managing
Director  and CEO is  son of  Mr.  Rajesh R.
Mandawewala, Director and spouse of Mrs.
Khushboo A Mandawewala, Whole �me Director of
the Company.

iii. Mrs. Khushboo Abhishek Mandawewala, Whole �me
Director of the Company, is wife of Mr. Abhishek
Rajesh Mandawewala, Managing Director & CEO,
and daughter-in-law of Mr. Rajesh Mandawewala,
the Chairman of the Company.

f) The details of familiariza�on program (for Independent
Directors) are disclosed on the Company’s website and a
web link thereto is
h�ps://www.aymsyntex.com/investors/corporate-governance/policies-code-compliances

g) It is confirmed that in the opinion of the board, the
independent directors fulfill the condi�ons specified in
these regula�ons and are independent of the
management.

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Commi�ee consists of the following 3 Independent
st Non-Execu�ve Directors (All financially literate) as on 31

March 2023.

a. Mr. Atul Desai - Chairman

b. Mr. K. H. Viswanathan - Member

c. Mr. Mohan Tandon  - Member

Mr. Ashitosh Sheth, Secretary of the Company also acts as
a Secretary to the Commi�ee.

Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference s�pulated by the Board of Directors to the 
Audit Commi�ee are as contained under Regula�on 18 of SEBI 
(LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 and sec�on 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

Four mee�ngs of Audit Commi�ee of Board of Directors were held 
during the financial year 2022-23 on following dates:

May 7,  2022 August 19, 2022

November 12, 2022 February 4, 2023

The details of a�endance of members of Audit Commi�ee are as 
follows:

Sr.  Name of the Member Designa�on Mee�ngs 
No. a�ended

1 Mr. Atul Desai Chairman 4

2 Mr. K. H. Viswanathan Member 4

3 Mr. Mohan Tandon Member 4

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

a. The terms of reference s�pulated by the Board of
Directors to the Nomina�on and Remunera�on
Commi�ee are as contained under regula�on 19 of SEBI
(LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 and sec�on 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

b. Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee of the Board
of Directors of the Company consists of the following
members:

1. Mr. Atul Desai - Chairman

2. Mr. M. K. Tandon - Member

3. Mr. K. H. Viswanathan - Member

c. Four mee�ngs of Nomina�on and Remunera�on
Commi�ee of Board of Directors were held during the
year under review on following dates:

May 7, 2022

November 7, 2022

January 3, 2023

The details of a�endance of members of the commi�ee are as 
follows:

Sr.  Name of the Member Designa�on Mee�ngs 
No. a�ended

1 Mr. Atul Desai Chairman 3

2 Mr. K. H. Viswanathan Member 3

3 Mr. Mohan Tandon Member 3

d. Performance Evalua�on Criteria

i. The evalua�on of individual directors would have
two parts, viz. (a) quan�ta�ve data in the form of
number of mee�ngs of the board and commi�ees
a�ended as against the total number of such
mee�ngs held and (b) qualita�ve data coming out
of the process of filling in a ques�onnaire by the
directors, which would be subjec�ve, by its very
nature.

ii. In order to induce the respondents to give their
frank views, the instruments would be so designed
that only �cks would be required, with no
provision for descrip�on and the directors would
not be required to iden�fy themselves below the
filled in ques�onnaire.
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iii. The result of the evalua�on would be discussed
threadbare by the Board and remedial ac�ons
taken.

iv. In case of individual directors’ performance falling
below a threshold, there would be a provision for
individual counselling by the Chairman of the
Company.

5. REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS

a. There are no pecuniary rela�onships or transac�ons
with the Non-Execu�ve Directors vis-a-vis the
Company.

b. Criteria of making payments to Non-Execu�ve
Directors:

The Company pays si�ng fees to Non-Execu�ve
Directors for a�ending mee�ngs of the Board of
Directors,  Audit Commi�ee, Nomina�on and
Remunera�on Commi�ee, Finance Commi�ee,
Stakeholder Rela�onship Commi�ee, Independent
Directors mee�ng, Corporate Social Responsibility
Commi�ee, fee for a�ending General Mee�ngs etc.

During the year, the Non-Execu�ve Directors had no
pecuniary rela�onship or transac�ons with the
Company, other than si�ng fees, commission and
reimbursement of expenses incurred by them for the
purpose of a�ending mee�ngs of the Company.

Details of the remunera�on paid to Non-Execu�ve
Directors during the year are as under:

(Rs.in Lakhs)

Name of Directors Si�ng Fees

Mr. Atul Desai 5.39

Mr. K. H.Viswanathan 4.55

Mr. Mohan Tandon 4.55

Total 14.49

c. To recommend payment of Remunera�on to Execu�ve
Director / Managing Director and CEO/Whole �me
Director:

The details of Remunera�on paid/payable to Managing
Director & CEO and Whole �me Director during the year
are men�oned below:

(Rs.in Lakhs p.a)

Mr. Abhishek R.  Mrs. Khushboo
Mandawewala  Mandawewala 

(MD & CEO) (WTD)

Salaries and allowances 1,60,54,200 29,85,483

Gratuity 4,32,900 64,644

Leave encashment 0 0

Contribu�on to 

Provident  Fund 10,80,000 1,56,960

Commission 83,27,848 0

TOTAL 2,58,94,948 32,07,087

Service contracts From 1/8/ 21 to  From 29/07/19 to 
31/07/24 28/07/22

No�ce period  3 months 3 months

Severance fees 0 0

Stock op�on 0 0

Note: 1. The Remunera�on is within the limit as approved by 
NRC and Board for the period From August 1, 2021, to 
July 31, 2024 and as approved by the Shareholder of the 
Company vide special resolu�on passed on 

2. The Remunera�on does not include commission
accrued during year 2022-23 and payable in  2023-24.

d. Mee�ng of Independent Directors

 The Independent Directors of the Company shall hold at
least one mee�ng in a year without the a�endance of
non- independent  d irectors  and members  of
management. The mee�ng of Independent Directors
was held on March 16, 2023 and the following points
were discussed:

- reviewed the performance of non-independent
directors, individual directors, commi�ees of Board
and the Board as a whole;

- reviewed the performance of the Chairperson of the
Company, taking into account the views of Execu�ve
Directors and Non-Execu�ve Directors;

- assessed the quality, quan�ty and �meliness of flow
of informa�on between the Company, management
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to
effec�vely and reasonably perform their du�es.

6. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

a. Name of Non-Execu�ve Director heading the Commi�ee
- Mr. Atul Desai

b. Name and designa�on of Compliance Officer-
Mr. Ashitosh Sheth – Company Secretary

c. Number of shareholders complaints received during the
year -2

d. Number not solved to the sa�sfac�on of shareholders-
Nil

e. Number of complaints pending as on March 31, 2023- Nil

Details of Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee Mee�ng:

One mee�ng was held during the year i.e. March 16, 2023.

Sr. Name of the Member Designa�on  Mee�ngs 
No. a�ended

1 Mr. Atul Desai Chairman 1

2 Mr. R. R. Mandawewala Member 1

3 Mr. Abhishek R. 
Mandawewala Member 1
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7. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE (CSR)

In compliance with the provisions of Sec�on 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company cons�tuted a Corporate
Social Responsibility Commi�ee comprising of Four Directors.
One mee�ng was held during the year i.e. May 7, 2022

a) Composi�on of Corporate Social Responsibility
Commi�ee:

The Commi�ee comprises of:

1. Mr. Atul Desai - Chairman

2. Mr. Rajesh Mandawewala - Member

3. Mr. Abhishek Mandawewala - Member

4. Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala - Member 

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the 
Commi�ee.

b) Terms of reference of the Commi�ee, inter alia include
the following:

To formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy indica�ng ac�vi�es to
be undertaken by the Company in compliance with the
provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder.

Our social vision has been enshrined in following 4S
which have become the Guiding Principles of our CSR
ini�a�ves – Swasthya, Swabhiman, Sudhar and Srish�.

c) Mee�ngs and A�endance:

During the year under review, the Corporate Social
Responsibility Commi�ee met once on  May 7, 2022.

Sr. Name of the Member Designa�on  Mee�ngs 
No.  a�ended

1 Mr. Atul Desai Chairman 1

2 Mr. R. R. Mandawewala Member 1

3 Mr. Abhishek R. Mandawewala Member 1

4 Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala  Member 1

8. GENERAL BODY MEETING

a) Details of the last three Annual General Mee�ngs held
are  given as under:

Financial Date  Time Loca�on
Year

2019-20 29/09/2020 12.30 P.M. 

Through Video Conferencing Deemed 

to be Survey No. 394(P), 
Village Saily, Silvassa, 

(U. T. of Dadra & Nagar Haveli)

2020-21 29/09/2021 12.30 P.M. 

Through Video Conferencing Deemed 

to be Survey No. 374/1/1, 

Village Saily, Silvassa, 

(U. T. of Dadra & Nagar Haveli)

2021-22 28/9/2022 12.00 P.M. 
Through Video Conferencing Deemed 
to be Survey No. 374/1/1, 
Village  Saily,  Silvassa, 
(U. T. of Dadra & Nagar Haveli)

b) Special Resolu�ons passed in the last three Annual
General Mee�ngs are as under:

Financial Date  Items
Year 

2020-21 29/09/2021 (i) Re-appointment of Mr. Abhishek 
Mandawewala as Managing 
Director & Chief Execu�ve Officer 
and Fixing of his Remunera�on

2021-22 28/09/2022 Nil

2022-23 17/03/2023 (i) Approval of remunera�on to 
(Postal ballot) Mr. Abhishek Rajesh 

Mandawewala, Managing 
Director & CEO

(ii) Approval of remunera�on
payable to Mrs. Khushboo
Mangawewala, Whole Time
Director

Procedure adopted for Postal Ballot 

The Postal Ballot was carried out as per the provisions of Sec�ons 
108 and 110 and other applicable provisions of the Act, read with 
the Rules framed thereunder and General Circular Nos. 14/2020 
dated April 8, 2020, 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 22/2020 dated 
June 15, 2020, 33/2020 dated September 28, 2020, 39/2020 
dated December 31, 2020, 10/2021 dated June 23, 2021, 20/2021 
dated December 8, 2021, and 3/2022 dated May 5, 2022 issued 
by the MCA. 

At present, there is no proposal to pass resolu�on through postal 
ballot. 

9. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

a. The quarterly Un-audited Financial Results and Yearly
Audited Financial Results of the Company are sent to
the BSE Limited and Na�onal Stock Exchange
immediately a�er they are approved by the Board of
Directors in their Board mee�ngs.

b. The quarterly Un-audited Financial Results and Yearly
Audited Financial Results of the Company has been
adver�sed in Newspapers, details of which are as
men�oned herein below:

Quarter/Year End Date of Publica�on Name of Newspaper

31.03.2022 Sunday,  The Financial Express (E), 
May 8, 2022 Ahmedabad edi�on

Monday,  The Financial Express (G), 
May 9, 2022 Ahmedabad edi�on 

30.06.2022 Thursday, The Financial Express (E), 
August 11, 2022 Ahmedabad edi�on

Thursday,  The Financial Express (G), 
August 11, 2022 Ahmedabad edi�on

30.09.2022 Sunday,  The Financial Express (E), 
November 13, 2022 Ahmedabad edi�on 

Monday,  The Financial Express (G), 
November 14, 2022 Ahmedabad edi�on

31.12.2022 Sunday,  The Financial Express (E), 
February 5, 2023 Ahmedabad edi�on 

Monday,  The Financial Express (G), 
February 6, 2023 Ahmedabad edi�on
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c. Website: h�ps://www.aymsyntex.com

d. Whether it also displays official news releases: No official
news has been released during the year.

e. Presenta�on made to ins�tu�onal investors or to the
analysts: None

10. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

a. 40th Annual General  :
Mee�ng
Date : Friday, September 29, 2023
Time : 12.00 Noon (IST)
Venue Plot no. 1, Survey No. 

374/1/1,
 Village saily, Silvassa, U. T. of 
Dadra & Nagar Haveli - 
396230

b. Financial year : April 2022 to March 2023 

c. Dividend payment date : No Dividend recommended
/ declared during the year

d. Lis�ng on Stock : i. Na�onal Stock Exchange
Exchanges of India Limited (NSE), 

Plot no. C/1, G Block, 
Bandra-Kurla Complex, 
Bandra Kurla Complex 
Rd, Bandra East, Mumbai 
400051. 

ii. Bombay Stock Exchange
Limited (BSE), P. J. Tower,
D a l a l  S t r e e t ,  F o r t ,
Mumbai 400001.

iii. Lis�ng fees has been paid
to BSE and NSE on April
29, 2022.

e. Stock Code : Stock code No. is 508933 
(BSE) and Symbol is 
AYMSYNTEX (NSE).

f. Market Price Data- High-Low Quota�ons on Bombay
Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and Na�onal Stock
Exchange of India Limited (NSE), Mumbai during each
month for the year 01 April 2022 to 31 March 2023:

Month AYM Syntex Stock Sensex AYM Syntex Stock Ni�y
monthly high and  monthly high and 
low on Bombay low on Bombay
Stock Exchange (Rs) Stock Exchange (Rs)

High Low High Low High Low High Low

Apri- 22 142.9 112.4 60845.1 56009.07 142.8 111.65 17405.55 18251.95

May - 22 137.35 90.5 57184.21 52632.48 138 83 17255.2 18134.75

June -22 101.85 80.05 56432.65 50921.22 101.7 80.00  16828.35 17799.95

July – 22 95.25  82.6 57619.27 52094.25 97 82.5 16824.7 18114.65

Aug - 22 93.55 71.25  60411.2 57367.47 94 76.25 15735.75 17132.85

Sept - 22 95.00  74 60676.12 56147.23 93.95  74.45 15183.4 16793.85

Oct - 22 93.00  75.00  60786.7 56683.4 94 75.05 15511.05 17172.8

Nov - 22 87.25 65 63303.01 60425.47 86.85 68.4 17154.8 17992.2

Dec - 22 82 65.8 63583.07 59754.1 79.90  65.70  16747.7 18096.15

Jan - 23 77.9 65.95 61343.96 58699.2 77.50  65.65 16855.55 18022.8

Feb - 23 72 56.00  61682.25 58795.97 68.8 59 17959.2 18816.05

Mar  23 72.80  52.5 60498.48 57084.91 72.9 58 17774.25 18887.6

g.  Performance in comparison to broad-based indices i.e.
BSE - Sensex and NSE - Ni�y through Graph is as under:

Month BSE Index AYM Syntex Stock NSE AYM Syntex Stock
(Sensex) month end closing Ni�y month end closing  

price on BSE (Rs.) price on NSE (Rs.)

April - 22 57060.87 134 17102.55 134.05

May - 22 55566.41 95.05 16584.55 94.8

June -22 53018.94 91.5 15780.25 91.5

July - 22 57570.25 83.8 17158.25 83.35

August - 22 59537.07 91.75 17759.3 91.1

Sept -22 57426.92 79.25 17094.35 78.05

Oct -022 60746.59 83.15 18012.2 83.6

Nov - 22 63099.65 75.15 18758.35 75.5

Dec -22 60840.74 75.85 18105.3 75.6

Jan -023 59549.9 66.3 17662.15 66.1

Feb - 23 58962.12 60.25 17303.95 60

Mar - 23 58991.52 61.64 17359.75 61

h. Securi�es are not suspended from trading.

i. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent:

Link In�me India Private Limited

Address :  C-101,247 Park, LBS Marg,
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400083

Tel. No. : 022 - 49186270

Fax No. : 022 – 49186060,

E-mail : rnt.helpdesk@linkin�me.co.in

Website : www.linkin�me.co.in
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j. Share Transfer System

The Shares of the Company are fully dematerialized under
the category of compulsory delivery in dematerialized
mode by all categories of investors. Shares sent for
transfer in physical form are registered by the Company’s
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents within 15 days from
the date of receipt of documents, if the same are found in
order. Shares under objec�on are returned within three
days.

k. Distribu�on of Shareholding

The distribu�on of shareholding as on 31 March 2023 is as
follows:

Shareholding of nominal                   Share holders          Amount 
value In Rs. Number % of Total In Rs. % of Total

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)

Upto 5,000 10377 85.7532 11588530 2.3014

5,001 - 10,000 773 6.3879 6256320 1.2425

10,001 – 20,000 409 3.3799 6274870 1.2462

20,001 – 30,000 165 1.3635 4186570 0.8314

30,001 – 40,000 70 0.5785 2552490 0.5069

40,001 – 50,000 69 0.5702 3263090 0.6480

50,001 - 1,00,000 100 0.8264 7582120 1.5058

1,00,001 and above 138 1.1404 461829050 91.7177

TOTAL 12101 100 503533040 100

l. Dematerializa�on of shares and liquidity

The Shares of the Company are fully dematerialized under
the category of compulsory delivery in dematerialized
mode by all categories of investors.

The dematerialized shares are directly transferred to the
beneficiaries by the depositories.

The Company has signed agreements with both the
depositories i.e. Na�onal Securi�es Depository Limited

st and Central Depository Services (India) Limited. As on 31
March 2023, 99.95 % of the shares of the Company are
dematerialized.

Bifurca�on of shares are men�oned below:

Category As as  % of 
31 March 2023 Shareholding

No. of shares held by NSDL 4,27,89,999 84.98

No. of shares held by CDSL 75,39,762 14.97

Physical 2,3543 0.05

Total 5,03,53,304 100.00

m. The Company has not issued any GDRs/ ADRs.

n. Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and
hedging ac�vi�es: Refer to Management Discussion &
Analysis’ Sec�on of this Report.

o. Disclosures in rela�on to the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and
Redressal) Act, 2013:

1. number of complaints filed during the financial
year : Nil

2. number of complaints disposed of during the
financial year : Nil

3. number of complaints pending as on end of the
financial year. Nil

p. Loca�on of plant

Rakholi Plant and  : Plot no. 1, Survey No. 394(P),
Registered Office Village Saily,  Silvassa 396230, U. T. of 

Dadra & Nagar Haveli 

Palghar Plant : Plot no. I, 40 to 45, 116 to 118, 
Dewan Industrial Estate, Mahim 
Village, Palghar (W) - 401404, 
Dist - Palghar, Maharashtra

Naroli Plant : Survey Number 174/2 situated at 
Village Naroli of the Union Territory 
of Dadra & Nagar Haveli

Address for : 9th Floor, Trade world, “B” Wing,
Correspondence Kamala Mills Compound, 

Senapa� Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, 
Mumbai – 400 013 (Maharashtra)

Telephone No : 022 – 61637000/7001

Fax No : 022 – 24937725

E-mail id : investorrela�ons@aymgroup.com

Website : www.aymsyntex.com

Compliance : Mr. Ashitosh Sheth  
Officer and 
Secretary

11. OTHER DISCLOSURES

a. Related party transac�ons:

During the year there is no materially significant related
party transac�ons i.e. transac�ons of the Company of
material nature, with its promoters, the directors or the
management, their subsidiaries or rela�ves etc. that
may have poten�al conflict with the interests of the
Company at large.  The Company’s policy on dealing
with Related Party Transac�ons as required under
Regula�on 23 of the SEBI Regula�ons, 2015 is hosted on
the Company’s website and a web link thereto is as
under:
h�ps://www.aymsyntex.com/investors/corporate-governance/policies-code-compliances

b. No penal�es, strictures were imposed on the Company
by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on
any ma�er related to capital markets, during the last
three years.

c. Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanism

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil
Mechanism for its directors and employees and no
personnel have been denied access to the Audit
Commi�ee. A copy of policy is displayed on the website
of the Company at
h�ps://www.aymsyntex.com/investors/corporate-governance/policies-code-compliances
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d. Credit Ra�ng

India Ra�ng August 5, 2022

Instrument type Size of issue  Ra�ng/ Ra�ng ac�on
(million) Outlook 

Term loan 181.26 IND A/Stable 
(increased from 

INR 163.59)

Fund based working  79.0 IND A/Stable 
capital limits 

Non-fund based working  251.0 IND A1 Affirmed 
capital limits 

Proposed Working capital * 55 IND A/Stable/ Assigned
IND A1 

Total Bank Facili�es 566.26
(Rs. Five Hundred
Sixty Six crore and

Twenty Six Lakhs only

*Proposed Working capital Limits: Fund-based - INR 25 crores, proposed Non-Fund 
based limit - INR 30 crores

CARE  October 21, 2022

Instrument type Rs. In crore Ra�ng/Outlook Ra�ng ac�on

Long term Bank facili�es 181.26 CARE A-;  Revised from
(Enhanced  Stable  Care A posi�ve

from 141.88) (Single A; (Single A minus
Outlook:  Outlook; 
Stable) Posi�ve)

Short term bank facili�es 385.00 CARE A1+  Revised from 
(Enhanced from (A One) Care A2+

330.00) (A Two Plus)

Total Bank Facili�es 566.26
(Rs. Five Hundred

Sixty Six Crore
and Twenty Six 

Lakhs only)

e. A cer�ficate from a company secretary in prac�ce that
none of the directors on the board of the company have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
con�nuing as directors of companies by the Board /
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory
authority.

f. Total fees paid to Statutory Auditors of the Company

The total amount of fees paid to the Statutory Auditors of
the Company during the financial year 2022-23 is stated in
Notes to financial statements, which forms part of this
Annual Report.

g. Disclosures in rela�on to the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and
Redressal) Act, 2013 forms part of Board’s Report.

h. Details of Compliance of the mandatory and non-
mandatory clauses of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and
Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015

1. The Company has complied with mandatory
requirements as men�oned under Regula�ons 17 to
27 of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 and has adopted
the following discre�onary requirements on
Corporate Governance as recommended hereunder:

- The Company has separate individuals occupying the
posi�on of Chairman and that of Managing Director
and CEO;

 - The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit
Commi�ee.

2. Web link where policy for determining material
subsidiaries is disclosed
h�ps://www.aymsyntex.com/policies-code-compliances/policies/policies-812099151-policy-on-material-subsidiaries.pdf

3. Web link where policy on dealing with related party
transac�ons:
h�ps://www.aymsyntex.com/investors/corporate-governance/policies-code-compliances

i. Code of conduct

The Company has established a Code of Conduct for its
Board members and its Senior Management Personnel.
The Code of Conduct for the Board members and Senior
Management Personnel is available on the Company’s
website at:
h�ps://www.aymsyntex.com/investors/corporate-governance/policies-code-compliances

All the Board members and Senior Management
Personnel have complied with the Code of Conduct.

j. Compliance cer�ficate from auditors regarding
compliance of condi�ons of corporate governance shall
be annexed with the directors’ report.

k. There are no loans and advances in the nature of loans to
firms/ companies in which directors are interested.

l. Disclosure of Shares held in suspense account under
Clause F of Schedule V to the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons
and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015:

Par�culars No of  No of
Holders  Shares

Aggregate number of shareholders and the  132 6736
outstanding shares in the suspense account  
lying at the beginning of the year 

Number of shareholders who approached   - -
issuer for transfer of shares from suspense 
account  during the year 

Number of shareholders to whom shares were  - -
transferred from suspense account during the year 

Aggregate number of shareholders and the  132 6736
outstanding shares in the suspense account 
lying at the end of the year

The vo�ng rights on these shares shall remain frozen un�l the shares 
have been claimed by and transferred to the righ�ul owner.

On behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-
Place: Mumbai Rajesh Mandawewala
Date: May 05, 2023 Chairman
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of AYM Syntex Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion 

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of AYM Syntex Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accoun�ng policies and
other explanatory informa�on.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the informa�on required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2023, and total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng (SAs) specified under Sec�on 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibili�es under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements” sec�on of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit ma�ers 

Key audit ma�ers are those ma�ers that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the current period. These ma�ers were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
standalone financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these ma�ers.

To evaluate the realisability of MAT Credit en�tlement, our 
procedures included the following:

• Understood and evaluated the design and tested the
opera�ng effec�veness of the Company’s controls over
prepara�on of forecasts.

• Assessed the historical accuracy of the Company’s Board
approved forecasts by comparing the forecast approved in
the previous year with the actual performance in the
current year.

• Tested the mathema�cal accuracy of the underlying
calcula�ons and comparing the forecasts with the budgets
approved by the Board of Directors.

• Assessed the reasonableness of assump�ons used in the
prepara�on of forecasts with external and internal factors
including business and industry growth rates, and
Company’s past performance.

• Applied sensi�vity to the forecasts to assess whether the
MAT credit carried as an asset would be u�lised within the
permi�ed remaining period.

Based on the above procedures, we did not note any material 
excep�on to the Company’s judgement in prepara�on of 
forecasts of future taxable profits for the assessment of 
realisability of the MAT credit en�tlement.

Assessment of realisability of Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) 
credit en�tlement

(Refer note 9 of the standalone financial statements)

The Balance of Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) credit 
en�tlement classified under Deferred Tax Assets (net) in the 
balance sheet as on March 31, 2023 is Rs. 5,825.92 Lakhs.

En�tlement of MAT credit is recognised to the extent there is 
convincing evidence that the Company will be able to u�lise the 
said credit against normal tax payable based on the Company’s 
projected taxable profits in the forthcoming years. 

We considered the realisability of MAT credit en�tlement to be a 
key audit ma�er as the amount is material to the standalone 
financial statements and there is significant management 
judgement involved while applying various assump�ons in 
prepara�on of forecasts which mainly include future business 
growth rates and projected taxable profits.

Key audit ma�er How our audit addressed the key audit ma�er
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Other Informa�on

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the

other informa�on. The other informa�on comprises the

informa�on included in the Director ’s report,

management discussion & analysis and MD & CEO

message, but does not include the standalone financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

The Director’s report was obtained prior to the date of 

this auditor’s report. However, the management 

discussion & analysis and MD & CEO message is expected 

to be made available to us a�er the date of this auditor’s 

report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does 

not cover the other informa�on and we do not express 

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connec�on with our audit of the standalone financial 

statements, our responsibility is to read the Director’s 

report and, in doing so, consider whether the other 

informa�on is materially inconsistent with the 

standalone financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 

materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 

performed, we conclude that there is a material 

misstatement of this other informa�on, we are required 

to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 

regard.

In connec�on with our audit of the standalone financial 

statements, our responsibility is to also read the 

management discussion & analysis and MD & CEO 

message when it becomes available and, in doing so, 

consider whether the other informa�on is materially 

inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or 

our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 

appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the management discussion & analysis 

and MD & CEO message, if we conclude that there is a 

material misstatement therein, we are required to 

communicate the ma�er to those charged with 

governance and take appropriate ac�on as applicable 

under the relevant laws and regula�ons.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Our audit procedures related to tes�ng impairment 
assessment of the carrying amount of net assets included the 
following:

• Understood and evaluated the design and tested the
opera�ng effec�veness of controls for iden�fica�on and
assessment of any poten�al impairment, including
determining the recoverable amount of the net assets.

• Assessed the historical accuracy of the Company’s Board
approved forecasts by comparing the forecast approved in
the previous year with the actual performance in the
current year.

• Used auditor’s expert for tes�ng appropriateness of the
method and model used for determining the recoverable
amount and evalua�ng reasonableness of key assump�ons
like discount rate, and terminal growth rate.

• Evaluated reasonableness of other key assump�ons used in
future cash flow projec�ons such as future sales, Cost of
materials and growth rate over the es�ma�on period.

• Tested the mathema�cal accuracy of the models’
calcula�on and comparing the forecasts with the budgets
approved by the Board of Directors.

• Performed sensi�vity analysis over key assump�ons to
corroborate that recoverable amount is within a reasonable
range.

• Assessed the appropriateness of the related presenta�on
and disclosures in the standalone financial statements.

Based on the above procedures performed, we did not note any 
material excep�on in the management assessment of the 
recoverable amount of the net carrying value of assets.

Assessment of indica�on of impairment and the recoverable 
amount (RA) of Net carrying value of assets

(Refer note 2(f) of the standalone financial statements)

The carrying amount of the Company’s net assets exceeded the 
Company’s market capitalisa�on requiring the Company’s 
management to assess whether there is any indica�on of 
impairment to the net assets having carrying value of Rs. 
60,964.09 Lakhs  as at March 31, 2023.

Based on such indica�ons, an impairment assessment was 
performed by the Company’s management in accordance with 
the requirements of Ind AS 36, ‘Impairment of Assets’. 
Management calculated the value in use of the assets by 
applying the discounted cash flow method.

This has been considered a key audit ma�er, because of the 
significance of the carrying value of the assets of the Company 
and the es�ma�on uncertainty in the assump�ons used for 
calcula�ng the recoverable amount of the net assets such as 
future sales, discount rate, cost of materials and growth rate 
over the es�ma�on period. 

Key audit ma�er How our audit addressed the key audit ma�er



Responsibili�es of management and those charged 

with governance for the standalone financial statements

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the

ma�ers stated in Sec�on 134(5) of the Act with respect

to the prepara�on of these standalone financial

statements that give a true and fair view of the financial

posi�on, financial performance, changes in equity and

cash flows of the Company in accordance with the

accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India,

including the Accoun�ng Standards specified under

Sec�on 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes

maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records in

accordance with the provisions of the Act for

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for

preven�ng and detec�ng frauds and other irregulari�es;

selec�on and applica�on of appropriate accoun�ng

policies; making judgments and es�mates that are

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementa�on

and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,

that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the accuracy

and completeness of the accoun�ng records, relevant to

the prepara�on and presenta�on of the standalone

financial statements that give a true and fair view and are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.

7. In preparing the standalone financial statements,

management is responsible for assessing the Company’s

ability to con�nue as a going concern, disclosing, as

applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using

the going concern basis of accoun�ng unless

management either intends to liquidate the Company or

to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to

do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for

overseeing the Company’s financial repor�ng process.

Auditor’s responsibili�es for the audit of the standalone 

financial statements

8. Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the standalone financial statements as a whole

are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high

level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit

conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can

arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these standalone financial

statements.

9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional

scep�cism throughout the audit. We also:

• Iden�fy and assess the risks of material

misstatement of the standalone financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design

and perform audit procedures responsive to those

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detec�ng a material misstatement

resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the

override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control

relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures  that  are  appropr iate  in  the

circumstances. Under Sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Act,

we are also responsible for expressing our opinion

on whether the Company has adequate internal

financial controls with reference to standalone

financial statements in place and the opera�ng

effec�veness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng

policies used and the reasonableness of

accoun�ng es�mates and related disclosures made

by management.

• C o n c l u d e  o n  t h e  a p p r o p r i a t e n e s s  o f

management’s use of the going concern basis of

accoun�ng and, based on the audit evidence

obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists

related to events or condi�ons that may cast

significant doubt on the Company’s ability to

con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a

material uncertainty exists, we are required to

draw a�en�on in our auditor’s report to the

related disclosures in the standalone financial

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,

to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based

on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of

our auditor’s report. However, future events or

condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to

con�nue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and

content of the standalone financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the

standalone financial statements represent the

underlying transac�ons and events in a manner

that achieves fair presenta�on.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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10. We communicate with those charged with governance

regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and

�ming of the audit and significant audit findings,

including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we iden�fy during our audit.

11. We also provide those charged with governance with a

statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all rela�onships and other

ma�ers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable,  related

safeguards.

12. From the ma�ers communicated with those charged

with governance, we determine those ma�ers that were

of most significance in the audit of the standalone

financial statements of the current period and are

therefore the key audit ma�ers. We describe these

ma�ers in our auditor’s report unless law or regula�on

precludes public disclosure about the ma�er or when, in

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a

ma�er should not be communicated in our report

because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communica�on.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

13. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,

2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of

India in terms of sub-sec�on (11) of Sec�on 143 of the

Act, we give in the “Annexure B” a statement on the

ma�ers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to

the extent applicable.

14. As required by Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the informa�on

and explana�ons which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the

purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as

required by law have been kept by the Company so

far as it appears from our examina�on of those

books.

(c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone

Statement of Profit and Loss (including other

comprehensive income),  the Standalone

Statement of Changes in Equity and the

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by

this Report are in agreement with the books of 

account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial

statements comply with the Accoun�ng Standards

specified under Sec�on 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons

received from the directors as on March 31, 2023,

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of

the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2023,

from being appointed as a director in terms of

Sec�on 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal

financial controls with reference to standalone

financial statements of the Company and the

opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to

our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

(g) With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in

the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014

(as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our

informa�on and according to the explana�ons

given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of

pending li�ga�ons on its standalone financial

posi�on in its standalone financial statements

– Refer note 41 to the standalone financial

statements;

ii. The Company was not required to recognise a

provision as at March 31, 2023 under the

applicable law or accoun�ng standards, as it

does not have any material foreseeable losses

on long-term contract.  The Company did not

have any deriva�ve contracts as at March 31,

2023.

iii. There were no amounts which were required

to be transferred to the Investor Educa�on

and Protec�on Fund by the Company during

the year ended March 31, 2023.

iv. (a) The management has  represented that,

to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 

disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no 

funds have been advanced or loaned or 

invested (either from borrowed funds or 

share premium or any other sources or 

kind of funds) by the Company to or in any 
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other person(s) or en�ty(ies), including 

foreign en��es (“Intermediaries”), with 

the understanding, whether recorded in 

w r i � n g  o r  o t h e r w i s e ,  t h a t  t h e 

Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 

indirectly, lend or invest in other persons 

or en��es iden�fied in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Company (“Ul�mate Beneficiaries”) or 

provide any guarantee, security or the like 

on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries 

(Refer Note 51(a)(v) to the standalone 

financial statements);

(b) The management has represented that, to

the best of its knowledge and belief, as

disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no

funds have been received by the Company

from any person(s) or en�ty(ies), including

foreign en��es (“Funding Par�es”), with

the understanding, whether recorded in

wri�ng or otherwise, that the Company

shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend

or invest in other persons or en��es

iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or

on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ul�mate

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,

security or the like on behalf of the

Ul�mate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 51(a)(v)

to the standalone financial statements);

and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we

considered reasonable and appropriate in

the circumstances, nothing has come to

our no�ce that has caused us to believe

that the representa�ons under sub-clause 

(a )  and  (b )  conta in  any  mater ia l 

misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any

dividend during the year.

vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), which

provides for books of account to have the

feature of audit trail, edit log and related

ma�ers in the accoun�ng so�ware used by

the Company, is applicable to the Company

only with effect from financial year beginning

April 1, 2023, the repor�ng under clause (g) of

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)

Rules, 2014 (as amended), is currently not

applicable.

15. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial

remunera�on in accordance with the requisite approvals

mandated by the provisions of Sec�on 197 read with

Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registra�on Number: 012754N/N500016 

sd/-
Pankaj Khandelia

Partner
Membership Number: 102022

UDIN: 23102022BGTWMZ1995

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 05, 2023

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

84



TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 14(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of AYM Syntex Limited on the 
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023.

ANNEXURE A 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to 

Standalone Financial Statements under clause (i) of sub-

sec�on 3 of Sec�on 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with

reference to standalone financial statements of AYM

Syntex Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in

conjunc�on with our audit of the standalone financial

statements of the Company for the year ended on that

date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for

establishing and maintaining internal financial controls

based on the internal control over financial repor�ng

criteria established by the Company considering the

essen�al components of internal control stated in the

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls

Over Financial Repor�ng (“the Guidance Note”) issued by

the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).

T h e s e  r e s p o n s i b i l i � e s  i n c l u d e  t h e  d e s i g n ,

implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal

financial controls that were opera�ng effec�vely for

ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,

including adherence to company’s policies, the

safeguarding of its assets, the preven�on and detec�on

of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of

the accoun�ng records, and the �mely prepara�on of

reliable financial informa�on, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the

Company’s internal financial controls with reference to

standalone financial statements based on our audit. We

conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance

Note and the Standards on Audi�ng deemed to be

prescribed under Sec�on 143(10) of the Act to the extent

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and

both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal

financial controls with reference to standalone financial

statements was established and maintained and if such

controls operated effec�vely in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit

evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial

controls system with reference to standalone financial

statements and their opera�ng effec�veness. Our audit

of internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements included obtaining an understanding of

internal financial controls with reference to standalone

financial statements, assessing the risk that a material

weakness exists, and tes�ng and evalua�ng the design

and opera�ng effec�veness of internal control based on

the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the

auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the

risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls

system with reference to standalone financial

statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to 

financial statements

6. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to

financial statements is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

repor�ng and the prepara�on of standalone financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accoun�ng principles. A company’s

internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in

reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transac�ons and disposi�ons of the assets of the

company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that

transac�ons are recorded as necessary to permit

prepara�on of standalone financial statements in

accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the

company are being made only in accordance with

authorisa�ons of management and directors of the

company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance

regarding preven�on or �mely detec�on of unauthorised

acquisi�on, use, or disposi�on of the company’s assets

that could have a material effect on the financial

statements.
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Inherent Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls with 

reference to financial statements

7. Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal financial

controls with reference to financial statements, including

the possibility of collusion or improper management

override of controls, material misstatements due to error

or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projec�ons

of any evalua�on of the internal financial controls with

reference to financial statements to future periods are

subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with

reference to financial statements may become

inadequate because of changes in condi�ons, or that the

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures

may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects,

an adequate internal financial controls system with

reference to standalone financial statements and such

internal financial controls with reference to standalone 

financial statements were opera�ng effec�vely as at 

March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over 

financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company 

considering the essen�al components of internal control 

stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registra�on Number: 012754N/N500016 

Pankaj Khandelia
Partner

Membership Number: 102022
UDIN: 23102022BGTWMZ1995

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 05, 2023
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TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of AYM Syntex Limited on the 
financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

ANNEXURE B 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(i) (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records

s h o w i n g  f u l l  p a r � c u l a rs ,  i n c l u d i n g 

quan�ta�ve details and situa�on, of 

Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records

showing full par�culars of Intangible Assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment of the

Company have been physically verified by the

Management during the year and no material

discrepancies have been no�ced on such

verifica�on. In our opinion, the frequency of

verifica�on is reasonable.

(c) The �tle deeds of all the immovable proper�es

(other than proper�es where the Company is the

lessee and the lease agreements are duly

executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in

note 3(a) on Property Plant and Equipment and

note 3(b) on Right of Use Assets to the standalone

financial statements, are held in the name of the

Company, except for the following:

Descrip�on  Gross  Held in the  Whether   Period held  Reason for 
of carrying name of promoter,  indicate  not being 
 property value director or  range,  held in the 

their rela�ve  where  name of the 
or employee appropriate Company

Residen�al  Rs. 14.85 Documents No Since  Documents
Flats lakhs   of �tle  September  of �tle

deeds 30, 1998 deeds are
are not not 
traceable  traceable

(d) The Company has chosen cost model for its

Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of

Use assets) and intangible assets. Consequently,

the ques�on of our commen�ng on whether the

revalua�on is based on the valua�on by a

Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of

change, if the change is 10% or more in the

aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of

Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of

Use assets) or intangible assets does not arise.

(e) Based on the informa�on and explana�ons

furnished to us, no proceedings have been

ini�ated on or are pending against the Company

for holding benami property under the Prohibi�on

of  Benami Property Transac�ons Act, 1988 (as

amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami

Transac�ons (Prohibi�on) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988))

and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the

ques�on of our commen�ng on whether the 

Company has appropriately disclosed the details in 

its standalone financial statements does not arise. 

(ii) (a)  The physical verifica�on of inventory excluding

stocks with third par�es has been conducted at 

reasonable intervals by the Management during 

the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and 

procedure of such verifica�on by Management is 

appropriate. In respect of inventory lying with 

third par�es, these have substan�ally been 

confirmed by them.  The discrepancies no�ced on 

physical verifica�on of inventory as compared to 

book records were not 10% or more in aggregate 

for each class of inventory.

(b) During the year, the Company has been sanc�oned

working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in

aggregate, from banks or financial ins�tu�ons on

the basis of security of current assets. The

Company has filed quarterly returns or statements

with such banks, which are in agreement with the

unaudited books of account  (Also refer note

51(a)(ii) to the standalone financial statements).

Further, the return/ statement for the quarter

ended March 31, 2023 is yet to be submi�ed by the

Company.

(iii) (a) The Company has made investments in one

subsidiary company and granted loans t0 

employees. (Also refer note 5 on Investment, note 

6 and note 15 on Loans to the standalone financial 

statements). The aggregate amount during the 

year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet 

date with respect to such loans to par�es other 

than subsidiary are as per the table given below:

Par�culars Guarantees Security Loans Advances in
 nature of Loans

Aggregate amount NA NA 133.21 NA
granted / provided  Lakhs 
during the year - Others

Balance outstanding  NA NA 53.55 NA
as a balance sheet date Lakhs
in respect of the above
case  - others 

(b) In respect of the aforesaid investments and

employee loans, the terms and condi�ons under

which such loans were granted and investment

made are not prejudicial to the Company’s

interest.
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(c) In respect of the aforesaid employee loans, the

schedule of repayment of principal and payment

of interest has been s�pulated, and the par�es are

repaying the principal amounts, as s�pulated, and

are also regular in payment of interest as

applicable.

(d) In respect of the aforesaid employee loans, there is

no amount which is overdue for more than ninety

days.

(e) There were no loans which fell due during the year

and were renewed/extended. Further, no fresh

loans were granted to same par�es to se�le the

exis�ng overdue advances in nature of loan.

(f) The loans granted during the year, had s�pulated

the scheduled repayment of principal and the

same were not repayable on demand.

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or made any

investments or provided any guarantees or security to

the par�es covered under Sec�ons 185 and 186.

Therefore, the repor�ng under clause 3(iv) of the Order

are not applicable to the Company.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts

which are deemed to be deposits  referred in Sec�ons

73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there

under to the extent no�fied.

(vi) Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of

India, the Company is required to maintain cost records

as specified under Sec�on 148(1) of the Act in respect of

its products. We have broadly reviewed the same and are

of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts

and records have been made and maintained. We have

not, however, made a detailed examina�on of the

records with a view to determine whether they are

accurate or complete.

(vii) (a) According to the informa�on and explana�ons

given to us and the records of the Company 

examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is 

generally regular in deposi�ng undisputed 

statutory dues in respect of provident fund and 

Maharashtra labour welfare fund though there 

has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular 

in deposi�ng undisputed statutory dues, 

including,  employees’ state insurance, sales tax, 

income tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of 

excise, value added tax, cess, goods and services 

tax and other material statutory dues, as 

applicable, with the appropriate authori�es. Also, 

refer note 41 on Con�ngent liability disclosure to 

the standalone financial statements regarding 

management’s assessment on certain ma�ers 

rela�ng to provident fund. 

(b) According to the informa�on and explana�ons

given to us and the records of the Company

examined by us, there are no statutory dues of

provident fund, employees’ state insurance, sales

tax, duty of excise, value added tax and cess which

have not been deposited on account of any

dispute. The par�culars of other statutory dues

referred to in sub-clause (a) as at March 31, 2023

which have not been deposited on account of a

dispute, are as follows:

Name of  Nature  Amount Period to  Forum where the
the statute of dues (` in  which the   dispute is pending

Lakhs)* amount 
relates 

The Income tax Income  5.33 Assessment  Commissioner of 
Act, 1961 tax Years  Income  Tax

2013-14 and  (Appeals), Mumbai
2014-15 

The Finance  Service  1.95 Financial  Central Excise and 
Act,  Tax Years Service Tax 
1994 2005-06 and  Appellate Tribunal,

2006-07 Ahmedabad

111.92 Financial  Commissioner CGST & 
Year  CE, Vapi
2006-07 

213.37 Financial  Commissioner CGST &
Years  CE, Vapi
2007-08 
to 2012-13 

95.27 Financial  Commissioner CGST & 
Years  CE, Vapi
2013-14 and 
2014-15

461.40 Financial  Central Excise and Service
Year  Tax Appellate Tribunal, 
2014-15 Ahmedabad

62.10 Financial  Commissioner CGST & 
Year  CE, Vapi
2015-16

The Goods and 23.62 Financial  Commissioner 
Services Tax Years  Appeal
Act, 2017 2018-19 

The Customs  Duty to  25.00 Financial  Commissioner of 
Act, 1962 Customs  Year  Customs (Appeals), 

2013-14 Mumbai

64.26 Financial  Commissioner of 
Year  Customs (Appeals), 
2014-15 Raigad

(viii) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to

us and the records of the Company examined by us, there

are no transac�ons in the books of account that has been

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the

tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has

not been recorded in the books of account.

(ix) (a)  According to the records of the Company

examined by us and the informa�on and 

explana�on given to us, the Company has not 

defaulted in repayment of loans or other 
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borrowings or in the payment of interest to any 

lender during the year.

(b) According to the informa�on and explana�ons

given to us and on the basis of our audit

procedures, we report that the Company has not

been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or

financial ins�tu�on or government or any

government authority.

(c) In our opinion, and according to the informa�on

and explana�ons given to us, the term loans have

been applied for the purposes for which they were

obtained. (Also refer note 51(a)(viii) to the

standalone financial statements).

(d) According to the informa�on and explana�ons

given to us, and the procedures performed by us,

and on an overall examina�on of the standalone

financial statements of the Company, we report

that no funds raised on short-term basis have been

used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the informa�on and explana�ons

given to us and on an overall examina�on of the

standalone financial statements of the Company,

we report that the Company has not taken any

funds from any en�ty or person on account of or to

meet the obliga�ons of its subsidiary.

(f) According to the informa�on and explana�ons

given to us and procedures performed by us, we

report that the Company has not raised loans

during the year on the pledge of securi�es held in

its subsidiary.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of

ini�al public offer or further public offer (including 

debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, 

the repor�ng under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is 

not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferen�al

allotment or private placement of shares or fully

or par�ally or op�onally conver�ble debentures

during the year. Accordingly, the repor�ng under

clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

(xi) (a) During the course of our examina�on of the books

and records of the Company, carried out in 

accordance with the generally accepted audi�ng 

prac�ces in India,  and according to the 

informa�on and explana�ons given to us, we have 

neither come across any instance of material fraud 

by the Company or on the Company, no�ced or 

reported during the year, nor have we been 

informed of any such case by the Management.  

(b) During the course of our examina�on of the books

and records of the Company, carried out in

accordance with the generally accepted audi�ng

prac�ces in India,  and according to the

informa�on and explana�ons given to us, a report

under Sec�on 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4,

as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit

and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be

filed with the Central Government. Accordingly,

the repor�ng under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is

not applicable to the Company.

(c) During the course of our examina�on of the books

and records of the Company carried out in

accordance with the generally accepted audi�ng

prac�ces in India,  and according to the

informa�on and explana�ons given to us, and as

represented to us by the management, no whistle-

blower complaints have been received during the

year by the Company. Accordingly, the repor�ng

under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable

to the Company.

(xii) As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi

Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the repor�ng under

clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

(xiii) The Company has entered into transac�ons with related

par�es in compliance with the provisions of Sec�ons 177

and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party

transac�ons have been disclosed in the standalone

financial statements as required under Indian

Accoun�ng Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures”

specified under Sec�on 133 of the Act.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the informa�on

and explana�on given to us, the Company has an 

internal audit system commensurate with the size 

and nature of its business. 

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period

under audit have been considered by us.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash

transac�ons with its directors or persons connected with

him. Accordingly, the repor�ng on compliance with the

provisions of Sec�on 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of

the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered

under Sec�on 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 

Act, 1934. Accordingly, the repor�ng under clause 

3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking

financial/ housing finance ac�vi�es during the
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year. Accordingly, the repor�ng under clause 

3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company

(CIC) as defined in the regula�ons made by the

Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the repor�ng

under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable

to the Company.

(d) Based on the informa�on and explana�ons

provided by the management of the Company, the

Group does not have any CICs, which are part of

the Group. We have not, however, separately

evaluated whether the informa�on provided by

the management is accurate and complete.

Accordingly, the repor�ng under clause 3(xvi)(d) of

the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the

financial year or in the immediately preceding financial

year

(xviii) There has been no resigna�on of the statutory auditors

during the year and accordingly the repor�ng under

clause (xviii) is not applicable.

(xix) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to

us and on the basis of the financial ra�os (Also refer note

51(b) to the standalone financial statements), ageing and

expected dates of realisa�on of financial assets and

payment of financial liabili�es, other informa�on

accompanying the standalone financial statements, our

knowledge of the Board of Directors and management

plans and based on our examina�on of the evidence

suppor�ng the assump�ons, nothing has come to our

a�en�on, which causes us to believe that any material 

uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that 

Company is not capable of mee�ng its liabili�es exis�ng 

at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due 

within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the 

future viability of the Company. We further state that our 

repor�ng is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 

report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 

assurance that all liabili�es falling due within a period of 

one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged 

by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any

amount remaining unspent under Sec�on 135(5) of the

Act. Accordingly, repor�ng under clause 3(xx) of the

Order is not applicable.

(xxi) The repor�ng under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not

applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial

statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the

said clause has been included in this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registra�on Number: 012754N/N500016

Pankaj Khandelia
Partner

Membership Number : 102022
UDIN : 23102022BGTWMZ1995

Mumbai
May 5, 2023 
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ASSETS 

1. Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 3a 44,051.67 44,228.72

(b) Right-of-use assets 3b 730.88 1,637.27

(c) Capital work-in-progress 3a 3,096.46 1,495.32

(d) Intangible assets 4  19.33 31.82

(e) Financial assets 

i. Investments 5 1.00 -

ii. Loans 6 56.28 55.38

iii. Other financial assets 7 299.36  228.99

(f) Income tax assets (net) 8 180.37  108.64

(g) Deferred tax assets (net) 9 1,995.82 2,195.55

(h) Other non-current assets 10 568.91 642.78

Total Non-Current Assets 51,000.38 50,624.47

2. Current Assets

(a) Inventories 11 19,940.26 18,828.65

(b) Financial assets 

i. Trade receivables 12 10,404.75  11,191.19

ii. Cash and cash equivalents 13 908.04  385.07

iii. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 14 1,312.21  1,688.72

iv. Loans 15 52.61  59.62

v. Other financial assets 16 153.46  31.20

(c) Other Current Assets 17 8,264.65  9,856.10

Total Current Assets 41,035.98 42,040.55

Total Asset 92,036.36 92,665.02

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 18(a) 5,035.33 5,015.36

(b) Other equity 

Reserves and Surplus 18(b) 36,990.02 35,981.98

Total Equity 42,025.35 40,997.34

1. Liabili�es 

Non-Current Liabili�es 

(a)  Financial liabili�es 

i. Borrowings 19 15,162.37  14,668.41

ii. Lease Liabili�es 3(b) 171.18 946.97

iii. Other financial liabili�es 20 242.28 502.96

(b) Employee benefit obliga�ons 21 742.27 806.83

(c) Other non current liabili�es 22 - 0.45

Total non-current liabili�es 16,318.10 16,925.62

 2. Current liabili�es

(a) Financial liabili�es 

i. Borrowings 23 11,637.96 12,654.25

ii. Lease Liabili�es 3(b) 602.84 698.79

ii. Trade payables 24 

Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises 1,590.41 1,904.83

Dues to creditors other than micro, small and medium enterprises 17,661.16 16,289.16

iii. Other financial liabili�es 25 946.72 1,139.79

(b) Employee benefit obliga�ons 26  535.32 738.44

(c) Income tax liabili�es 27 3.32  581.61

(d) Other Current Liabili�es 28 715.18 735.19

Total Current Liabili�es 33,692.91 34,742.06

Total Liabili�es 50,011.01 51,667.68

Total Equity and Liabili�es 92,036.36 92.665.02

Par�culars Note No.  As at March 31, 2023   As at March 31, 2022

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET 
as at March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The above Standalone Balance Sheet should be read in conjunc�on with the accompanying notes. 
This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of the even date. 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
Firm Registra�on No: 012754N/ N500016 

Pankaj Khandelia Rajesh Mandawewala   Abhishek Mandawewala  
Partner Chairman   CEO and Managing Director 
Membership No. 102022 DIN 00007179   DIN 00737785 

Place:  Mumbai Himanshu Dhaddha   Ashitosh Sheth 
Date: May 05, 2023 Chief Financial Officer   Company Secretary     



Par�culars Note No. Year ended  Year ended 

 March 31, 2023   March 31, 2022

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The above Standalone Balance Sheet should be read in conjunc�on with the accompanying notes. 
This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of the even date. 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
Firm Registra�on No: 012754N/ N500016 

Pankaj Khandelia Rajesh Mandawewala   Abhishek Mandawewala  
Partner Chairman   CEO and Managing Director 
Membership No. 102022 DIN 00007179   DIN 00737785 

Place:  Mumbai Himanshu Dhaddha   Ashitosh Sheth 
Date: May 05, 2023 Chief Financial Officer   Company Secretary     

INCOME 

Revenue from opera�ons 29 145,778.22 149,145.95

Other income  30 786.85 435.91

Total income 146,565.07 149,581.86

EXPENSES 

Cost of materials consumed 31 87,396.79 87,863.27

Changes in inventories of finished goods and goods-in-process 32 (192.71) (2,467.52)

Employee benefit expense 33 6,547.98 6,458.35

Deprecia�on and amor�za�on expense 34 5,651.87 5,055.83

Other expenses 35 42,498.16 41,121.29

Finance costs  36 3,599.41 3,593.89

Total expenses  145,501.50 141,625.11

Profit Before Tax  1,063.57 7,956.76

Income Tax Expense 37 

Current tax 435.59 1,403.55

Deferred tax  (88.76) 1,471.78

Total Tax Expense 346.83 2,875.33

Profit for the year 716.74 5,081.43

Other comprehensive income 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Add : Remeasurements of post employment benefit obliga�ons 33 115.17 20.08

Less : Income tax effect on above 37 40.25 7.02

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 74.92 13.06

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 791.66 5,094.49

Earnings per share 43 

Basic (`) 1.43 10.14

Diluted (`)   1.41 10.01
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A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax 1,063.57 7,956.75

Adjustments for: 

Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on expense 5,651.87 5,055.83

Finance costs 3,599.41 3,593.89

Net unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss  (4.66) (29.37)

Lease concessions (7.10) -

Share based expense 216.38 125.03

Loss / (Gain) on sale of investments (Net) - (3.92)

Loss on sale/discard of property, plant and equipment (Net) 110.65 234.59

Unwinding of discount on security deposits (16.95) (6.46)

Interest income (59.53) (89.61)

Opera�ng profit before changes in opera�ng assets and liabili�es 10,553.64 16,836.73

Adjustments for changes in opera�ng assets and liabili�es: 

(Increase) / decrease in inventories (1,111.62) (3,011.00)

(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables 786.44 (1,189.66)

Increase / (decrease) in trade payables 1,062.06 (3,389.48)

Increase / (decrease) in other current financial liabili�es 33.91 7.41

Increase / (decrease) in employee benefit obliga�ons (152.51) (44.86)

Increase / (decrease) in other current liabili�es (20.01) 227.09

Increase / (decrease) in other non-current liabili�es (0.45) (5.42)

(Increase) / decrease in Loans and other financial assets (103.91) (221.98)

(Increase) / decrease in other current and non-current financial assets 1601.84 (3,314.00)

Cash Generated from Opera�ons 12,649.39 5,894.83

Income tax paid (837.38) (886.76)

Net cash generated from opera�ng ac�vi�es 11,812.01 5,008.07 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for property, plant, equipment and intangible assets (7,795.13) (6,530.17)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 32.85 27.44

Realisa�on / (investment) in fixed deposit and margin money (Net) 298.69 690.33

Sale / (Purchase) of Investment (Net) - 3.92

Interest received 71.38 109.80

Investment in Subsidiary (1.00) -

Net cash used in inves�ng ac�vi�es (7,393.21) (5,698.68)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of equity shares   19.97 11.83

Proceeds / (Repayments) of long term borrowings 768.84 (488.08)

Proceeds / (Repayments) of short term borrowings (1,703.41) 4,887.96

Principal elements of lease payments (615.28) (444.23)

Proceeds from Intercorporate deposit 1,200.00 -

Finance costs paid (3,565.95) (3,594.19)

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing ac�vi�es  (3,565.95) 373.29

Net (decrease) / increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (3,895.83) (317.32)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 385.07 702.39

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 908.04 385.07

Non-cash inves�ng/ financing ac�vi�es 

- Acquisi�on of right-of-use assets 67.38 1,533.78

Reconcilia�on of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of: 

Cash on Hand (Refer Note 12) 20.96 14.45

Balance with banks in current accounts (Refer Note 12) 887.08 370.62

Cash and bank balances at the end of the year 908.04 385.07

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 

(All amounts in `  Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Par�culars Year ended  Year ended 

 March 31, 2023   March 31, 2022

for the Year ended March 31, 2023

Notes :

1) Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Indian Accoun�ng Standard (Ind AS) 3 "Statement of Cash Flows".

2) Previous year figures are regrouped/reconsidered wherever necessary.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of the even date. 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
Firm Registra�on No: 012754N/ N500016

Pankaj Khandelia Rajesh Mandawewala   Abhishek Mandawewala  
Partner Chairman   CEO and Managing Director 
Membership No. 102022 DIN 00007179   DIN 00737785 

Place:  Mumbai Himanshu Dhaddha   Ashitosh Sheth 
Date: May 05, 2023 Chief Financial Officer   Company Secretary     



STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in `  Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Balance as at March 31, 2021 5,003.53

Changes in equity share capital during the year 17(a) 11.83

Balance as at March 31, 2022 5,015.36

Changes in equity share capital during the year 17(a) 19.97

Balance as at April 1, 2023 5,035.33

Par�culars Notes Amount

B OTHER EQUITY 

Balance as at 31 March 2021 2,664.93 7,016.39 107.06 105.94 293.36 20,574.79 30,762.47

Profit for the year - - - - - 5,081.42 5,081.42

Other comprehensive income - - - - - 13.06 13.06

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 5,094.48 5,094.48

Share op�ons outstanding account 17(b) - 40.20 - 125.03 - - 165.23

Employee stock op�ons exercised 17(b) - - - (40.20) - - (40.20) 

Balance as at 31 March 20222 2,664.93 7,056.59 107.06 190.77 293.36 25,669.27 35,981.98

Balance as at 31 March 20222 2,664.93 7,056.59 107.06 190.77 293.36 25,669.27 35,981.98

Profit for the year - - - - - 716.74 716.74

Other comprehensive income - - - - - 74.92 74.92

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 791.66 791.66

Share op�ons outstanding account 17(b) - 103.26 - 216.38 - - 319.64

Employee stock op�ons exercised 17(b) - - - (103.26) - - (103.26)

Balance as at 31 March 20223 2,664.93 7,159.85 107.06 303.89 293.36 26,460.93 36,990.02

A        EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

 Reserves and Surplus Total
Par�culars Notes Capital Securi�es  General Share Capital  Retained  Other 

reserve premium  Reserve op�ons Redemp�on earnings Equity
reserve outstanding Reserve 

account 

Notes :

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunc�on with the accompanying notes.  

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of the even date.  

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
Firm Registra�on No: 012754N/ N500016

Pankaj Khandelia Rajesh Mandawewala   Abhishek Mandawewala  
Partner Chairman   CEO and Managing Director 
Membership No. 102022 DIN 00007179   DIN 00737785 

Place:  Mumbai Himanshu Dhaddha   Ashitosh Sheth 
Date: May 05, 2023 Chief Financial Officer   Company Secretary     
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General informa�on

AYM Syntex Limited (herein referred to as “AYM” or “the 
Company”) is public limited Company incorporated and 
domiciled in India. The address of its registered office is 
Survey No. 374/1/1, Saily, Silvassa -396230 (U.T. of Dadra & 
Nagar Haveli), India. The Company is listed on the Bombay 
Stock Exchange (BSE) and the Na�onal Stock Exchange (NSE). 
Since its incep�on, it has grown manifold and today is 
amongst the largest manufacturers and exporters of 
Polyester Filament Yarn, Nylon Filament Yarn and Bulk 
Con�nuous Filament Yarn from India.

The standalone financial statements were authorised for 
issue by the board of directors on May 05, 2023.

Note 1: Significant Accoun�ng Policies

This Note provides a list of the significant accoun�ng policies 
adopted in the prepara�on of these standalone financial 
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to 
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

1.1 Basis of Prepara�on of Standalone Financial 
Statements

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The standalone financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the accoun�ng
principles generally accepted in India and
comply in all material aspects with Indian
Accoun�ng Standards (IND AS) no�fied under
Sec�on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
Act) read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
A c c o u n � n g  S t a n d a r d s )  R u l e s ,  2 0 1 5 ,
presenta�on requirement of Division II of
Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 and
other relevant provisions of the Act as
amended from �me to �me.

(ii) Historical cost conven�on

The standalone financial statements have been
prepared on an accrual and going concern
basis. The standalone financial statements have
been prepared on a historical cost basis, except
as stated in subsequent policies for the
following items:

- Certain financial assets and liabili�es - Fair
value

- Assets held for sale – Lower of cost or fair
value less cost of sale

- Share based payments – Fair value

(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the
Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide
no�fica�on dated 23 March 2022 no�fied
Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2022 which amended
certain accoun�ng standards, and are effec�ve
1 April 2022. These amendments did not have
any impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly
affect the current or future periods.

(iv) New and amended standards issued but not
effec�ve

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide
no�fica�on dated 31 March 2023 no�fied
Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2023 (the ‘Rules’) which
amends certain accoun�ng standards, and are
effec�ve 1 April 2023.

The Rules predominantly amend Ind AS 12,
Income taxes, and Ind AS 1, Presenta�on of
standalone financial statements. The other
amendments to Ind AS no�fied by these rules
are primarily in the nature of clarifica�ons.

These amendments are not expected to have a
material impact on the company in the current
or future repor�ng periods and on foreseeable
future transac�ons. Specifically, no changes
would be necessary as a consequence of
amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the
Company’s accoun�ng policy already complies
with the now mandatory treatment.

1.2 Foreign currency transla�on

a) Func�onal and presenta�on currency

Items included in the standalone financial
statements of the Company are measured using
the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates
(‘the func�onal currency’). The standalone
financial statements are presented in Indian
rupees (INR), which is Company’s func�onal and
presenta�on currency.

b) Transac�ons and balances

Foreign currency transac�ons are translated
and recorded into the func�onal currency using
the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the
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transac�on. Foreign exchange gains and losses 
resul�ng from the se�lement of  such 
transac�ons and from the transla�on of 
monetary assets and liabili�es denominated in 
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates 
are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an 
adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in 
the standalone statement of profit and loss, 
within finance costs. All other foreign exchange 
gains and losses are presented in the standalone 
statement of profit and loss on a net basis within 
other income or other expenses, as applicable.

Non-monetary items that are measured in 
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rates at the dates 
of ini�al transac�on.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair 
value in a foreign currency are translated using 
the exchange rates at the date when the fair 
value was determined. Transla�on differences 
on assets and liabili�es carried at fair value are 
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

The Company has applied the exemp�on from 
the transi�on date i. e. April 1, 2016 in respect of 
accoun�ng policy followed for long term foreign 
currency monetary items. Accordingly, foreign 
exchange differences, in respect of the long term 
foreign currency items �ll the year ended March 
31, 2017, on account of depreciable assets are 
adjusted in the cost of depreciable assets and 
depreciated over the balance life of the assets.

1.3 Revenue recogni�on

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of 
manufactured goods and related services. The 
Company has assessed revenue contracts and revenue 
is recognised upon sa�sfying specific performance 
obliga�ons in accordance with provisions of contract 
with the customer.

It recognizes revenue when control over the promised 
goods or services are transferred to the customer at an 
amount that reflects the considera�on to which the 
Company expects to be en�tled in exchange of those 
goods or services.

This is generally determined when documents of 
�tle/goods are delivered/shipped to the customer in 
accordance with the agreed terms, following which 

the customer has full discre�on over responsibility, 
manner of distribu�on and price to sell the goods and 
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in rela�on to 
the goods and there is no unfulfilled obliga�on that 
would affect customer’s acceptance of the product. All 
the foregoing occurs at a point in �me upon shipment 
or delivery of the documents of �tle/product or 
goods.

The Company considers terms of the contract in 
determining the revenue. It is measured at the price 
that reflects the considera�on the Company expects 
to be en�tled to in exchange for sa�sfac�on of the 
performance obliga�on. The Company considers 
freight, insurance and handling ac�vi�es as costs to 
fulfil the promise to transfer products and related 
services and the customer payments for such ac�vi�es 
are recorded as a component of revenue.

In certain customer contracts where freight is 
arranged by the Company and recovered from the 
customers, the same is treated as a dis�nct separate 
performance obliga�on and revenue is recognised 
when such freight services are rendered. The related 
shipping and handling costs incurred are included in 
freight expenses when the Company is ac�ng as 
principal in the shipping and handling arrangement.

For volume discounts and pricing incen�ves / 
concessions offered to the customers, the Company 
makes es�mates and provide for, based on customer 
performance and sales volume, which is recorded as 
deduc�ons from revenue.

Revenue from sale of by-products are included in 
revenue. Revenue from services is recognised when 
the services are completed. Revenue excludes any 
taxes and du�es collected on behalf of the 
government.

When there is uncertainty as to measurement or 
ul�mate collectability, revenue recogni�on is 
postponed un�l such uncertainty is resolved.

The Company does not have any contracts where in 
the period between the transfer of the promised 
goods or services to the customer and payment by the 
customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the 
Company does not adjust any of the transac�on prices 
for the �me value of money.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are 
delivered and to the extent it has an uncondi�onal 
right to considera�on (i.e. only the passage of �me is 
required before the payment of considera�on is due).

NOTES 
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Considera�on received before a related performance 
obliga�on is sa�sfied or before the Company transfer 
goods or services to the customer are recognised as 
contract liabili�es. Contract liabili�es are recognised 
as revenue when the Company completes its 
performance obliga�on under the contract.

Export Incen�ves

Export incen�ves and subsidies are recognised when 
there is reasonable assurance that the Company will 
comply with the condi�ons and the incen�ve will be 
received.

Export benefits arising from duty drawback scheme, 
remission of du�es and taxes on export products and 
merchandise export incen�ve scheme are recognised 
on shipment for export at the rate at which they 
accrue and is included in other opera�ng income

1.4 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their 
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that 
the grant will be received and the Company will 
comply with all a�ached condi�ons.

Government grants rela�ng to income are deferred 
and recognised in the profit or loss over the period 
necessary to match them with the costs that they are 
intended to compensate and presented within other 
income.

Government grants rela�ng to the purchase of 
property, plant and equipment are included in 
liabili�es as deferred income and are credited to profit 
or loss over the periods and in propor�ons in which 
deprecia�on expense on those assets is recognised.

1.5 Income Tax

The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax 
payable on the current year’s taxable income based on 
the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in 
deferred income tax assets and liabili�es a�ributable 
to temporary differences and unabsorbed tax losses.

a) Current income tax

Current income tax charge is based on taxable
profit for the year. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substan�vely enacted, at the
repor�ng date where the Company operates
and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates posi�ons taken in tax
returns with respect to situa�ons in which

applicable tax regula�on is subject to 
interpreta�on and considers whether it is 
probable that a taxa�on authority will accept an 
uncertain tax treatment. It establishes 
provisions where appropriate on the basis of 
amounts expected to be paid to the tax 
authori�es.

Current tax assets and liabili�es are offset when 
there is a legally enforceable right to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabili�es 
and Company intends either to se�le on a net 
basis, or to realize the asset and se�le the 
liability simultaneously.

b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full using the
liability method on temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabili�es
and their carrying amounts for financial
repor�ng purposes at the repor�ng date.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
income will be available against which the
deduc�ble temporary differences, unused tax
losses, deprecia�on carry-forwards and unused
tax credits could be u�lised.

Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from ini�al recogni�on of an asset or
liability in a transac�on other than a business
combina�on that at the �me of the transac�on
affects neither accoun�ng profit nor taxable
profit (tax loss).

Deferred tax assets and l iabi l i�es are
determined using tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substan�ally enacted by the
end of the repor�ng period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is se�led.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax
assets is reviewed at each repor�ng date and
adjusted to reflect changes in probability that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deduc�ble temporary differences and unused
tax losses only if it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to u�lize those
temporary differences and losses.
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Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are offset 
where there is a legally enforceable right to 
offset current tax assets and liabili�es and 
where the deferred tax balances relate to the 
same taxa�on authority. Current tax assets and 
tax liabili�es are offset where the en�ty has a 
legally enforceable right to offset and intends 
either to se�le on a net basis, or to realise the 
asset and se�le the liability simultaneously.

Current and Deferred Tax is recognised in profit 
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to 
items recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is 
also recognised in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity respec�vely.

Minimum Alternate Tax ( ‘MAT’)  credit 
en�tlement is recognised as a deferred tax asset 
by credi�ng the standalone Statement of profit 
and loss only when and to the extent there is 
convincing evidence that MAT credit will reverse 
in the foreseeable future and the Company will 
be able to u�lize the said credit against normal 
tax payable during the specified period.

1.6 Leases

As a lessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use (ROU) asset 
and a corresponding liability at the date at which the 
leased asset is available for use by the Company for all 
leases except short-term leases. Contracts may 
contain both lease and non-lease components. The 
Company allocates the considera�on in the contract 
to the lease and non-lease components based on their 
rela�ve stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real 
estate for which the Company is a lessee, it has elected 
not to separate lease and non-lease components and 
instead accounts for these as a single lease 
component.

Assets and liabili�es arising from a lease are ini�ally 
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabili�es are 
recognised  based  on the net present value of the 
following lease payments:

• fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incen�ves receivable

• variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, ini�ally measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date

• amounts expected to be payable by the
Company under residual value guarantees

• the exercise price of a purchase op�on if the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise that
op�on, and

• payments of penal�es for termina�ng the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Company
exercising that op�on.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain 
extension op�ons are also included in the 
measurement of the liability. The lease payments are 
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. 
If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is 
generally the case for leases in the Company, the 
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of 
ini�al applica�on is used, being the rate that the 
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the 
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to 
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic 
environment with similar terms, security and 
condi�ons.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the 
Company:

• where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as a
star�ng point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing condi�ons since third party financing
was received

• uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by Company, which does not have
recent third party financing, and

• makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amor�sing loan rate is available 
to the individual lessee (through recent financing or 
market data) which has a similar payment profile to 
the lease, then the Company use that rate as a star�ng 
point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The Company is exposed to poten�al future increases 
in variable lease payments based on an index or rate, 
which are not included in the lease liability un�l they 
take effect. When adjustments to lease payments 
based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability 
is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use 
asset.
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Lease payments are allocated between principal and 
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or 
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant 
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of 
the liability for each period.

The ROU assets are measured at cost comprising the 
following:

• ini�al amount of lease liability

• any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incen�ves
received

• any ini�al direct costs, and

• restora�on costs.

They are subsequently measured at cost less 
accumulated deprecia�on.  ROU assets  are 
depreciated from the commencement date over the 
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on 
a straight-line basis. If the company is reasonably 
certain to exercise a purchase op�on, the right-of-use 
asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful 
life. Lease liability and ROU assets have been 
separately disclosed in the Balance Sheet and lease 
payments have been classified as financing cash flows. 
Payments associated with short-term leases are 
recognised as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term 
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or 
less.

1.7 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other 
items of property, plant and equipment are stated at 
historical cost less accumulated deprecia�on and 
impairment losses, if any.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly 
a�ributable on making the asset ready for its intended 
use and loca�on, relevant borrowing cost for 
qualifying assets and present value of any obligatory 
cost of decommissioning.

Subsequent costs of replacement and major 
maintenance or repair (overhaul costs) are included in 
an asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a 
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits will flow to 
the Company and the cost can be measured reliably. 
The carrying amount of any asset or component of an 
asset replaced is derecognised when replaced. 
Overhaul costs associated with major maintenance 

are capitalised and depreciated over their useful lives. 
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to 
profit or loss during the repor�ng period in which they 
are incurred.

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost and related 
expenses, of property, plant and equipment that are 
not yet ready for their intended use at the repor�ng 
date.

Deprecia�on methods, es�mated useful lives and 
residual value

Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold 
improvements are amor�sed over the shorter of 
es�mated useful life or the related lease term, unless 
the en�ty expects to use the assets beyond the lease 
term. Deprecia�on is calculated using the straight-line 
method to allocate the costs, net of residual values, 
over the es�mated useful lives as follows:

Asset Useful life (years)

Office equipment 5

Furniture and fixtures 10

Computer hardware and so�ware 3/5

Vehicles 8

Plant and machinery*# 7 to 25

Electrical installa�on 10

Factory building 30

Residen�al and other buildings 60

Other buildings (carpeted roads) 10

*Extra shi� deprecia�on is provided.

#Useful lives determined based on technical 
evalua�on by the expert is equal to or lower than 
those specified in the Schedule II.

The useful lives have been determined based on 
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. The residual 
values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the 
assets. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are 
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of 
each repor�ng period. Each component of an item of 
property, plant and equipment with a cost that is 
significant in rela�on to the total cost of that item is 
depreciated separately, if its useful life differs from 
that of other components of the asset.

Es�mated useful  l ives,  residual  values and 
deprecia�on methods are reviewed annually, taking 
into account commercial  and technological 
obsolescence as well as normal wear and tear and 
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adjusted prospec�vely, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is 
derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected to arise from 
con�nued use of the asset. Gains and losses on 
disposal or re�rement are determined as the 
difference between net proceeds and the carrying 
amount. These are recognised in standalone 
statement of profit and loss within other expenses or 
other income, as applicable.

1.8 Intangible assets

a) Intangible assets with finite useful lives:

Intangible assets with finite useful lives
acquired by the Company are measured at cost
l e s s  a c c u m u l a t e d  a m o r � z a � o n  a n d
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Amor�za�on is charged on a straight-line basis
over the es�mated useful lives. The es�mated
useful life and amor�za�on method are
reviewed at the end of each annual repor�ng
period, with the effect of any changes in the
es�mate being accounted for on a prospec�ve
basis.

b) Research and Development

Research expenditure and development
expenditure that do not meet the criteria in
Note 1.8(a) above are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as
an asset in subsequent period.

c) Amor�za�on method and period

Intangible assets comprise of computer
so�ware and licenses which are amor�sed on a
straight-line basis over the expected useful life
over a period of five years.

1.9 Impairment of assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is 
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s 
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair 
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the 
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped 
at the lowest levels for which there are separately 
iden�fiable cash inflows which are largely 

independent of the cash inflows from other assets or 
groups of assets (cash-genera�ng units). Non-
financial assets that suffered an impairment are 
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at 
the end of each repor�ng period.

An impairment loss or a reversal of an impairment loss 
is immediately recognised in the standalone 
statement of profit and loss.

1.10 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if 
their carrying amount will be recovered principally 
through a sale transac�on rather than through 
con�nuing use and a sale is considered highly 
probable. They are measured at the lower of their 
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

An impairment loss is recognised for any ini�al or 
subsequent write-down of the assets to fair value less 
costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent 
increase in fair value less costs to sell, but not in excess 
of any cumula�ve impairment loss previously 
recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by 
the date of the sale of the non-current assets is 
recognised at the date of de-recogni�on.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amor�sed 
while they are classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are 
presented separately from the other assets in the 
balance sheet.

1.11 Inventories

Raw materials and stores, goods-in-process and 
finished goods

Raw materials, stores, goods-in-process and finished 
goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable 
value. Cost of raw materials comprises cost of 
purchases. Cost of work-in progress and finished 
goods comprises direct materials, direct labor and an 
appropriate propor�on of variable and fixed overhead 
expenditure, the la�er being allocated based on 
normal opera�ng capacity. Cost of inventories also 
include all other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present loca�on and condi�on. 
Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on 
moving weighted average basis. Costs of purchased 
inventory are determined a�er deduc�ng rebates and 
discounts. Net realizable value is the es�mated selling 
price in the ordinary course of business less the 
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es�mated costs of comple�on and the es�mated costs 
necessary to make the sale.

1.12 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to 
a financial asset of one en�ty and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another en�ty.

Investments and Other Financial Assets

a) Classifica�on

The Company classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

• Those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

• Those measured at amor�sed cost.

The classifica�on depends on the en�ty’s 
business model for managing the financial 
assets and the contractual terms of the cash 
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and 
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or 
other comprehensive income.

For investments in  debt instruments, 
recogni�on will depend on the business model 
in which the investment is held.

For investments in equity instruments, 
recogni�on will depend on whether the 
Company has made an irrevocable elec�on at 
the �me of ini�al recogni�on to account for the 
equity investment at fair value through other 
comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies debt investments 
when and only when its business model for 
managing those assets changes.

b) Recogni�on

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the company commits to purchase or
sale the financial asset.

c) Measurement

At ini�al recogni�on, the Company measures a
financial asset (excluding trade receivables

which do not contain a significant financing 
component) at its fair value plus, in the case of a 
financial asset not at fair value through profit or 
loss, transac�on costs that are directly 
a�ributable to the acquisi�on of the financial 
asset. Transac�on costs of financial assets 
carried at fair value through profit or loss are 
expensed in profit or loss.

(i) Debt instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Company’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteris�cs of the
asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company
classifies its debt instruments:

• Amor�sed cost:

Assets that are held for collec�on of
contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured
at amor�sed cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effec�ve
interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecogni�on is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented
in other gains/(losses). Impairment
losses are presented as separate line
item in the standalone statement of
profit and loss.

• Fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Assets that are held for collec�on of
contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments
of  pr inc ipa l  and interest ,  are
measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).
Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recogni�on of impairment gains or
losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit and loss. When
the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumula�ve gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from
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equity to profit or loss and recognised 
in other expenses or other incomes, 
as applicable. Interest income from 
these financial assets is included in 
other income using the effec�ve 
interest  rate method.  Foreign 
Exchange gains and losses are 
presented in other gains and losses 
and impairment expenses in other 
expenses.

• Fair value through profit or loss:

Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amor�sed cost or FVOCI are
measured at fair value through profit
or loss. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit
or loss and is not part of a hedging
rela�onship is recognised in profit or
loss and presented net in the
standalone statement of profit and
loss within other expenses or other
incomes, as applicable in the period in
which it arises. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in
other income.

(ii) Equity instruments:

The Company measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the
Company’s management has elected
to present fair value gains and losses
on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there will be
no subsequent reclassifica�on of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss.
Dividends from such investments are
recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Company’s right to
receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in the standalone
statem ent  o f  p ro fi t  a n d  lo s s .
Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment  losses)  on  equi ty
investments measured at FVOCI are
not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

d) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking
basis the expected credit loss associated with
its assets carried at amor�sed cost and FVOCI
d e b t  i n s t r u m e n t s .  T h e  i m p a i r m e n t
methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk. Note 40 details how the Company
determines whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies
the simplified approach permi�ed by Ind AS
109 Financial Instruments, which requires
expected life�me losses to be recognised from
ini�al recogni�on of the receivables.

e) Derecogni�on of financial assets revenue
recogni�on

A financial asset is derecognised only when

• the Company has transferred the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial asset
or

• it retains the contractual rights to receive
the cash flows of the financial asset, but
assumes a contractual obliga�on to pay
the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the en�ty has transferred an asset, the 
Company evaluates whether it has transferred 
substan�ally all risks and rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial 
asset is derecognised.  Where the en�ty has not 
transferred  substan�ally all risks and rewards 
of ownership of the financial asset, the financial 
asset is not derecognised.

Where the en�ty has neither transferred a 
financial asset nor retains substan�ally all risks 
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, 
the financial asset is derecognised if the 
Company has not retained control of the 
financial asset. Where the Company retains 
control of the financial asset, the asset is 
con�nued to be recognised to the extent of 
con�nuing involvement in the financial asset.

f) Income recogni�on

(i) Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at
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fair value through profit or loss is 
disclosed as interest income within other 
income. Interest income on financial 
assets at amor�sed cost and financial 
assets at FVOCI is calculated using the 
effec�ve interest method is recognised in 
the standalone statement of profit and 
loss as part of other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying 
the effec�ve interest rate to the gross 
carrying amount of a financial asset 
exc e p t  fo r  fi n a n c i a l  a s s e t s  t h a t 
subsequently become credit- impaired. 
For credit-impaired financial assets the 
effec�ve interest rate is applied to the net 
carrying amount of the financial asset 
(a�er deduc�on of the loss allowance).

(ii) Dividends

Dividends are received from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
and at FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the
right to receive payment is established.
This applies even if they are paid out of
pre-acquisi�on profits, unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment.

g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
short term highly liquid investments with
original maturi�es of three months or less that
are readily conver�ble to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Bank overdra�s are shown within borrowings in
current liabili�es in the balance sheet.

h) Trade receivable

Trade receivables are considera�on due from
customers for goods sold or services performed
in the ordinary course of business. Trade
receivables are recognised/measured ini�ally at
transac�on price that is uncondi�onal unless
they contain significant financing components.

Financial liabili�es

a) Measurement:

Financial liabili�es are ini�ally recognised at fair value,
reduced by transac�on costs (in case of financial
liability not at fair value through profit or loss), that are
directly a�ributable to the issue of financial liability.
A�er ini�al recogni�on, financial liabili�es are
measured at amor�sed cost using effec�ve interest
method. The effec�ve interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts es�mated future cash ou�low
(including all fees paid, transac�on cost, and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on ini�al
recogni�on. At the �me of ini�al recogni�on, there is
no financial liability irrevocably designated as
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Liabili�es
from finance lease agreements are measured at the
lower of fair value of the leased asset or present value
of minimum lease payments.

b) Derecogni�on:

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obliga�on under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an exis�ng financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substan�ally different terms, or the terms of an
exis�ng liability are substan�ally modified, such an
exchange or modifica�on is treated as the de-
recogni�on of the original liability and the recogni�on
of a new liability. The difference in the respec�ve
carrying amounts is recognised in the standalone
statement of profit or loss.

c) Borrowings:

Borrowings are ini�ally recognised at fair value, net of
transac�on costs  incurred.  Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amor�sed cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transac�on
costs) and the redemp�on amount is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effec�ve interest method. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facili�es are recognised as
transac�on costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred un�l the draw
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amor�sed over the period of the
facility to which it relates.
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Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet 
when the obliga�on specified in the contract is 
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference 
between the carrying amount of a financial liability 
that has been ex�nguished or transferred to another 
party and the considera�on paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabili�es assumed, is 
recognised in standalone Statement of profit and loss.

Where the terms of a financial l iability are 
renego�ated and the en�ty issues equity instruments 
to a creditor to ex�nguish all or part of the liability 
(debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in 
profit or loss, which is measured as the difference 
between the carrying amount of the financial liability 
and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabili�es unless 
the Company has uncondi�onal right to defer 
se�lement of the liability for at least 12 months a�er 
the repor�ng period. Where there is a breach of a 
material provision of a long-term arrangement on or 
before the end of the repor�ng period with the effect 
that the liability becomes payable on demand on the 
repor�ng date, the en�ty does not classify the liability 
as current, if the lender agreed, a�er the repor�ng 
period and before the approval of the standalone 
financial statements for issue, not to demand 
payment as consequence of the breach.

d) Trade and other payables:

These amounts represent liabili�es for goods and
services provided to the company prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within 30-90 days of
recogni�on. Trade and other payables are presented
as current liabili�es unless payment is not due within
12 months a�er the repor�ng period. They are
recognised in i�al ly  at  their  fa ir  value and
subsequently measured at amor�sed cost using the
effec�ve interest method.

f) Offse�ng financial instruments

Financial assets and liabili�es are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheet where there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an inten�on to se�le on a net
basis or realize the asset and se�le the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be con�ngent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

1.13 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly 
a�ributable to the acquisi�on, construc�on or 
produc�on of a qualifying asset are capitalised during 
the period that is required to complete and prepare 
the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets 
are assets that necessarily take a substan�al period of 
�me to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Borrowing cost includes exchange differences arising 
from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they 
are regarded as an adjustment to the finance cost.

Investment income earned on the temporary 
investment of specific borrowings pending their 
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the 
borrowing costs eligible for capitaliza�on.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in 
which they are incurred.

1.14 Employee benefits Short-term obliga�ons

Liabili�es for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits that are expected to be se�led 
wholly within 12 months a�er the end of the period in 
which the employees render the related service are 
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the 
end of the repor�ng period and are rendered at the 
undiscounted amount of benefits expected to be paid 
when the liabili�es are se�led. The liabili�es are 
presented as current employee benefit obliga�ons in 
the balance sheet.

Other long-term employee benefit obliga�ons

The liabili�es for earned leave are not expected to be 
se�led wholly within 12 months a�er the end of the 
period in which the employees render the related 
service. They are therefore measured as the present 
value of expected future payments to be made in 
respect of services provided by employees up to the 
end of the repor�ng period using the projected unit 
credit method. The benefits are discounted using the 
market yields at the end of the repor�ng period that 
have terms approxima�ng to the terms of the related 
obliga�on.

Remeasurements as a result  of  experience 
adjustments and changes in actuarial assump�ons are 
recognised in other comprehensive income.

The obliga�ons are presented as current liabili�es in 
the balance sheet if the en�ty does not have an 
uncondi�onal right to defer se�lement for at least 
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twelve months a�er the repor�ng period, regardless 
of when the actual se�lement is expected to occur.

Post-employment obliga�ons

The Company operates the fol lowing post-
employment schemes:

- Defined benefit plans such as gratuity, and

- Defined contribu�on plans such as provident
fund and superannua�on fund.

a) Defined Benefit Plans

(i) Gratuity obliga�ons

The liability or asset recognised in the balance
sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity
plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obliga�on at the end of the annual repor�ng
period less the fair value of plan assets. The
defined benefit cost is calculated annually by
actuaries using the projected unit credit
method.

The present value of the defined benefit
obliga�on denominated in INR is determined
by discoun�ng the es�mated future cash
ou�lows by reference to market yields at the
end of the repor�ng period on government
bonds that have terms approxima�ng to the
terms of the related obliga�on. The benefits
which are denominated in currency other than
INR, the cash flows are discounted using market
yields determined by reference to high-quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and
that have terms approxima�ng to the terms of
the related obliga�on. The service cost include
current service cost, past service cost, gains and
losses on curtailments and se�lements.
Changes in the present value of the defined
benefit obl iga�on resul�ng from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service
cost.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obliga�on and the fair value of
plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the standalone statement of
profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from

experience adjustments and changes in 
actuarial assump�ons are recognised in the 
period in which they occur, directly in other 
comprehensive income. They are included in 
retained earnings in the standalone statement 
of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit 
and loss in the subsequent periods.

b) Defined contribu�on plans

(i) Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance
Corpora�on (ESIC) and Labour Welfare Fund
(LWF).

The Contribu�on towards provident fund, ESIC,
LWF for certain employees is made to the
regulatory authori�es where the Company has
no further obliga�ons. Such benefits are
classified as Defined Contribu�on Schemes as
the Company does not carry any further
obliga�ons apart from the contribu�ons made
on a monthly basis.

(ii) Superannua�on Fund

Contribu�on towards superannua�on fund for
certain employees is made to defined
contr ibu�on scheme administered by
insurance Company where the Company has no
further obliga�ons. Such benefits are classified
as Defined Contribu�on Schemes as the
Company does  not  carry  any  further
obliga�ons, apart from contribu�on made on
monthly basis.

Payment to defined contribu�on re�rement
benefit plans are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service
en�tling them to the contribu�ons.

c) Shared based payments Employee op�ons

The fair value of op�ons under the AYM Syntex
Limited Employee Op�on scheme is recognised
as an employee benefits expense at the grant
date with a corresponding increase in equity.
The total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the op�ons
granted:

• including any market performance
condi�ons (e.g., the en�ty’s share price)

• excluding the impact of any service and
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n o n - m a r ke t  p e r fo r m a n c e  v e s � n g 
condi�ons (e.g. profitability, sales growth 
targets and remaining an employee of the 
en�ty over a specified �me period), and

• including the impact of any non-ves�ng
condi�ons (e.g. the requirement for
employees to save or holdings shares for a
specific period).

The total expense is recognised over the ves�ng 
period, which is the period over which all the specified 
ves�ng condi�ons are to be sa�sfied. At the end of 
each period, the en�ty reviews its es�mates of the 
number of op�ons that are expected to vest based on 
the non-market ves�ng and service condi�ons. It 
recognizes the impact of the revision to original 
es�mates, if any, in profit or loss such that the 
cumula�ve expense reflects the revised es�mate with 
a corresponding adjustment to equity-se�led 
employee benefits reserve.

Bonus Plan

The Company recognizes a liability and an expense for 
bonus where contractually obliged or where there is a 
past prac�ce that has created a construc�ve 
obliga�on.

1.15 Provisions and con�ngent liabili�es

a) Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, quality claims and
volume discounts are recognised when the
Company has a present legal or construc�ve
obliga�on as a result of past events, it is
probable that an ou�low of resources will be
required to se�le the obliga�on and the
amount can be reliably es�mated. Provisions
are not recognised for future opera�ng losses.

Provisions for restructuring are recognised by
the Company when it has developed a detailed
formal plan for restructuring and has raised a
valid expecta�on in those affected that the
Company will carry out the restructuring by
star�ng to implement the plan or announcing
its main features to those affected by it. The
measurement of provision for restructuring
includes only direct expenditures arising from
the restructuring, which are both necessarily
entai led by the restructuring and not
associated with the ongoing ac�vi�es of the
Company.

Where there are a number of  s imilar 
obliga�ons, the likelihood that an ou�low will 
be required in se�lement is determined by 
considering the class of obliga�ons as a whole. 
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood 
of an ou�low with respect to any one item 
included in the same class of obliga�ons may be 
small.

Provisions are measured at the nominal or 
present value of management’s best es�mate 
of the expenditure required, taking into 
account the risks and uncertain�es surrounding 
the obliga�on, to se�le the present obliga�on 
at the end of the repor�ng period. The discount 
rate used to determine the present value is a 
pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the �me value of money and 
the risks specific to the liability. The increase in 
the provision due to the passage of �me is 
recognised as interest expense.

b) Con�ngent liabili�es

Con�ngent liabili�es are disclosed when there
is a possible obliga�on arising from past events
the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Company or a present
obliga�on that arises from past events where it
is either not probable that an ou�low of
resources will be required to se�le or a reliable
es�mate of the amount cannot be made.

c) Con�ngent Assets

Con�ngent Assets are disclosed, where an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. The
Company shall not recognised a con�ngent
asset unless the recovery is virtually certain.

1.16 Contributed Equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental 
costs directly a�ributable to the issue of new shares or 
op�ons are shown in equity as a deduc�on, net of tax, 
from the proceeds.

1.17 Dividends

Provision is made for any dividend declared, being 
appropriately authorised and no longer at the 
discre�on of the en�ty, on or before the end of the 
repor�ng period but not distributed at the end of the 
repor�ng period.
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1.18 Earnings per share Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the 
profit a�ributable to owners of the Company by the 
weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for 
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the 
year and excluding treasury shares (Note 43).

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in 
the determina�on of basic earnings per share to take 
into account the a�er income tax effect of interest and 
other financing costs associated with dilu�ve 
poten�al equity shares, and the weighted average 
number of addi�onal equity shares that would have 
been outstanding assuming the conversion of all 
dilu�ve poten�al equity shares.

1.19 Segment Repor�ng

Opera�ng segments are reported in a manner 
consistent with the internal repor�ng provided to the 
chief opera�ng decision maker.

The Managing Director, who has been iden�fied as the 
chief opera�ng decision maker, assesses the financial 
performance and posi�on of the Company and makes 
strategic decisions. Refer Note 49 for the segment 
informa�on presented.

1.20 Excep�onal items

Excep�onal items are items of income or expense 
recorded in the year in which they have been 
determined by management as being material by 
their size or incidence in rela�on to the standalone 
financial statements and are presented separately 
within the results of the Company. The determina�on 
of which items are disclosed as excep�onal items 
affect the presenta�on of profit for the year and 
requires a degree of judgment.

1.21 Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the standalone financial 
statements and notes have been rounded off to the 
nearest lakhs with two decimal as per the 
requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

Note 2: Significant accoun�ng assump�ons, es�mates and 
judgements

The prepara�on of standalone financial statements requires 
the use of accoun�ng es�mates which, by defini�on, will 

seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to 
exercise assump�ons, es�mates and judgements in applying 
the Company’s accoun�ng policies. This note provides an 
overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of 
judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely 
to be materially adjusted due to es�mates and assump�ons 
turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed informa�on about each of these es�mates and 
judgements is included in relevant notes together with 
informa�on about the basis of calcula�on for each affected 
line item in the standalone financial statements. Accoun�ng 
es�mates could change from period to period.

a) Es�ma�on of current tax expense and deferred
income tax

The calcula�on of the Company’s tax charge
necessarily involves a degree of es�ma�on and
judgement in respect of certain items whose tax
treatment cannot be finally determined un�l
resolu�on has been reached with the relevant tax
authority or, as appropriate, through a formal legal
process. The final resolu�on of some of these items
may give rise to material profits/losses and/or cash
flows. Significant judgments are involved in
determining the provision for income taxes, including
amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain
tax posi�ons (Refer Note 36).

The recogni�on of deferred income tax assets
(including MAT Credit)/ liabili�es is based upon
management’s assessment of future taxable profits
for recoverability of the deferred benefit. Expected
recoverability may result from sufficient and suitable
taxable profits in the future, planned transac�ons and
planned tax op�mizing measures. To determine the
future taxable profits, reference is made to the latest
available profit forecasts.

b) Es�ma�on of Provisions and Con�ngent Liabili�es.

The Company exercises judgement in measuring and
recognizing provisions and the exposures to
con�ngent liabili�es which is related to pending
li�ga�on or other outstanding claims. Judgement is
necessary in assessing the likelihood that a pending
claim will succeed, or a liability will arise, and to
quan�fy the possible range of the financial
se�lement. Because of the inherent uncertainty in
this evalua�on process, actual liability may be
different from the originally es�mated as provision
(Refer Note 40).
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c) Es�mated useful life of Property, Plant and
Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment represent a significant
propor�on of the asset base of the Company. The
charge in respect of periodic deprecia�on is derived
a�er determining an es�mate of an asset’s expected
useful life and the expected residual value at the end
of its life. The useful lives and residual values of
Company’s assets are determined by management at
the �me the asset is acquired and reviewed
periodically, including at each financial year end.
Internal and external factors such as changes in the
expected level of usage, technological developments,
product life cycle, rela�ve efficiencies and opera�ng
costs may impact their life and the residual value of
these assets. This reassessment may result in change
in deprecia�on and amor�za�on expense and have an
impact on profit in future years. For the rela�ve size of
the Company’s property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (Refer Note 3 and 4).

d) Provision for inventories

The Company writes down inventories to net
realisable value based on an es�mate of the
realisability of inventories. Write downs on
inventories are recorded where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying balances may
not realised. The iden�fica�on of write- downs
requires the use of es�mates of net selling prices, age
and quality/condi�on of downgraded materials /
inventories. Where the expecta�on is different from
the original es�mate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and write-downs of
inventories in the periods in which such es�mate has
been changed.

Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value
amounted to  `  318.91 lakhs (March 31, 2022: `
316.15 lakhs). These were recognised as an expense
during the year and included in ‘changes in the
inventories of work-in-progress and finished goods’ in
standalone statement of Profit and Loss.

e) Es�ma�on of Defined Benefit Obliga�on

The present value of the defined benefit obliga�ons
depends on a number of factors that are determined
on an actuarial basis using a number of assump�ons.
Significant judgements are required when se�ng
these assump�ons which include es�ma�on of
appropriate discount rate, infla�on, salary growth,
a�ri�on rates and mortality rates. Any changes in
these assump�ons will impact the carrying amount of

such obliga�ons. All assump�ons are reviewed at 
each repor�ng date.

The Company determines the appropriate discount 
rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate 
that is used to determine the present value of 
es�mated future cash ou�lows expected to be 
required to se�le the defined benefit obliga�ons. In 
determining the appropriate discount rate, the 
Company considers the interest rates of government 
bonds of maturity approxima�ng the terms of the 
related plan liability. Refer Note 33 for the details of 
the assump�ons used in es�ma�ng the defined 
benefit obliga�on.

f) Es�ma�on of impairment of non-current assets

Ind AS 36 requires that the Company assesses
whether there is any indica�on of impairment to an
asset or a cash genera�ng unit and recoverability of
poten�ally impaired assets. The indica�on come from
interplay of various internal and external factors.
Based on the indica�ons/condi�ons which can be
external or internal, impairment tes�ng requires an
es�mate of value in use of the assets. The company
applies the discounted cash flow method based on
the con�nued use of the assets in the present
condi�on for calcula�on of value in use. In
considering the value in use, the management
requires the use of es�mates of, among other
uncertain variables, capacity u�liza�on, sales, cost of
materials, opera�ng margins, rate of growth,
currency rate movements and discount rates of the
underlying business/opera�ons.

Any consequent changes to the cash flows due to
changes in any of the above factors could impact the
carrying value of the assets.

NOTES 
to financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in `  Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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NOTE 3A:     PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Par�culars Freehold Leasehold  Building Plant  Vehicles Furniture  Equipments Computers Total Capital
 Land Improve- & Mac-  and  work in

ments hinery Fixtures progress          

Notes : 

(i) Refer to Note 19 for informa�on on property, plant and equipment hypothecated / pledged as security by the Company.

(ii) Contractual obliga�ons : Refer to Note 42 for disclosure of contractual commitments for acquisi�on of property, plant and

equipment.

(iii) Borrowing costs allocated to fixed assets / capital work in progress is `  40.83 lakhs (March 31, 2022 :  `  39.12 lakhs)

(Refer note 36).

(iv) Capital work-in-progress - Capital work-in-progress mainly comprises of new plant and machinery for spinning and texturising

process, being installed/constructed in India. (Refer Note 3a(i))

(v) In accordance with para D13AA of Ind AS 101 First �me adop�on of Indian Accoun�ng Standards and the op�on available in

the Companies (Accoun�ng Standards) (Second Amendment) Rules, 2011, vide no�fica�on dated December 29, 2011 issued

by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adjusted the exchange rate difference arising on long term foreign

currency monetary items, in so far as they relate to the acquisi�on of a depreciable capital asset, to the cost of the asset.

Accordingly, the Company has adjusted exchange gain of  ̀  Nil (March 31, 2022: ̀   8.95 lakhs) to the cost of property, plant and

equipment as the long term monetary items relate to depreciable capital asset.

NOTES 
to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended March 31, 2022 
Gross carrying amount  

Opening gross carrying amount 1,607.42 17.31 8154.91 47,956.55 183.42 242.17 186.36 490.38 58,838.52 1,722.22

Addi�ons - - - 62.55 9.41 17.81 4.01 17.62 111.40 7,463.22

Disposals - - - (482.34) - - (2.91) (27.11) (512.36) -

Transfers from CWIP - - - 7,523.62 - 1.31 5.31 160.01 7,690.25 (7,690.25)

Closing gross carrying amount 1,607.42 17.31 8,154.91 55,060.38 192.83 261.29 192.77 640.90 66,127.81 1495.32

Accumulated deprecia�on

Opening accumulated deprecia�on - 16.27 1195.86 15,614.49 68.25 90.31 123.92 411.28 17520.38 -

Deprecia�on charge during the year  - - 313.05 4,200.55 21.90 24.46 26.96 42.90 4629.82 -

Disposals  - - - (247.03) - - (2.79) (1.29) (251.11) -

Closing accumulated deprecia�on - 16.27 1508.91 19,568.01 90.15 114.77 148.09 452.89 21899.09 -

Net carrying amount as at 
March 31, 2022 1,607.42 1.04 6,646.00 35,492.37 102.68 146.52 44.68 188.01 44,228.72 1,495.32

Year ended March 31, 2023 
Gross carrying amount 

Opening gross carrying amount 1,607.42 17.31 8,154.91 55,060.38 192.83 261.29 192.77 640.90 66,127.81 1,495.32

Addi�ons 44.62 - - 77.11 - 0.44 3.11 7.68 132.96 6,415.15

Disposals - - (4.43) (467.44) - (0.07) (0.02) - (471.96) -

Transfers from CWIP - - 843.53 3,871.11 - 5.90 93.47 4,814.01 (4,814.01)

Closing gross carrying amount 1,652.04 17.31 8,994.01 58,541.16 192.83 261.66 201.76 742.05 70,602.82 3,096.46

Accumulated deprecia�on 

Opening accumulated deprecia�on - 16.27 1,508.91 19,568.01 90.15 114.77 148.09 452.89 21,899.09 -

Deprecia�on charge during the year - - 384.17 4,460.11 22.11 25.02 20.48 68.63 4,980.52 -

Disposals  - - (1.30) (327.11) - (0.04) (0.01) - (328.46) -

Closing accumulated deprecia�on - 16.27 1,891.78 23,701.01 112.26 139.75 168.56 521.52 26,551.15 -

Net carrying amount as at 
March 31, 2023 1,652.04 1.04 7,102.23 34,840.15 80.57 121.91 33.20 220.53 44,051.67 3,096.46



NOTE 3a (i)  CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

(A) AGING OF CWIP:

Projects in progress Amounts in capital work-in-progress for 

Less than one year 1 – 2 years 2 – 3 years More than 3 years Total

March 31, 2023 2,882.63 213.83 - - 3096.46

March 31, 2022 1,495.32 - - - 1,495.32 

NOTE 3a (ii)  COMPLETION SCHEDULE FOR CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS WHOSE COMPLETION IS OVERDUE :  

Projects in progress To be Completed in  

Less than one year 1 – 2 years 2 – 3 years More than 3 years Total

March 31, 2023 - - - - -

March 31, 2022 - - - - - 

NOTE 3a (iii) TITLE DEEDS OF IMMOVABLE PROPERTY NOT IN THE NAME OF THE COMPANY

Relevant 
line item in 
the balance 
sheet

Descrip�on of item of 
property

Gross carrying 
value 

Title deeds 
held in the 
name of

Whether �tle deed 
holder is a 
promoter, director 
or rela�ve of 
promoter/ director 
or employee of 
promoter/ director

Property held 
since which 
date

Reason for not 
being held in the 
name of the 
company

Building - Residen�al 
flats -  Flat No. C-4-18 to 
C-4-23  (6 flats) at
Vardhman Co-op. Hsg
Soc.Ltd. Survey No. 91,
Village Lavachha Tal.
Pardi.

14.85 Original 
�tle deeds 
not 
traceable

No 30-Sep-98 Original �tle 
deeds not 
traceable

Building

NOTES 
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Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Note 3(b): LEASES 

This note provides informa�on for leases where the Company is a lessee. 

The Company leases various offices, warehouses and vehicles etc. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 6 months to 
5 years, but may have extension op�ons  as described in (ii) below. 

(i) Amounts recognised in balance sheet

The balance sheet shows  the following  amounts rela�ng to leases:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Lease Liabili�es 

Current 602.84 698.79

Non-current 171.18 946.97

Total 774.02 1,645.76

Addi�ons to the right-of-use assets during the current financial year were ̀  67.38 lakhs (March 31, 2022: ̀   1533.78 lakhs).

(ii) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss

The statement of profit or loss shows  the following  amounts rela�ng to leases:

Par�culars Note No As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022

Interest expense (included in finance costs) 36 107.23 69.57

Expense rela�ng to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 35 18.00 13.06

Total 125.23 82.63

Par�culars Note No As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022

The total cash ou�low for leases for the year ended March 31, 2023 was ̀  722.51 lakhs (March 31, 2022:  ̀   513.8 lakhs). 

The majority of extension and termina�on op�ons held are exercisable only by the Company and not by the respec�ve lessor.    

The lease liability is remeasured during the year ended March 31, 2023 due to decrease in scope of lease. Due to this, the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use assets is decreased to reflect the par�al termina�on of lease resul�ng in a gain of  ̀  7.10 lakhs. 

NOTES 
to financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in `  Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Deprecia�on charge of right-of-use assets 

Buildings 34 656.50        394.45 

Vehicles 34 2.36 9.79 

Total 658.86 404.24 

Right-of-use  assets

Buildings 730.88 1,634.92

Vehicles - 2.35

Total 730.88 1,637.27



Note 4:         INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Par�culars Computer So�ware

Year ended March 31, 2022

Gross carrying amount 

Opening  123.66 

Addi�ons during the year 13.59 

Disposals during the year  -   

Closing gross carrying amount  137.25  

Accumulated amor�sa�on 

Opening  83.67 

Charge during the year  21.76 

Amor�sa�on on disposals -   

Closing accumulated amor�sa�on 105.43  

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 31.82  

Year ended March 31, 2023 

Gross carrying amount 

Opening 137.25 

Addi�ons during the year  -   

Disposals during the year  -   

Closing gross carrying amount  137.25  

Accumulated amor�sa�on 

Opening  105.43 

Charge during the year  12.49 

Amor�sa�on on disposals -   

Closing accumulated amor�sa�on  117.92  

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023  19.33 

 NOTE 6:     LOANS- NON-CURRENT 

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Loans to employees 56.58 55.38

Total 56.58 55.38

NOTES 
to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

 NOTE 5:        NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS 

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

 Unquoted (Investment in subsidiary) 

 10,000 equity shares of face value of � 10 each (March 31, 2022 : Nil) 

- AYM Tex�les Private Limited 1.00 -  

Total  1.00 -   

 NOTE 7 :     NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Security deposits 193.00 200.45

Deposits with banks with maturity period of more than 12 months 106.36 28.54

Total 299.36 228.99
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NOTE 8:     INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Income tax assets  108.64 108.64

Add : Taxes Paid 259.08 -

           MAT u�lised 248.24 -

Less : Provision for current tax (435.59) -

Total 180.37 108.64

NOTE 9:     DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Deferred tax assets

Defined benefit obliga�on 377.07 430.73

Provision for doub�ul debts 21.85 58.00

MAT credit en�tlement*  5,825.92 6,074.16

Lease liabili�es 270.47 575.10

Others including expenses allowable on payment basis 408.55 393.52

6,903.86 7,531.51

Deferred tax liabili�es 

Deprecia�on 4,652.64 4,763.83

Right-of-use assets 255.40 572.13

4,908.04 5,335.96

Net defered tax assets 1,995.82 2,195.55

 Note: 

*In assessing the realisability of deferred tax on MAT credit en�tlement, the Company considers the extent to which it is probable
that the credit will be realised. En�tlement of MAT credit is recognised to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company
will be able to u�lise the said credit against normal tax payable during the period of fi�een years succeeding the year of filing of
return of Income tax.The Company considers the expected projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making
this assessment. Based on this, the Company believes that it is probable that it will realise the benefits of this MAT credit
en�tlement.

MOVEMENT IN DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabili�es

Unabsorbed  MAT credit Defined Provision Lease Deprecia�on Right-of-use Net deferred
tax losses- en�tlement benefit Liabili�es assets tax assets

deprecia�on obliga�on 

As at April 1, 2021 1,834.51 5,473.83              436.15             498.76             206.74          4,594.24 181.41 3,674.34

Charged/credited:

- to profit or loss (1,834.51) 600.33 1.60 (47.24) 368.36 169.59 390.72 (1,471.77)

- to other comprehensive income - - (7.02) - - - - (7.02)

At March 31, 2022 - 6,074.16 430.73 451.52 575.10 4,763.83 572.13 2,195.55 

As at April 1, 2022 - 6,074.16 430.73 451.52 575.10 4,763.83 572.13 2,195.55 

Charged / credited 

- to statement of Profit & Loss - - (13.41) (21.12) (304.63) (111.19) (316.73) 88.76

- MAT credit u�lisa�on - (248.24) - - - - - (248.24)

- to other comprehensive income - - (40.25) - - - - (40.25)

At March 31, 2023 - 5,825.92 377.07 430.40 270.47 4,652.64 255.40 1,995.82

 The above asset are net of provision for tax ₹ 2,874.86 lakhs (March 31, 2022 : ₹ 2439.27 lakhs) 

NOTES 
to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
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 # U�lisa�on of deferred tax assets on carry forward MAT credit is towards current tax payable and hence not routed through the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 



 NOTE 10 :     OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Capital advances 465.11 527.07

Prepaid expenses 18.47 17.95

Balances with government authori�es 85.33 97.76

Total 568.91 642.78

 NOTE 11 :     INVENTORIES

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Raw Materials

-In stock 3,877.56 3,241.57

-In transit 4,078.95 4,039.47

Goods-in-process 2,363.58 1,795.73

Finished goods 

-In stock 4,811.45 4,647.70

-In transit 2,731.47 3,270.36

Consumables, packing materials, stores and spares 2,077.25 1,833.82

Total  19,940.26 18,828.65

 Refer Note 1.11  and Note 2 (d) for basis of valua�on and provision. 

 NOTE 12 :     TRADE RECEIVABLES - UNSECURED 

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Current Trade receivables from contracts billed with:

Related par�es (Refer Note 46)  209.99 173.73

Others 10,257.29 11,183.43

Less: Loss allowance (62.53) (165.97)

Total 10,404.75 11,191.19

AGING OF TRADE RECEIVABLES : FOR MARCH 31, 2023

 Outstanding for following periods from the due date

Par�culars Not Due Less than 6  6 months -  1-2 years 2-3 years More than  Total
Months 1 years 3 years 

Undisputed trade receivables 

considered good          7,966.32 2,400.39 38.04 - - - 10,404.75

which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - -

credit impaired  - 23.83 17.30 16.81 4.59 - 62.53

Less: Loss allowance - (23.83) (17.30) (16.81) (4.59) - (62.53)

Total 7,966.32 2,400.39 38.04 - - - 10,404.75

NOTES 
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 NOTE 13 :     CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Balance with Banks

- in current accounts 779.61 320.65

- in EEFC account 107.47 49.97

Cash on hand 20.96 14.45

Total 908.04 385.07

 NOTE 14 :     BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ABOVE 

Par�culars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Balance with Banks in

- in margin money deposits with banks having maturity period upto
twelve months (Refer below} 1,312.21 1,688.72

Total 1,312.21 1,688.72

Notes: 

Fixed money deposits with banks having maturity period more than 12 months are disclosed under "Non-current financial assets - 
Other financial assets" (Refer Note 7) 

 NOTE 15 :     LOANS

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Loans and advances to employees 52.61 59.62

Total 52.61 59.62

 NOTE 16 :     CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Security deposits 105.32 70.76

Less : Provision for doub�ul balances (70.76) (70.76)

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 19.35 31.20

Other receivables 99.55 -

Total 153.46 31.20

NOTES 
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(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

AGING OF TRADE RECEIVABLES : FOR MARCH 31, 2022

 Outstanding for following periods from the due date

Par�culars Not Due Less than 6  6 months -  1-2 years 2-3 years More than  Total
Months 1 years 3 years 

Undisputed trade receivables 

considered good          3,903.29 5.46 0.64 0.11 - 11,191.197,281.69

which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - -

credit impaired  - 43.35 7.59 24.37 89.11 1.55 165.97

Less: Loss allowance - (43.35) (7.59) (24.37) (89.11) (1.55) (165.97)

Total 7,281.69 3,903.29 5.46 0.64 0.11 - 11,191.19



 NOTE 17 :     OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Assets held for disposal 5.70 5.60

Advances to vendors (recoverable in cash or kind) 986.39 1,758.98

Prepaid expenses 127.29 151.58

Balances with government authori�es 6866.54 7,601.91

Export benefits receivable 278.73 338.03

Technology upgrada�on fund subsidy receivable 391.31 391.31

Less: Loss allowance (391.31) (391.31)

Total 8,264.65 9,856.10

 NOTE 18(A) :     EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Authorized equity share capital

9,20,00,000 (March 31, 2022: 9,20,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each 9,200.00 9,200.00 

2,80,00,000 (March 31, 2022: 2,80,00,000) Op�onally Conver�ble Cumula�ve  

Preference Shares of  ` 10/- each  2,800.00 2,800.00 

12,000.00 12,000.00 

 Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital 

50,35,3314 (March 31, 2022: 50,153,634) Equity Shares of  ` 10/- each 

fully paid up 5,035.33 5,015.36

Total  5,035.33 5,015.36

NOTES 
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Movement in equity share capital Number of equity shares Amount

 As at March 31, 2020  49,975,114 4,997.51

Add: Exercise of op�ons - proceeds received 60,200 6.02

As at March 31, 2021 50,035,314  5,003.53

Add: Exercise of op�ons - proceeds received 118,320 11.83

As at March 31, 2022 50,153,634 5,015.36

Add: Exercise of op�ons - proceeds received 199,680 19.97

As at March 31, 2023 50,353,314 5,035.33

Terms/ rights a�ached to equity shares 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of �10 per share. All issued shares rank pari-passu and have 

same vo�ng rights per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in indian rupees.
In the event of liquida�on of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be en�tled to receive remaining assets of the 
Company, a�er distribu�on of preferen�al amounts. The distribu�on will be in propor�on to the number of equity shares held by 
the shareholders.

Equity shares held by holding company As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022

Mandawewala Enterprises Limited 36,734,927 36,734,927

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022

Mandawewala Enterprises Limited Number of equity shares 36,734,927 36,734,927

Mandawewala Enterprises Limited Percentage of holding 72.95% 73.24%

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Details of shareholding of promoters Number of  Percentage of Percentage of Number of  Percentage of Percentage of 
Shares total number  change during Shares total number  change during

of shares the year of shares the year

Mandawewala Enterprises Limited 36,734,927 72.95% -0.29% 36,734,927 73.24% 0.83% 

RRM Family Trust 500,000 0.99% -0.01% 500,000 1.00% 100.00% 

116



 NOTE 18 (B):    OTHER EQUITY - RESERVES AND SURPLUS 

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Capital reserve 2,664.93 2,664.93

Capital redemp�on reserve 293.36 293.36

Securi�es premium 7,159.85 7,056.59

General reserve  107.06 107.06

Share op�ons outstanding account 303.89 190.77

Retained earnings 26,460.93 25,669.27

Total 36,990.01 35,981.98

- Capital reserve

As per last balance sheet 2,664.93 2,664.93

Add/(less): Changes during the year - -

2,664.93 2,664.93

- Capital redemp�on reserve

As per last balance sheet  293.36 293.36

Add/(less): Changes during the year  - -

293.36 293.36

- Securi�es premium

As per last balance sheet 7,056.59 7,016.39

Add: Exercise of op�ons - proceeds received 103.26 40.20

7,159.86 7,056.59

- General reserve

As per last balance sheet 107.06 107.06

Add/ (Less): Changes during the year - -

107.06 107.06

- Share op�ons outstanding account

As per last balance sheet 190.77 105.94

Add: Employee share based payment expense 216.38 125.03

Less: Employee stock op�ons exercised 103.26 40.20

303.89 190.77

- Retained earnings

Opening balance 25,669.27 20,574.79

Restated Balance 25,669.27 20,574.79

Add/(Less): 

Net profit for the year  716.74 5,081.42

Item of other comprehensive income recognized directly in retained earnings 

- Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obliga�on, net of tax 74.92 13.06

26,460.93 25,669.27

Movement As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

 Nature and purpose of reserves  
 Capital reserve  
 Capital reserve represents capital surplus and is not available for distribu�on as dividend.  
 Securi�es premium reserve  
 Securi�es premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is u�lized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 Capital redemp�on reserve (CRR)  
 CRR is created on redemp�on of preference shares in accordance with the provisions of the Act.  
 Debenture redemp�on reserve (DRR)  
 DRR was created on issue of debentures in the earlier years. This has been transferred to General reserve as the debentures have been redeemed.  
 General reserve   
 General reserve represents appropria�on of profits by the Company.  
 Share op�ons outstanding account  
The share op�ons outstanding account is used to recognise the grant date fair value of op�ons issued to employees under AYM Syntex Limited employee stock op�on 
plan.  
 Retained earnings   
 Retained earnings represent the accumulated undistributed earnings.  

NOTES 
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 NOTE 19 :    NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Secured

Term loans from banks 

- Rupee loans 18,534.56 17,765.72

Unsecured, considered good 

Inter-corporate deposits from related par�es 2,400.00 1,200.00

Less: Current maturi�es of long-term debt (included in current borrowings) (5,772.19) (4,297.31)

Total 15,162.37 14,668.41

Note: 

The rate of interest on the borrowings are in range of 7.75% to 9.30% p .a.  (March 31, 2022 : 7.6% to 11% p.a. ). The rupee term loans 
from banks are eligible for Central and State Government interest subsidies/ rebates.

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Cash and cash equivalent 908.04 385.07

Lease liabili�es (774.02) (1645.76)

Term Loans from banks (20,934.56) (18965.72)

Current borrowings (including overdra�) (5,865.77) (8,356.94)

Net debt (26,666.31) (28,583.35)

Net debt reconcilia�on

This sec�on sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented.

NOTES 
to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
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Par�culars Other assets Liabili�es from financial ac�vi�es
Cash and Cash Lease  Non Current Current Total

equivalents Liabili�es borrowings* borrowings 

Cash flows (net) 529.18  320.50  829.12              3,547.08  5,225.88 

Net debt as at March 31,2021                702.39                (591.63)           (19,453.80)            (2,573.11) (21,916.15)

Cash flows (net)               (317.32) 444.23  488.08             (5,783.83) (5,168.84)

New leases -               (1,498.36) -                          - (1,498.36)

Interest expense -    (69.57)          (1,715.30)  (204.98) (1,989.85)

Interest paid - 69.57               1,715.30               204.98 1,989.85

Net debt as at March 31, 2022                385.07             (1,645.76)           (18,965.72)            (8,356.94) (28,583.35)

Cash flows (net) 522.97 615.28 (1,968.84) 2,491.17 1,660.58 

New leases - (67.38) - - (67.38)

Interest expense - (107.23) (1,765.07) (513.34) (2,385.64)

Interest paid - 107.23 1,765.07 513.34  2,385.64 

Non-cash movements 

- Fair value adjustment - 323.84 - - 323.84 

Net debt as at March 31, 2023 908.04 (774.02) (20,934.56) (5,865.77) (26,666.31)

* Includes current maturi�es of long-term borrowings
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Par�culars Last  Terms of  As at March  As at  March 
installment   Repayment 31, 2023 31, 2022 

due

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the present  April-2024 Repayable in 28 quarterly 340.78 565.78
and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable proper�es and installments commencing
2nd pari passu charged over current assets of the Company  from  Jan 2017 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the present  April-2024 Repayable in 28 quarterly  486.95 825.99
and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable proper�es and  installments commencing 
2nd pari passu charged over current assets of the Company  from Jan 2017 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the present  September - Repayable in 27 quarterly  448.58 710.61
and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable proper�es and 2024 installments commencing
2nd pari passu charged over current assets of the Company from July 2017 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the present  January 2025 Repayable in 30 quarterly 771.03 1,031.99
and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable proper�es and  installments commencing  
2nd pari passu charged over current assets of the Company  from  July 2017

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the present  April-2025 Repayable in 28 quarterly  851.32 1,215.82
and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable proper�es and  installments commencing 
2nd pari passu charged over current assets of the Company  from June 2018 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the present  April-2025 Repayable in 28 quarterly  528.84 722.53
and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable proper�es and  installments commencing 
2nd pari passu charged over current assets of the Company from October 2018 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge  July-2026 Repayable in 28  1,558.94 1,900.72
over the present and future fixed assets, all movable  quarterly installments  
and immovable proper�es and 2nd pari passu charged  commencing from 
over current assets of the Company  October 2018 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the present  Jun-2026 Repayable in 29 quarterly 4,383.15 5,345.64
and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable proper�es and  installments commencing
2nd pari passu charged over current assets of the Company from December 2019 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the present  June-2022 Repayable in 18 Monthly  - 69.33
and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable proper�es and  installments commencing  
2nd pari passu charged over current assets of the Company  from January 2021 

Rupee working capital term loan is secured by 2nd pari passu charge  February-26 Repayable in 48 Monthly  678.13  910.63
over the present and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable  installments commencing  
proper�es and 2nd pari passu charged over current assets of the  from March 2022.           
Company  

Rupee working capital term loan is secured by 2nd pari passu charge  February-26 Repayable in 48 Monthly 1,808.33 2,428.33
over the present and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable  installments commencing  
proper�es and 2nd pari passu charged over current assets of the  from April 2022. 
Company  

Rupee working capital term loan is secured by 2nd pari passu charge March- 2026 Repayable in 48 Monthly  225.00 300.00
over the present and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable  installments commencing  
proper�es and 2nd pari passu charged over current assets of the  from April 2022. 
Company  

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the present  November Repayable in 18 quarterly 1,932.40 1,738.34
and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable proper�es of the  - 2026 installments commencing  
Company  from August 2022

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the en�re  August- 2027 Repayable in 16 quarterly  2,488.96  -   
fixed assets, and 2nd pari passu charge over the en�re current asset  installments commencing 
of the Company  from Nov 2023 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the present  Mar- 2028 Repayable in 20 quarterly  2,032.15  -   
and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable proper�es of the  installments commencing  
Company  from Jun 2023 

Total         18,534.56            17,765.72 

NOTES 
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 Note: 

The working capital loans, which includes cash credit and packing credit, are secured by hypotheca�on of raw material, stock-
inprocess, finished goods, semi finished goods, stores, spares and book debts and other current assets of the Company and second 
charge on en�re fixed assets of the Company.

 NOTE 20 :     OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Creditors for capital purchases 242.28 502.96

Total 242.28 502.96

 NOTE 21 :     NON-CURRENT EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 33) 742.27 806.83

Total 742.27 806.83

 NOTE 22 :     OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Deferred capital subsidy - 0.45

Total - 0.45

 NOTE 23 :    CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Secured

Working capital loan from banks

- Rupee loans 5,560.51 2,414.06

Current maturi�es of long-term borrowings (Refer Note 19) 5,772.19 4,297.31

Unsecured 

Buyers’ credit from banks 305.26 5,942.88

Total  11,637.96 12,654.25

NOTES 
to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
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 NOTE 24 :    TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Acceptances 11,721.69 12,991.76

Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises (Refer Note 43) 1,590.41 1,904.83

Dues to other 5,939.47 3,297.40

Total 19,251.57 18,193.99

 For payables to Related par�es (Refer Note 48) 

 AGING OF TRADE PAYABLES: FOR MARCH 31, 20223

 Outstanding for following periods from the due date

Par�culars Not Due Less than    1-2 2-3 More than  Total
1 year years years 3 years 

Undisputed trade receivables  

Micro, small and medium enterprises 1,590.41 - - - - 1,591.41

Others 15,263.29 2,235.09 49.55 30.95 82.28 17,661.16

Total 16,853.70 2,235.09 49.55 30.95 82.28 19,251.57

 AGING OF TRADE PAYABLES: FOR MARCH 31, 2022

 Outstanding for following periods from the due date

Par�culars Not Due Less than    1-2 2-3 More than  Total 
1 year years years 3 years 

Undisputed trade receivables  

Micro, small and medium enterprises 1,904.83 - - - - 1,904.83

Others 13,909.64 2,263.62 27.38 87.00 1.52 16,289.16

Total 15,814.47 2,263.62 27.38 87.00 1.52 18,193.99       

NOTES 
to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
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 NOTE 25 :    OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

 Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 116.20 82.74

Unclaimed dividend (Refer Note (a) below) - 0.36

Creditors for capital purchases 664.32 924.76

Security deposits 166.20 131.93

Total 946.72 1,139.79

Note: 

During the year, the amount due for payments to the Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund under Sec�on 125 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 have been transferred to the fund. 



 NOTE 26 :    CURRENT EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 33) 80.64 40.05

Provision for compensated absences (Refer Note 33) 256.17 385.75

Employee benefit payables 198.51 312.64

Total 535.32 738.44

Note:  

The en�re amount of the provision of ̀  256.17 lakhs (31 March 2022 –  ̀  385.75 lakhs) is presented as current, since the Company does not 
have an uncondi�onal right to defer se�lement for any of these obliga�ons. However, based on past experience, the Company does not 
expect all employees to avail the full amount of accrued leave or require payment for such leave within the next 12 months.  

 NOTE 27 :    INCOME TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Opening balance 581.61 64.82

Add : Provision for Current Tax - 1,403.55

Less : Paid during the year (578.29) (886.76)

Closing Balance 3.32 581.61

 The above liabili�es are net of advance taxes paid of � 1830.51 lakhs, (March 31, 2022 : � 1252.22 lakhs). ( Refer Note 37) 

 NOTE 28 :    OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Contact Liabili�es 543.46 549.75

Statutory dues 171.25 180.02

Deferred capital subsidy 0.47 5.42

Total 715.18 735.19

 NOTE 29:    REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Par�culars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Revenue from contract with customers 

Sale of products 142,287.38 145,386.19

Sales of Services 343.00 403.16

Other Opera�ng Revenue 

Sale of scrap 606.88 584.21

Export incen�ves (Refer Note 1.3) 2,540.96 2,772.39

Total 145,778.22 149,145.95

 NOTE 30:    OTHER INCOME

Par�culars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Exchange difference (net) 359.32 160.67

Interest on: 

- Fixed deposits 59.53 89.61

- Others 161.87 76.68

Profit on sale of current investments - 3.92

Insurance claim 11.43 23.00

Miscellaneous 194.70 82.03

Total 786.85 435.91

NOTES 
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Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period is 549.75 lakhs (March 31, 2022 : 
380.54 lakhs) 
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 NOTE 31:    COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED 

Par�culars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Raw material consumed  

Inventory at the beginning of the year  7,281.04 6,857.73

Add: Purchases 88,072.26 88,286.58

95,353.30 95,144.31

Less: Inventory at the end of the year 7,956.51 7,281.04

Total 87,396.79 87,863.27

 NOTE 32:    CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND GOODS-IN-PROCESS 

Par�culars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Inventory at the end of the year

Goods-in-process 2,363.58 1,795.73

Finished goods 7,542.92 7,918.06

9,906.50 9,713.79

Less: Inventory at the beginning of the year  

Goods-in-process 1,795.73 1,542.43

Finished goods 7,918.06 5,703.84

9,713.79 7,246.27

Total changes in inventories of finished goods and goods-in-process  (192.71) (2,467.52)

 NOTE 33:    EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 

Par�culars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Salaries, wages and allowances 5364.80 5,390.88

Employee share based payment expense (Refer note 49) 216.38 125.03

Managerial remunera�on 223.46 199.38

Contribu�on to provident and other funds 355.56 323.24

Gratuity 169.48 156.60

Workmen and staff welfare expenses 218.30 263.22

Total 6547.98 6,458.35

 Defined Contribu�on Plans  Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

During the year, the Company has recognized the following amounts in 

the statement of Profit and Loss:  

Employers’ Contribu�on to Provident Fund*  329.17 295.44 

Employers’ Contribu�on to Employees’ State Insurance *  26.08 27.49 

Employers’ Contribu�on to Labour welfare fund*   0.31 0.31 

Total  355.56 323.24

* Included in Contribu�on to Provident and Other Funds

NOTES 
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*Provident fund contribu�on � 12.37 lakhs and gratuity � 5.03 lakhs are included in managerial remunera�on.



Defined Benefit Plan 

Contribu�on to Gratuity

The Company provides for every employee who is en�tled to a benefit equivalent to fi�een days salary last drawn for each completed 
year of service in line with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The same is payable at the �me of separa�on from the Company or 
re�rement, whichever is earlier. 

Risk exposure 

These defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risk such as longevity risks, interest rate risks, market (investment) risks.

 Major Assump�ons   Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

% p.a. % p.a.

Discount Rate   7.50 7.32

Salary Escala�on Rate *  7.00 8.00

Rate of Employee Turnover:  

-Upto 30 years 4.00 4.00

-From 31 to 44 years 6.00 4.00

-Above 44 years 2.00 2.00

Mortality Rate During Employment 100% of IALM  100% of IALM 
(2012-2014) (2012-2014)  

* The es�mates for future salary increases considered takes into account the infla�on, seniority, promo�on and other relevant factors.

 Change in the Present Value of Obliga�on     Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Opening Present Value of Obliga�on  846.88 878.65 

Current Service Cost  112.52 95.89 

Interest Cost  61.99 60.71 

Total amount recognized in profit or loss  174.51 156.60 

Remeasurement  

(Gain)/Loss from change in demographic assump�ons and experience adjustments (26.24) 18.85

(Gain)/Loss from change in financial assump�ons  (88.93)  (38.94)

Total amount recognized in other comprehensive income  (115.17) (20.09)

Benefit/ Exgra�a paid  83.31 168.28

Closing Present Value of Obliga�on  822.91 846.88

 Amount recognized in the Balance sheet  Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Present value of Obliga�on 822.91 846.88

Funded Status [(Surplus/ (Deficit)]  (822.91) (846.88)

Expense recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss  174.51 156.60

Expense recognized in Other comprehensive income  115.17 20.09

Net (liability)/ Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet  (822.91) (846.88)

Expenses Recognized in Profit and Loss  Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Current Service Cost  112.52 95.89 

Interest Cost  61.99 60.71 

Expenses recognized in the of profit or loss* 174.51 156.60 

* Included in Employee Benefits Expense

NOTES 
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Expenses recognized in Other Comprehensive Income  Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Re-measurement (Refer Note b above)  

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obliga�on For the year  (115.17) (20.08)

Net (Income)/Expenses for the Period Recognized in OCI  (115.17) (20.08)

Sensi�vity Analysis  Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Projected Benefit Obliga�on on Current Assump�ons  822.91 846.88

Delta Effect of 

+0.5% Change in Rate of Discoun�ng (42.86) (41.10)

-0.5% Change in Rate of Discoun�ng 32.60 46.32

+0.5% Change in Rate of Salary 32.60 45.80

-0.5% Change in Rate of Salary (31.31) (41.03)

+0.5% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover* 1.16 1.12

-0.5% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover* (1.23) (1.49)

The above sensi�vity analyses are based on a change in an assump�on while holding all other assump�ons constant. In prac�ce, this 
is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assump�ons may be correlated. When calcula�ng the sensi�vity of the defined 
benefit obliga�on to significant actuarial assump�ons the same method (present value of the defined benefit obliga�on calculated 
with the projected unit credit method at the end of the repor�ng period) has been applied as when calcula�ng the defined benefit 
liability recognized in the Balance Sheet. 

The methods and types of assump�ons used in preparing the sensi�vity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

Defined benefit liability and employer contribu�ons

The Company considers that the contribu�on rates set at the last valua�on date are sufficient to eliminate the deficit over the 
agreed period and that regular contribu�ons, which are based on service costs, will not increase significantly.

The weighted average dura�on of the defined benefit obliga�on is 16.37 years (2022 -15.21 years). The expected maturity analysis 
of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

Year Amount

2023 - 2024  183.90

2024 - 2025  100.15 

2025 - 2026  91.98

2026 - 2027  113.89

2027 -2028 100.61

 Less than a year More than one year 

As at March 31, 2023  

Defined benefit obliga�on (gratuity)  80.64 742.27

As at March 31, 2022  

Defined benefit obliga�on (gratuity)  40.05  806.83 

 Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obliga�on 

Other employee benefit 

The liability for compensated absences as at year end is ` 256.17 Lakhs (March 31, 2022: ` 385.75 Lakhs) 
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 NOTE 34:    DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE 

Par�culars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Deprecia�on on property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 3a) 4,980.52 4,629.83 

Deprecia�on of right-of-use assets (Refer Note 3b) 658.86 404.24 

Amor�za�on of intangible assets (Refer Note 4)  12.49 21.76 

Total  5,651.87 5,055.83 

 NOTE 35:    OTHER EXPENSES  

Par�culars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 Consump�on of stores and spares  3,606.65  3,410.92 

 Packing materials  4,488.71  4,473.58 

 Dyes and chemicals  4,219.33  4,223.21 

 Power, fuel and water  10,374.64  8,973.27 

 Contract labour charges  4,433.65  4,613.09 

 Repairs and maintenance:  

-Buildings 162.85  144.37 

-Property, plant and equipment 581.84  524.46 

-Others 244.30  242.28 

 Rent  18.00  13.06 

 Rates and taxes  45.93  39.38 

 Insurance   328.27  268.69 

 Directors si�ng fees  14.49  15.24 

 Prin�ng and sta�onery   33.50  32.45 

 Travelling and conveyance expenses  479.08  213.62 

 Legal and professional charges  825.89  785.11 

 Payment to auditors [Refer Note (a) below]  32.80  24.83 

 Communica�on charges  38.69  35.69 

 Vehicle expenses  63.18  41.73 

 Loss on sale/discarding of property, plant and equipment (net)  110.65  234.59 

 Freight and forwarding expenses  9,164.23  10,112.03 

 Brokerage and commission   2,004.68  1,856.67 

 Dona�ons  5.11  1.52 

 Corporate social responsibility expenditure (Refer Note:52)  72.41  25.45 

 Miscellaneous expenses  1,149.28  816.05 

 Total  42,498.16  41,121.29 

 Note (a) Payment to auditors for:  

 As auditor:   

-Audit fees 29.00  21.75 

-Tax audit 2.25  1.75 

 In other capaci�es:  

-Cer�fica�ons 1.15  1.30 

-Reimbursement of expenses 0.40  0.03 

 Total  32.80  24.83 
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 NOTE 36:    FINANCE COSTS 

Par�culars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Interest and finance charges on lease liabili�es and financial liabili�es   

- Long term borrowings   1,765.07 1,715.30 

- Short term borrowings 513.34   204.98 

- Others 252.03    511.55 

Bank and other financial charges  1,068.97 1,162.06 

Total  3,599.41 3,593.89 

Par�culars As at  As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Current tax  

Current tax on profits for the year     435.59 1,403.55

(A)  435.59 1,403.55

Deferred tax  

Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets#  339.16 911.47

(Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabili�es  (427.92)  560.31

(B)  (88.76) 1,471.78

 Income tax expense charged to profit or loss (C) = (A) + (B)  346.83  2,875.33

 NOTE 37:    INCOME TAX EXPENSE

a) This note provides an analysis of the Company’s income tax expense, show amounts that are recognised directly in equity and
how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deduc�ble items. It also explains significant es�mates made in
rela�on to the Company’s tax posi�ons.

i)  Income tax related to items recognised directly in profit or loss of the Statement of Profit and Loss

b) The reconcilia�on of es�mated income tax expense at the Indian statutory income tax rate to the income tax expenses reported
in statement of profit and loss is as follows:

ii) Deferred tax related to items recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI)

Par�culars As at  As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 Deferred tax on remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plan  40.25 7.02 

 Deferred tax credited to other comprehensive income   40.25 7.02 

Par�culars As at  As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Profit before income tax  1063.57 7,956.75

Tax at the Indian tax rate of 34.94% (March 31, 2022: 34.94%)  371.65 2,780.41

Expected tax expense at the enacted tax rate in India  

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax expense:  

1) Non-deduc�ble expenses

Dona�ons and CSR Expenditure  27.09 9.43 

Other items  4.49 26.70 

2) Tax benefit items

Other items  (7.81) (4.15)

3) Adjustment in deferred tax rela�ng to prior year -   (5.75)

4) Re-measurement of Deferred tax assets / Deferred tax liabili�es (48.59)   68.69

Income tax expense charged to the statement of profit and loss  346.83  2,875.33
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Note:   Total borrowing costs is ₹ 3,640.24 (March 31, 2022 : ₹ 3633.01 lakhs) out of which, ₹ 40.83 lakhs (March 31, 2022 : 
₹ 39.12 lakhs) allocated to fixed assets / capital work in progress.



NOTE 38:     FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Financial instruments by category:

As at March 31, 2023         As at March 31, 2022

Financial assets Note Amor�sed cost FVTPL Amor�sed cost FVTPL

Trade receivables  12 10,404.75 11,191.19 -

Margin money deposits with banks 14 1,312.21 - 1,688.72 -

Cash and cash equivalents 13 908.04 - 385.07 -

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 7, 14 106.36 - 28.54 -

Security deposits 7, 16 227.56 - 200.45 -

Loans 6, 15 109.19 - 115.00 -

Investment in Subsidiary 5 - 1.00 - -

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 16 19.35 - 31.20 -

Total financial assets 13,087.46 1.00 13,640.17 -

As at March 31, 2023          As at March 31, 2022

Financial liabili�es Note Amor�sed cost FVTPL Amor�sed cost FVTPL

Borrowings 19, 23 26,800.33 - 27,322.66 -

Trade payables 24 19,251.57 - 18,193.99 -

Payable for capital goods 20, 25 906.60 - 1,427.72 -

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 25 116.20 - 82.74 -

Security deposits received 25 166.20 - 131.94 -

Lease liabili�es 3(b) 774.02 - 1,645.76 -

Unclaimed dividend 25 - - 0.36 -

Total financial liabili�es 48,014.92 - 48,805.17  -

Fair value hierarchy 

The fair values of the financial assets and liabili�es are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transac�on between market par�cipants at the measurement date.

This sec�on explains the judgements and es�mates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) 
recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amor�sed cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial 
statements. To provide an indica�on about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its 
financial instruments into three levels prescribed under the Ind AS. An explana�on for each level is given below. 

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, 
exchange traded funds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock 
exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the repor�ng period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing Net Assets Value 
(NAV), NAV represents the price at which, the issuer will issue further units and will redeem such units of mutual funds to and from 
the investors.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an ac�ve market is determined using valua�on techniques which 
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as li�le as possible on en�ty-specific es�mates. If all significant inputs required 
to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. Instruments in the level 2 category for the Company 
include foreign exchange forward contracts. 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in this level.

NOTES 
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There are no internal transfers of financial assets and financial libili�es between Level 1, Level 2, Level 3 during the period. The 
Company's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy level as at the end of the repor�ng period.

Financial assets and liabili�es measured As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

at amor�sed cost for which fair values Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
are disclosed

Financial assets

Margin money deposits with banks - - 1,312.21 - - 1,688.72 

Security deposits  - - 227.56 - - 200.45

Loans  - - 109.19 - - 115.00

Interest accrued on fixed deposits - - 19.35 - - 31.20

Financial liabili�es 

Borrowings  - - 26,800.33 - - 27,322.66

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - - 116.20 - - 82.74

Security Deposits received - - 166.20 - - 131.94

Financial assets and liabili�es measured at amor�sed cost  As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

Financial assets

Security deposits 227.56 245.34 200.45 232.55

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, fixed deposit having maturity period upto 12 months and its 
interest accrued, export benefits receivable,  current loans, current borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabili�es are 
considered to be approximately same as their value, due to the short -term maturi�es of these financial assets/liabili�es.

During the periods men�oned above, there have been no transfers amongst the levels of hierarchy. 

Valua�on techniques used to determine fair value:

Specific valua�on techniques used to value financial instruments include:

• the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

• the fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date.

• the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

NOTES 
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 NOTE 39 :    CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Gross debt (inclusive of long term and short term borrowing) 27,574.35 28,968.42

Less: - Cash and bank balances 908.04  385.07

Net debt 26,666.31 28,583.35

Total equity 42,025.35 40,997.34

Total capital 68,691.66 69,580.69

Net debt to equity ra�o 0.63 0.62

Risk management 

The Company’s objec�ves when managing capital is to safeguard con�nuity, maintain a strong credit ra�ng and healthy capital ra�os 
in order to support its business and provide adequate return to shareholders through con�nuing growth. The Company’s overall 
strategy remains unchanged from previous year. 

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term opera�ng plans which include 
capital and other strategic investments. 

The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund genera�on and other long term borrowings. The 
Company’s policy is to use short-term and long-term borrowings to meet an�cipated funding requirements.

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, equity includes paid up capital, securi�es premium and other reserves. Net 
debt are long term and short term interest bearing debt as reduced by cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances (including 
earmarked balances) and current investments. The Company’s strategy is to maintain a gearing ra�o within 2:1. 

The capital composi�on is as follows: 

 NOTE 40 :    FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s ac�vi�es are exposed to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk which may adversely impact the fair value of its 
financial instruments. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company, deriva�ve financial 
instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts are entered to hedge certain foreign currency risk exposures. Deriva�ves are 
used exclusively for hedging purpose and not as trading or specula�ve instruments. 

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement  Management

Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,  Ageing analysis   Diversifica�on of bank
deriva�ve financial instruments,  deposits, credit limits and
financial assets measured at amor�sed cost. le�ers of credit

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabili�es Rolling cash flow  Availability of commi�ed
forecasts  credit lines and borrowing  

facili�es

Market risk - foreign exchange Future commercial transac�ons Recognised  Cash flow forecas�ng Forward Foreign Exchange
financial assets and liabili�es not denominated Sensi�vity analysis Contracts
in Indian Rupee (`) 

Market risk – interest rate Long-term borrowings at variable rates Sensi�vity analysis Interest rate swaps

Market risk – security prices Investments in Bonds Sensi�vity analysis Por�olio diversifica�on

The Company’s risk management is carried out by a central treasury department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. 
Company’s treasury team iden�fies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close coopera�on with the Company’s respec�ve 
department heads. The Board provides wri�en principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such 
as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of deriva�ve financial instruments, non deriva�ve financial instruments and 
investment of excess liquidity.

NOTES 
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Loan covenants

Bank loan agreements contain certain debt covenants relang to limita�on on indebtedness, debt-equity ra�o, debt service coverage 
ra�o and fixed assets coverage ra�o.

The lower than mandated debt service coverage ra�o has no implica�ons on the cash flows as the Company complies with and 
sa�sfies all other condi�ons in the respec�ve sanc�on of the banks.
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A. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obliga�on under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a

financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its opera�ng ac�vi�es (primarly trade receivables) and from its

financing ac�vi�es, including deposits with banks, investments in mutual funds, foreign exhange transac�ons and other

financial instruments. The credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of deteriora�on of credit

worthiness as well as concentra�on risks. To manage this, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of counter

party, taking into account the financial condi�on, current economic trends, analysing the risk profile of the counter party and the

analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable etc. Individual risk limits are set accordingly.The Company

determines default by considering the business environment in which the Company operates and other macro-economic

factors. The Company considers the probability of default upon ini�al recogni�on of asset and whether there has been a

significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each repor�ng period. To assess whether there is a significant

increase in credit risk the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the repor�ng date with the risk of

default as at the date of ini�al recogni�on. It considers reasonable and suppor�ve forwarding-looking informa�on such as:

i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business;

ii) Actual or expected significant changes in the opera�ng results of the counterparty;

iii) Financial or economic condi�ons that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty's ability to meet its

obliga�ons;

iv) Significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same counterparty;

v) Significant changes in the value of the collateral suppor�ng the obliga�on or in the quality of the third-party guarantees.None of

the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentra�on of credit risk. The carrying value of financial assets

represent the maximum credit risk. Financial assets are wri�en off when there is no reasonable expecta�on of recovery, such as

a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company.

i) Trade receivables

The Company extends credit to customers in normal course of business. The Company considers factors such as credit track

record in the market and past dealings for extension of credit to customers. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals,

establishing credit limits, payment track record, monitoring financial posi�on of the customer and other relevant factors.

Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and reviewed.

The Company evaluates the concentra�on of risk with respect to trade receivables as limited, as its customers are located in

several jurisdic�ons and industries and operate in largely independent markets. The exposure to customers is diversified and no

substan�al concentra�on of risk as no single customer contributes more than 10% of revenue and of the outstanding

receivables. Sales made in domes�c market predominantly are through agents appointed by the Company, the agents being del

credere agents most of the credit risk emana�ng thereto is borne by agents and the Company’s exposure to risk is limited to sales

made to customers directly. In case of direct sale, the Company has a policy of dealing only with credit worthy counter par�es.

The credit risk related to such sales are mi�gated by taking advance, security deposit, le�er of credit, se�ng and monitoring

internal limits on exposure to individual customers as and where considered necessary. An impairment analysis which includes

assessment for indicators of impairment  is performed at each repor�ng date on an individual basis for all major customers and

provision for impairment taken. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteris�cs. The

expected loss rates for trade receivables has been computed based on reasonable approxima�on of the loss rates and paste

trend of outstanding debtors.
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A.  Trade receivables

Loss allowance as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 was determined as follows for trade receivables and contract assets
under the simplified approach:

NOTES 
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As at 31 March 2023  Not Due 0 - 30 days 31 - 60 Days 61 - 90 Days 91 - 180 Days 181-360 Days Over 360 Days Total

Gross carrying amount            7,966.32            1,843.80              182.38               106.20 291.84 55.34 21.40              10,467.28 

Expected loss rate 0.00% 0.30% 1.23% 3.24% 4.29% 31.25% 100.00% -

Expected credit losses  -    5.62  2.24  3.44  12.53                17.30 21.40  62.53 

Carrying amount 
(net of impairment)           7,966.32            1,838.18              180.14               102.76  279.31                38.04 - 10,404.75 

As at 31 March 2022  Not Due 0 - 30 days 31 - 60 Days 61 - 90 Days 91 - 180 Days 181-360 Days Over 360 Days Total

 Gross carrying amount   7,281.69           3,057.40             674.09                173.63  41.52                13.05  115.78       11,357.16 

 Expected loss rate 0.00% 0.64% 1.97% 4.50% 6.44% 58.14% 99.35% -

 Expected credit losses  -                  19.61               13.24  7.82  2.67  7.59  115.03            165.97 

 Carrying amount 
(net of impairment)  7,281.69           3,037.79             660.85                165.81  38.85  5.46  0.75       11,191.19 

Reconcilia�on of loss allowance provision of trade receivables :

Par�culars As at  As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Loss allowance - opening 165.97  161.39 

Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit or loss during the year -    5.48 

Receivables wri�en off during the year as uncollec�ble 31.87  0.90 

Unused amount reversed 71.57  -   

Loss allowance - closing 62.53  165.97 

ii) Financial Instruments and Cash Deposits

The Company maintains exposure in Cash and Cash equivalents, term deposits with banks and investments in mutual funds, the

same is done a�er considering factors such as track record, size of the ins�tu�on, market reputa�on and service standards.

Generally, the balances are maintained with the ins�tu�ons from whom the Company has also availed borrowings. Individual

risk limits are set for each counter party based on financial posi�on, credit ra�ng and past experience. Credit risk and

concentra�on of exposure are ac�vely monitored by the Company. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in

material concentra�on of credit risk.

iii) The ageing analysis of the trade receivables (other than due from related par�es) has been considered from the date the

Invoice falls due.

Par�culars As at  As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Not due 7,756.33  7,107.96 

Up to 6 months  2,424.22  3,946.64 

More than 6 months  76.74  128.83 

Total                  10,257.29                11,183.43 
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B. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to se�le or meet its obliga�ons, by delivering cash or other
financial assets, on �me or at a reasonable price. For the Company, liquidity risk arises from obliga�ons on account of financial
liabili�es – borrowings, trade and other payables, deriva�ve instruments and other financial liabili�es.

The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabili�es when due, under both normal and stressed condi�ons, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to
the Company’s reputa�on. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash and drawable reserves, by
con�nuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of the financial assets and
liabili�es.The Company regularly monitors liquidity posi�on through rolling forecast based on es�mated free cash flow
generated from business. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposits and liquid schemes of mutual funds,
which carry no/negligible mark to market risks.

i) Financing arrangements

The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facili�es at the end of the repor�ng period:

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Floa�ng rate

- Expiring within one year (Packing credit, cash credit,
post shipment credit and term loans 7,443.99 2,606.97

- Expiring beyond one year (Term Loans) - 764.00

Total 7,443.99 3,370.97

The working capital facili�es may be drawn at any �me and may be terminated by the bank without no�ce. 

ii) Maturi�es of Financial liabilii�es
The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liabili�es into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual
maturi�es for:
- all non deriva�ve financial liabili�es, and
- net and gross se�led deriva�ve financial instruments for which the contractual maturi�es are essen�al for an understanding of
the �ming of the cash flows.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

 Maturi�es of non – deriva�ve financial liabili�es  

 Long term borrowings  5,772.19 15,162.37 - 20,934.56 

 Short term borrowings  5,865.77 - - 5,865.77 

 Interest accrued and not due  116.20 - - 116.20 

 Lease liabili�es  602.84 171.18 - 774.02 

 Trade payables  19,251.57 - - 19,251.57 

 Other financial liabili�es  830.52 242.28 - 1,072.80 

 Total  32,439.09 15,575.83 - 48,014.92 

As at March 31, 2023 Less than  Between  Beyond  Total
1 year 1  and 5 years 5 years 

Maturi�es of non – deriva�ve financial liabili�es 

Long term borrowings  4,297.31 14,668.41 - 18,965.72 

Short term borrowings  8,356.94  - - 8,356.94 

Interest accrued and not due  82.74 - - 82.74 

Lease liabili�es  698.79  946.97 - 1,645.76 

Trade payables  18,193.99 - - 18,193.99 

Other financial liabili�es  1,057.05 502.96 - 1,560.01 

Total 32,686.82 16,118.34 - 48,805.16 

As at March 31, 2022 Less than  Between  Beyond  Total
1 year 1  and 5 years 5 years 
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity or commodity prices will 
affect the Company’s income/cash flows or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objec�ve of market risk 
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while op�mising the return. The 
sensi�vity analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying value of postemployment benefit 
obliga�ons provisions and on the non-financial assets and liabili�es. Financial instruments affected by market risk include 
receivables, loans and borrowings, advances, deposits, investments and deriva�ve financial instruments. The sensi�vity of the 
relevant profit and loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respec�ve market risks.  

The Company’s ac�vi�es expose it to risks on account of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates.

The Company uses deriva�ve financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts of varying maturity depending upon 
the underlying contract as a risk management strategy to manage its exposures to foreign exchange fluctua�ons and interest rate.

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument or future cash flows fluctuate because of changes in market price of 
the func�onal currency. The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk on their receivables, payables and foreign currency loans 
which are mainly held in the United State Dollar (“USD”), the Euro (“EUR”), Bri�sh Pound (‘GBP’), the Swiss Franc (“CHF”) and 
Japanese Yen (“JPY”). Consequently, the Company is exposed primarily to the risk that the exchange rate of the Indian Rupees (“I”) 
rela�ve to the USD, the EUR, the CHF, and the CNY may change in a manner that has a material effect on the reported values of the 
Company’s assets and liabili�es that are denominated in these foreign currencies.

The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transac�ons and follows established risk management 
policy wherein exposure is iden�fied, a benchmark is set and monitored closely for suitable hedges, including minimising cross 
currency transac�ons, using natural hedge and the use of deriva�ves like foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge exposure to 
foreign currency risk.

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the repor�ng period are as under -

As at March 31, 2023       As at March 31, 2022
Foreign Currency exposure in   Foreign Currency exposure in

USD EUR GBP JYP AUD CHF USD EUR GBP JYP AUD CHF

Financial assets 

- Trade receivables 5919.64     906.50 185.18 - - - 9,475.22       325.64       168.60  -  - -

 - Advance to Suppliers 578.20         17.18 - 47.18 - - 361.30         39.69 - 0.78 - -  

- Capital advances 152.62             123.30 - - - 1.78 142.60         34.11 3.88 - - -

  - Cash and Cash equivalents  107.46 - - - - - 55.67                -                  - - - -  

  - Other financial assets   44.22 55.33 - - - - -                  -                  - - - -  

Net exposure to foreign currency risk 
(Assets) 6,802.14   1,102.31 185.18 47.18 - 1.78 10,034.79       399.44       172.48 0.78 - -
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Financial liabili�es 

- Buyers credit from banks 305.26     - - - - - 5,942.88                -    - - - -  

- Trade payables 5,233.49     130.49 10.03 - 16.73 - 3,873.36         54.77         31.35  - 17.25 -  

- Creditors for Capital Purchases - 491.67 - - - -    - 704.48 - - - 7.43 

- Advance from Customers 378.43         24.55 - - - - 352.40 3.93 - - - - 

Net exposure to foreign currency risk  

Liabili�es) 5,917.18  646.71 10.03 - 16.73 -  10,168.64       763.18         31.35  - 17.25 7.43

Net open exposure 884.96      455.60 175.15 - (16.73) - (133.85)    (363.74)      141.13 0.78 (17.25) (7.43)

* The net open exposure as at March 31, 2023 excludes export stock in transit of  ₹ 1,013.98 lakhs.
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Sensi�vity to foreign currency risk 

The following table demonstrates the foreign exchange sensi�vity by assuming rates shi� in the USD, EUR, CHF, CNY and other 
currencies with all other variables held constant. The impact below on the Company’s profit/equity before considering tax impact is 
due to changes in the fair value of unhedged foreign currency monetary assets and liabili�es at balance sheet date: 

USD 44.25 (44.25)            (6.69)          6.69

EUR 22.78 (22.78)         (18.19)        18.19

GBP 8.76   (8.76)           7.06          (7.06)

JPY 2.36  (2.36)            0.04          (0.04)

AUD (0.84)     0.84        (0.86)          0.86

CHF 0.09     (0.09)        (0.37)          0.37

Currencies / Sensi�vity As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Increase by 5% Decrease by 5% Increase by 4% Decrease by 4%

Gain / Loss Loss / Gain

Based on the movements in the foreign exchange rates historically and the prevailing market condi�ons as at the repor�ng date, 
management has concluded that the above men�oned rates used for sensi�vity are reasonable benchmarks. Apprecia�on and 
deprecia�on of USD with respect to the func�onal currency would result in increase and decrease in carrying value of property, plant 
and equipment by approximately ̀  Nil as at March 31, 2023 (Previous year: ̀  9.06  lakhs)

II Interest rate risk 

This refers to risk to the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument on account of movement in market interest rates.

For the Company, the interest risk arises mainly from debt obliga�ons with floa�ng interest rates. To mi�gate interest rate risk, 
the Company closely monitors market interest and as appropriate makes use of hedged products and op�mise borrowing mix / 
composi�on.

III Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensi�vity for changes in variable interest rate. The Company uses a mix of 
interest rate sensi�ve financial instruments to manage the liquidity and fund requirements for its day to day opera�ons like 
vendor bill discoun�ng, suppliers’ and buyers’ credit. The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix 
between fixed and floa�ng rate borrowings. As the Company does not have exposure to any floa�ng interest bearing assets, its 
interest income and related cash flows are not affected by changes in the market interest rates.

a) Interest rate risk exposure:

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Variable rate borrowings          24,095.07 20,179.78 

Fixed rate borrowings 2,705.26           7,142.88

Total borrowings 26,800.33         27,322.66

As at the end of the repor�ng period, the Company had the following variable rate borrowings and interest rate swap contracts 
outstanding: 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Par�culars Weighted  % of total  Weighted  % of total 
average Balance loans average Balance loans

interest rate interest rate

Borrowings - Term Loan 9.21% 24,095.07 90% 8.72% 20,179.78 74%

Net exposure to cash flow  
interest rate risk 24,095.07 20,179.78
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b) Interest rate Sensi�vity

The following table illustrates the sensi�vity of profit and equity before considering tax impact to a reasonably possible change
in interest rate of 50 basis point increase or decrease. The calcula�ons are based on the risk exposures outstanding at the
balance sheet date.

Par�culars Impact on Profit

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Interest rates - increase by 50basis points* (120.48) (88.83)

Interest rates - decrease by 50basis points* 120.48 88.83

*Holding all other variables constant including change in interest subsidy

NOTE 41:     CONTINGENT LIABILITY DISCLOSURE

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2023

Excise, Customs and Service Tax Ma�ers 1,100.21 1,091.04

Income Tax Ma�ers 6.32 6.32

Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts 488.27 488.27

The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India, through a ruling in February 2019, provided interpreta�on on the components of Salary on 
which the Company and its employees are to contribute towards Provident Fund under the Employee’s Provident Fund Act. Based on 
the current evalua�on, the Company believes it is not probable that certain components of Salary paid by the Company will be subject 
to contribu�on towards Provident Fund due to the Supreme Court order. The Company will con�nue to monitor and evaluate its 
posi�on based on future events and developments.  

Notes: 

(a) It is not prac�cable for the Company to es�mate the �ming of cash ou�lows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolu�on of
the respec�ve proceedings.

(b) The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above con�ngent liabili�es.

Descrip�on of con�ngent liabili�es: 

Excise, Customs and Service Tax Ma�ers 

The Company has ongoing disputes with tax authori�es mainly rela�ng to availment of input tax credit on certain items and 
classfica�on of finished goods. 

Income Tax Ma�ers 

The Company has ongoing disputes with Income tax authori�es rela�ng to tax treatment of certain items. These mainly includes 
disallowed expenses, claimed by the Company as deduc�ons.  

Claims against Company not Acknowledged as Debts

Represent claims disputed by the Company wherein the Company has filed applica�on for dismissal of the ma�ers. 
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NOTE 42:     CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

(a) Capital Commitments

Es�mated value of Contracts in Capital Account remaining to be executed 
(Net of Capital Advances) 1,576.79              2,176.10

(b) Other Commitments

Custom duty on pending export obliga�on for import under  
Advance License and EPCG scheme 475.79 516.15

NOTE 43:     EARNINGS PER SHARE

Par�culars Year ended  Year ended
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Profit a�er tax (A) (¹  in lakhs) 716.74  5,081.42 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (B)            50,268,022.90  50,110,186

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic earning per share           50,268,022.90  50,110,186

Adjustements for dilluted earning per share - op�ons 501,853.00  678,303

Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted earning per share (C)           50,769,875.90  50,788,489  

Basic earnings per share (A)/(B)  1.43  10.14

Diluted earnings per share (A)/(C)  1.41  10.01

Nominal value of an equity share (¹ ) 10.00  10.00

NOTE 44:     DISCLOSURE FOR MICRO, MEDIUM AND SMALL ENTERPRISES

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and 
remaining unpaid as at year end 1,488.68 1,760.52

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and  
remaining unpaid as at year end 101.73 144.31

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act,  
beyond the appointed day during the year 7,374.47   7,416.43

Interest paid, under Sec�on 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered  
under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year 48.04 -

Interest paid, other than under Sec�on 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered 
under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year -                                -   

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but 
without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act -                                -   

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accoun�ng year -                                -   

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 
years, un�l such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the 
small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deduc�ble expenditure 
under sec�on 23 of the MSMED Act  101.73 144.31 

NOTE 45:  DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO THE REGULATION 34(3) READ WITH PARA A OF SCHEDULE V OF SEBI LISTING 
REGULATIONS, 2015 

There are no loans and advances, in the nature of loans to firms/ companies in which directors are interested 
outstanding during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.  

NOTES 
to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
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NOTE 46:  RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE 

Details of Research and Development expenses incurred during the year, debited to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
account are ` 1001.81 Lakhs (March 31, 2022: ` 1,255.64 Lakhs), which includes materials cost, power cost, employee 
cost. 

Details of Capital Expenditure incurred during the year for Research and Development is given below:

Par�culars Year ended  Year ended
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Plant and Machinery - 23.86

Total - 23.86

NOTE 47:  OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

There are no financial assets or financial liabili�es which are subject to offse�ng as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 
2022, since the Company neither has enforceable right or an intent to se�le on net basis or to realise the asset and se�le 
the liability simultaneously. Further, the Company has no enforceable master ne�ng arrangements and other similar 
arrangements as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

NOTE 48:      RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(i) Rela�onships

Holding Company Mandawewala Enterprises Limited 

Subsidiary AYM Tex�les Private Limited 

Key Management Personnel Mr. Abhishek Mandawewala (Managing Director & CEO) 
Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala (Whole Time Director) 
Mr. Himanshu Dhaddha (Chief Financial Officer) 

Independent Directors Mr. Atul Desai 
Mr. K H Vishwanathan 
Mr. Mohan Tandon 

Other Related Par�es Mertz Estates Limited  
RRM Enterprises Private Limited 
Welspun Global Brands Limited  
Welspun Flooring Limited 
Welspun India Limited  

NOTES 
to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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(ii) Terms and condi�ons

- All transac�ons were made on normal commercial terms and condi�ons and at market rates.

- All outstanding balances are unsecured and repayable in cash.

Mandawewala AYM Mertz  RRM Welspun  Welspun  Welspun
Enterprises  Tex�les Estates Enterprises  India  Flooring  Global
Limited Private  Limited Private  Limited Limited Brands

Limited Limited Limited

Holding Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel or rela�ves of such  
Company personnel exercise significant influence or control and with whom  

 transac�ons have taken place during the year 

Year 2021-22 figures are given in round brackets (  ). 

* All amount is inclusive of taxes

** Intercorporate deposits transferred from Mandawewala Enterprises Limited to RRM Enterprises Private Limited as per scheme 
of demerger, dated September,13 2021.  

NOTES 
to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Par�culars
Key  Independent

Management Directors
Personal 

Transac�ons during the year 
Intercorporate deposits received 1,200.00 

 (1200.00) **  

Cross charge 14.31  

             (35.61) 

Interest expense -                  205.35  

             (81.37)               (26.63) 

Investment in equity share  1.00  

-    

Short term employee benefit         313.96  

       (292.82) 

Stock Op�ons           31.20  

           (7.49) 

Loan advanced -    

         (60.00) 

Loan repaid           11.00  

-    

Director si�ng fees              14.49 

            (15.24)

Purchase of goods/services/ 
expenses incurred 3.13                221.25              45.51             55.26        3,579.92  

(3.36)             (355.72)         (117.22) -        (8,308.63) 

Sale of goods           452.84        1,914.64  

     (4,031.28)     (2,013.85)

Closing balance 

Intercorporate deposits            2,400.00  

         (1,200.00) 

Interest accrued  47.93  

-    

Loan advanced/repaid           49.00  

         (60.00) 

Investment in Equity Share  1.00  

-    

Debtors 28.12          181.87  

            (6.04)        (167.70) 

Creditors          123.73           115.94  

-           (231.88) 



Note 49:  Segment informa�on 

i) Informa�on about Primary Business Segment Iden�fica�on of Segments:

The Company is engaged in the business of Synthe�c Yarn which in the context of Ind AS 108 on Segment Repor�ng are
considered to cons�tute single primary business segment.

The chief  opera�onal decision maker monitors the opera�ng results of its Business segment separately for the purpose of
making decision about profit or loss in the financial statements, Opera�ng segment have been iden�fied on the basis of
Geographical segment and other quan�ta�ve criteria specified in the Ind AS 108.

(i) Segment revenue :

The segment revenue is measured in the same way as in the statement of profit or loss.

NOTES 
to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

2023 2022

Segment Revenue India Outside India Total India Outside India Total

 
Total segmental revenue* 78,058.44 67,719.78 145,778.22 82,988.20 66,157.75 149,145.95

*excluding other income

Revenue from outside India Year ended  Year ended
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

U.S.A 25,144.24  24,626.79  

Australia and New Zealand 16,713.41 15,486.27  

European Union 10,988.07 10,685.13  

U.K. 1,804.05  2,690.78  

Others 13,070.01 12,668.79  

Total 67,719.78 66,157.76  

The Company is domiciled in India.  The amount of its revenue from external customers broken down by loca�on of the customers is 
shown in the table below.

(ii) Segment assets :

Segment assets are measured in the same way as in the financial statements.  These assets are allocated based on the
opera�ons of the segment and the physical loca�on of the asset.

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Segment Assets India Outside India Total India Outside India Total

 Carrying amount of segment assets 73,535.09 9,045.11    82,580.20   72,445.09          8,618.57       81,063.66

Addi�ons to non-current assets# 65,48.09    - 6,548.09      7,659.90          7,659.90

Total segment assets   80,083.18 9,045.11    89,128.36    80,104.99          8,618.57       88,723.56

Unallocated: 

Right-of-use assets     -  - 730.88 -                        -            1,637.27

Deferred tax assets (net)    -   - 1,995.82 -                        -            2,195.55

Income tax assets (net)   -           - 180.37        -                        -               108.64

Balancesheet Assets 92,036.36      92,665.02

# Addi�ons to non-current assets also includes expenditure incurred on capital work-in-progress.
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As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Segment Liabili�es India Outside India Total India Outside India Total

 

# Addi�ons to non-current liabili�es also includes external commercial borrowings (ECB).

(iii) Segment liabili�es :

Segment liabili�es are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These liabili�es are allocated based on
the opera�ons of the segment and the physical loca�on of the liability.

Carrying amount of segment liabili�es     16,147.94 6,285.40 22,433.34  15,002.74          5,044.97       20,047.71 

Total segment liabili�es     16,147.94 6,285.40 22,433.34  15,002.74          5,044.97       20,047.71 

Unallocated: -  

Borrowings  -      - 26,800.33 - - 29,392.60

Lease liabili�es - - 774.02 - - 1,645.76

Income Tax Liabili�es (net) - - 3.32 - - 581.61

Balancesheet Liabili�es 50,011.01      51,667.68 

The Company has formulated employee share-based payment schemes with objec�ve to a�ract and retain talent and align the interest of 
employees with the Company as well as to incen�vize and mo�vate them to contribute to its growth and profitability. At present two share-
based payment schemes are in existence.

1) AYM Employee Stock Op�on (AYMSOP 2018) was approved by shareholders at Extra Ordinary general mee�ng in 2018.

2) AYM Employee Stock Op�on Scheme 2021 (AYM ESOP SCHEME 2021) was approved by the shareholders through postal ballot on
March 05, 2021.

Details of these employee share-based schemes are given below: 

Persons covered under this scheme include all permanent employees working in India or out of India, whole �me and other directors.

The schemes however exclude employee outside india who is an employee of a subsidiary, holding or associate of the Company,promoters 
or person belonging to the Promoter group, promoter director, director holding directly or indirectly more than 10% of the outstanding share 
of the Company.

Op�ons are granted under the plan for no considera�on and carry no dividend or vo�ng rights.  When exercisable, each op�on is conver�ble 
into one equity share. The exercise price of the op�ons shall not be less than face value of equity share and shall not exceed market price of 
the equity share of the Company as on the date of grant of Op�on. 

AYM Employee Stock Op�on (AYMSOP 2018)

The Grant date is August 13, 2018

NOTE 50:     EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN DISCLOSURE FOR IND AS  

NOTES 
to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Ves�ng Propor�on Date of ves�ng

10% of the op�ons granted 13-Aug-19

10% of the op�ons granted 13-Aug-20

20% of the op�ons granted 13-Aug-21

20% of the op�ons granted 13-Aug-22

40% of the op�ons granted 13-Aug-23

Opening balance 10 315,600 10              473,280

Granted during the year -                         -    - -   

Exercised during the year 10 102,680 10              118,320

Cancelled during the year 10 7,560 10                  39,360

Closing balance 205,360      -                315,600

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Average  Number of Average  Number of

exercise price Op�on exercise price Op�on
per share op�on (`) per share op�on (`)

Set out below is a summary of op�ons granted under the plan

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of op�ons exercised during the year ended 31 March 2023 was ̀   86.53 per share. 

Weighted average remaining contractual life of op�ons outstanding at end of period 1.37 years 1.87 years



AYM ESOP SCHEME 2021 Grant -1

The Grant date is April 24, 2021

Ves�ng Propor�on Date of ves�ng

10% of the op�ons granted 24-Apr-22

10% of the op�ons granted 24-Apr-23

20% of the op�ons granted 24-Apr-24

20% of the op�ons granted 24-Apr-25

40% of the op�ons granted 24-Apr-26

Once vested, the op�on remains excercisable for a period of one year and expire therea�er.

The fair value at grant date of op�ons granted was ̀  43.50

Set out below is a summary of op�ons granted under the plan

No op�on expired during the periods covered in the above tables. 

The fair value at grant date of op�ons granted was ̀  41.20  

The fair value at grant date is determined using Black Scholes Model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the op�on, the 
share price at grant date and expected price vola�lity of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for 
the term of the op�on. 

The model input for the op�on granted during the year ended March 31, 2023 included: 

a) op�ons are granted for no considera�on and vest upon comple�on of minimum employment of one year from the date of grant.
Ves�ng op�ons will be subject to con�nued employment with the company. Vested op�ons are exercisable for a period of one year
a�er ves�ng.

b) Exercise price: ` 10 

c) Grant date: August 13, 2018 

d) Expiry date: August 13, 2024 

e) Share price at the grant date: `  41.2  

f) Expected price vola�lity of the Company’s shares: 41.22%  

g) Expected dividend yield: 0.00%  

h) Risk free interest rate: 7.61%  

The expected price vola�lity is based on historic vola�lity (Based on the remaining life of the op�on), adjusted for any expected changes to 
future vola�lity due to publicly available informa�on.

NOTES 
to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Opening balance 10 600,000 - 

Granted during the year -                         -    - 600,000

Exercised during the year 10 60,000 - -

Cancelled during the year - - - -

Closing balance - 540,000 - 600,000

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Average  Number of Average  Number of

exercise price Op�on exercise price Op�on
per share op�on (`) per share op�on (`)

No op�on expired during the periods covered in the above table.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of op�ons exercised during the year ended 31 March 2023 was � 133.38 per 

share.

Weighted average remaining contractual life of op�ons outstanding at end of period 3.07 years 3.77 years

The fair value at grant date is determined using Black Scholes Model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the 
op�on, the share price at grant date and expected price vola�lity of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free 
interest rate for the term of the op�on.
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AYM ESOP SCHEME 2021 Grant -2

The Grant date is January 29, 2022

Ves�ng Propor�on Date of ves�ng

10% of the op�ons granted 29-Jan-23

10% of the op�ons granted 29-Jan-24

10% of the op�ons granted 28-Jan-25

15% of the op�ons granted 28-Jan-26

15% of the op�ons granted 28-Jan-27

40% of the op�ons granted 28-Jan-28

Set out below is a summary of op�ons granted under the plan

The model input for the op�on granted during the year ended March 31, 2022 included:

a) op�ons are granted for no considera�on and vest upon comple�on of service for a period of one year. Vested op�ons are
exercisable for a period of one year a�er ves�ng.

b) Exercise price: ` 10   

c) Grant date: April 24, 2021   

d) Expiry date: April 24, 2027   

e) Share price at the grant date: ` 43.50   

f) Expected price vola�lity of the Company’s shares:  64.09%

g) Expected dividend yeild: 0.00%   

h) Risk free interest rate: 4.15%   

The expected price vola�lity is based on historic vola�lity (Based on the remaining life of the op�on), adjusted for any expected 
changes to future vola�lity due to publicly available informa�on.

NOTES 
to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Opening balance 10 390,000 - 

Granted during the year -                         -    - 390,000

Exercised during the year 10 37,000 - -

Cancelled during the year 10 20,000 - -

Closing balance - 333,000 - 390,000

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Average  Number of Average  Number of

exercise price Op�on exercise price Op�on
per share op�on (`) per share op�on (`)

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of op�ons exercised during the year ended 31 March 2023 was � 62.17 per share.

Weighted average remaining contractual life of op�ons outstanding at end of period 3.56 years 4.33 years

No op�on expired during the periods covered in the above table.

The fair value at grant date is determined using Black Scholes Model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the 
op�on, the share price at grant date and expected price vola�lity of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free 
interest rate for the term of the op�on. 

The model input for the op�on granted during the year ended March 31, 2022 included: 

a) op�ons are granted for no considera�on and vest upon comple�on of service for a period of one year. Vested op�ons are
exercisable for a period of one year a�er ves�ng.

b) Exercise price: ` 10 

c) Grant date: January 29, 2022 

d) Expiry date: January 27, 2029 

e) Share price at the grant date: ` 136.95  

f) Expected price vola�lity of the Company’s shares: 53.48%  

g) Expected dividend yeild: 0.00%  

h) Risk free interest rate: 4.45% 

The expected price vola�lity is based on historic vola�lity (Based on the remaining life of the op�on), adjusted for any expected 
changes to future vola�lity due to publicly available informa�on.  



Ra�o Numerator Denominator As at March  As at March % Variance Reason for 
31,  2023   31, 2022   variance 

NOTES 
to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Expenses arising from share-based payment transac�ons 

Total expenses arising from share based payment transac�ons recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expenses were as 
follow:

 (i) No proceedings have been ini�ated on or are pending against the company as at March 31, 2023 for holding benami property
under the Benami Transac�ons (Prohibi�ons) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

 (ii) The company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns filed by the Company
with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts.

 (iii) The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial ins�tu�on or government or any government
authority.

 (iv) The company has no transac�ons with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

 (v) 1. The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign 
en��es (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (Ul�mate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ul�mate beneficiaries

2. The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es (Funding Party) with
the understanding (whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise) that the group shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (Ul�mate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ul�mate beneficiaries

 (vi) There is no income surrendered or transac�on disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

 (vii) There are no charges or sa�sfac�on which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory
period.

 (viii) The borrowings obtained by the company from banks have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were was
taken.

NOTE 51:     (A) ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY SCHEDULE III 

(B) FINANCIAL RATIOS

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Employee-share based expense 216.38 125.03  

Current Ra�o Current assets Current liabili�es 1.22 1.21 1% - 

Debt-Equity Ra�o Total debt Total equity          0.66  0.71  -7% - 

Debt Service Coverage Ra�o Earning for debt  Debt service 1.25  2.12  -41% Lower earnings 

Return on Equity Ra�o Net profit a�er tax Average shareholders equity. 0.02  0.13  -87% Lower profit a�er Tax 

Inventory turnover ra�o COGS Average inventory 4.50  4.93  -9% - 

Trade Receivables turnover ra�o Credit sales Average trade receivable 13.27  13.81  -4% - 

Trade payables turnover ra�o Net Credit Purchases Average Trade Payables 5.92  5.49  8% - 

Net capital turnover ra�o Credit sales working capital 19.51  20.06  -3% - 

Net profit ra�o Net profit a�er tax Revenue from opera�ons 0.49% 3.41% -86% Lower sales with dip in 
margin 

Return on Capital employed Earnings before  capital employed 6.77% 16.91% -60% Lower earnings 
interest and tax 

Return on investment Earnings before  Closing total assets 5% 12% -59% Lower earnings 
interest and tax
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NOTE 52:     DISCLOSURES IN RELATION TO CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENDITURE

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Corporate social responsibility expenditure:

Implemen�ng and suppor�ng educa�on program 24.28 16.41

Provision of safe drinking water 34.87  6.40

Promo�on of health care and welfare 19.90 18.23

79.05 41.04

Amount Unspent, of Earlier Years as per Sec�on 135 of the Act 15.59 -

Amount Required to be Spent During the Year, as per Sec�on 135 of the Act 72.41 25.45

Amount spent during the year on 

(i) Construc�on/acquisi�on of an asset - -

(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 56.82 25.45

(iii) Excess spent, carried forward for next year 6.64 15.59

63.46 41.04

Details of excess CSR expenditure under Sec�on 135(5) of the Act

Balance excess spent as at 1 April 2022 Amount required to be  Amount spent during Balance excess spent
spent during the year the year as at March 31, 2023

15.59 72.41 63.46 6.64

No adjustments on account of events occurring a�er the repor�ng date have been iden�fied to the figures reported. 

NOTE 53:     EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Signatures to Notes to Financial Statements

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
Firm Registra�on No: 012754N/ N500016

Pankaj Khandelia Rajesh Mandawewala   Abhishek Mandawewala  
Partner Chairman   CEO and Managing Director 
Membership No. 102022 DIN 00007179   DIN 00737785 

Place:  Mumbai Himanshu Dhaddha   Ashitosh Sheth 
Date: May 05, 2023 Chief Financial Officer   Company Secretary  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of AYM Syntex Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of AYM Syntex Limited (hereina�er referred to as the
“Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), (Refer note
1.1 (v) to the a�ached consolidated financial statements) which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2023, and the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) , the consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity  and the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accoun�ng policies and other explanatory informa�on
(hereina�er referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements give the informa�on required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs
of the Group as at March 31, 2023, and consolidated total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other
comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng (SAs) specified under Sec�on 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibili�es under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibili�es for the Audit of the consolidated
Financial Statements” sec�on of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the
Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit
evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their report referred to in sub-paragraph 14 of the Other Ma�ers sec�on
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Ma�ers

4. Key audit ma�ers are those ma�ers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These ma�ers were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these ma�ers.

To evaluate the realisability of MAT Credit en�tlement, our 
procedures included the following:

• Understood and evaluated the design and tested the
opera�ng effec�veness of the Company’s controls over
prepara�on of forecasts.

• Assessed the historical accuracy of the Company’s Board
approved forecasts by comparing the forecast approved in
the previous year with the actual performance in the
current year.

• Tested the mathema�cal accuracy of the underlying
calcula�ons and comparing the forecasts with the budgets
approved by the Board of Directors.

• Assessed the reasonableness of assump�ons used in the
prepara�on of forecasts with external and internal factors
including business and industry growth rates, and
Company’s past performance.

• Applied sensi�vity to the forecasts to assess whether the
MAT credit carried as an asset would be u�lised within the
permi�ed remaining period.

Based on the above procedures, we did not noted any material 
excep�on to the Holding Company’s judgement in prepara�on 
of forecasts of future taxable profits for the assessment of 
realisability of the MAT credit en�tlement.

Assessment of realisability of Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) 
credit en�tlement of the Holding Company

(Refer note 8 of the consolidated financial statements)

The balance of Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) credit 
en�tlement classified under Deferred Tax Assets (net) in 
the consolidated balance sheet as on March 31, 2023 is  
Rs. 5,825.92 Lakhs

En�tlement of MAT credit is recognised to the extent there is 
convincing evidence that the Holding Company will be able to 
u�lise the said credit against normal tax payable based on the
Holding Company’s projected taxable profits in the forthcoming
years.

We considered the realisability of MAT credit en�tlement to be a 
key audit ma�er as the amount is material to the consolidated 
financial statements and there is significant management 
judgement involved while applying various assump�ons in 
prepara�on of forecasts which mainly include future business 
growth rates and projected taxable profits

Key audit ma�er How our audit addressed the key audit ma�er
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Other Informa�on

5. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible

for the other informa�on. The other informa�on

comprises the informa�on included in the Director’s

report, management discussion & analysis and MD &

CEO message, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

The Director’s report was obtained prior to the date of 

this auditor’s report. However, the management 

discussion & analysis and MD & CEO message is expected 

to be made available to us a�er the date of this auditor’s 

report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements 

does not cover the other informa�on and we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connec�on with our audit of the consolidated financial 

statements, our responsibility is to read the Director’s 

report and, in doing so, consider whether the Director’s 

report is materially inconsistent with the consolidated 

financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 

audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 

based on the work we have performed and the reports of 

the other auditors as furnished to us (Refer paragraph 14 

below), we conclude that there is a material 

misstatement of this other informa�on, we are required 

to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 

regard.

In connec�on with our audit of the consolidated financial 

statements, our responsibility is to also read the 

management discussion & analysis and MD & CEO 

message when it becomes available and, in doing so, 

consider whether the other informa�on is materially 

inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements 

or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 

appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the management discussion & analysis 

and MD & CEO message, if we conclude that there is a 

material misstatement therein, we are required to 

communicate the ma�er to those charged with 

governance and take appropriate ac�on as applicable 

under the relevant laws and regula�ons

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Our audit procedures related to tes�ng impairment 
assessment of the carrying amount of net assets included the 
following:

• Understood and evaluated the design and tested the
opera�ng effec�veness of controls for iden�fica�on and
assessment of any poten�al impairment, including
determining the recoverable amount of the net assets.

• Assessed the historical accuracy of the Company’s Board
approved forecasts by comparing the forecast approved in
the previous year with the actual performance in the
current year.

• Used auditor’s expert for tes�ng appropriateness of the
method and model used for determining the recoverable
amount and evalua�ng reasonableness of key assump�ons
like discount rate, and terminal growth rate.

• Evaluated reasonableness of other key assump�ons used in
future cash flow projec�ons such as future sales, Cost of
materials and growth rate over the es�ma�on period.

• Tested the mathema�cal accuracy of the models’
calcula�on and comparing the forecasts with the budgets
approved by the Board of Directors;

• Performed sensi�vity analysis over key assump�ons to
corroborate that recoverable amount is within a reasonable
range.

• Assessed the appropriateness of the related presenta�on
and disclosures in the financial statements.

Based on the above procedures performed, we did not note any 
material excep�on in the management assessment of the 
recoverable amount of the net carrying value of assets.

Assessment of indica�on of impairment and the recoverable 
amount (RA) of Net carrying value of assets of the Holding 
Company

(Refer note 2(f) of the consolidated financial statements)

The carrying amount of the Company’s net assets exceeded the 
Company’s market capitalisa�on requiring the Company’s 
management to assess whether there is any indica�on of 
impairment to the net assets having carrying value of Rs. 
60,964.09 Lakhs  as at March 31, 2023.

Based on such indica�ons, an impairment assessment was 
performed by the Holding Company’s management in 
accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 36, ‘Impairment of 
Assets’. Management calculated the value in use of the assets by 
applying the discounted cash flow method.

This has been considered a key audit ma�er, because of the 
significance of the carrying value of the assets of the Holding 
Company and the es�ma�on uncertainty in the assump�ons 
used for calcula�ng the recoverable amount of the net assets 
such as future sales, discount rate, cost of materials and growth 
rate over the es�ma�on period.

Key audit ma�er How our audit addressed the key audit ma�er
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Responsibili�es of Management and Those Charged with 

Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible

for the prepara�on and presenta�on of these

consolidated financial statements in term of the

requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of

the consolidated financial posi�on, consolidated

financial performance and consolidated cash flows, and

consolidated statement of changes in equity of the

Group in accordance with the accoun�ng principles

generally accepted in India, including the Accoun�ng

Standards specified under Sec�on 133 of the Act. The

respec�ve Board of Directors of the companies included

in the Group are responsible for maintenance of

adequate accoun�ng records in accordance with the

provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the

Group and for preven�ng and detec�ng frauds and other

irregulari�es; selec�on and applica�on of appropriate

accoun�ng policies; making judgments and es�mates

that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,

implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal

financial controls, that were opera�ng effec�vely for

ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng

records, relevant to the prepara�on and presenta�on of

the consolidated financial statements that give a true

and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for

the purpose of prepara�on of the consolidated financial

statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as

aforesaid.

7. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the

respec�ve Board of Directors of the companies included

in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of

the Group to con�nue as a going concern, disclosing, as

applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using

the going concern basis of accoun�ng unless

management either intends to liquidate the Group or to

cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do

so.

8. The respec�ve Board of Directors of the companies

included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the

financial repor�ng process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Consolidated 

Financial Statements

9. Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the consolidated financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high

level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit

conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 

arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users 

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 

statements.

10. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional

scep�cism throughout the audit. We also:

• Iden�fy and assess the risks of material

misstatement of the consolidated financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design

and perform audit procedures responsive to those

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detec�ng a material misstatement

resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the

override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control

relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures  that  are  appropr iate  in  the

circumstances. Under Sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Act,

we are also responsible for expressing our opinion

on whether the Holding Company has adequate

internal financial controls with reference to

consolidated financial statements in place and the

opera�ng effec�veness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng

policies used and the reasonableness of

accoun�ng es�mates and related disclosures

made by management.

• C o n c l u d e  o n  t h e  a p p r o p r i a t e n e s s  o f

management’s use of the going concern basis of

accoun�ng and, based on the audit evidence

obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists

related to events or condi�ons that may cast

significant doubt on the ability of the Group to

con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a

material uncertainty exists, we are required to

draw a�en�on in our auditor’s report to the

related disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,

to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based

on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of

our auditor’s report. However, future events or

condi�ons may cause the Group to cease to

con�nue as a going concern.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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• Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and

content of the consolidated financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the

consolidated financial statements represent the

underlying transac�ons and events in a manner

that achieves fair presenta�on.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence

regarding the financial informa�on of the en��es

or business ac�vi�es within the Group to express

an opinion on the consolidated financial

statements. We are responsible for the direc�on,

supervision and performance of the audit of the

financial statements of such en��es included in

the consolidated financial statements of which we

are the independent auditors. For the other en�ty

included in the consolidated financial statements,

which has been audited by other auditor, such

other auditor remains responsible for the

direc�on, supervision and performance of the

audits carried out by them. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

11. We communicate with those charged with governance of

the Holding Company regarding, among other ma�ers,

the planned scope and �ming of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we iden�fy during our audit.

12. We also provide those charged with governance with a

statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all rela�onships and other

ma�ers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable,  related

safeguards.

13. From the ma�ers communicated with those charged

with governance, we determine those ma�ers that were

of most significance in the audit of the consolidated

financial statements of the current period and are

therefore the key audit ma�ers. We describe these 

ma�ers in our auditor’s report unless law or regula�on 

precludes public disclosure about the ma�er or when, in 

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 

ma�er should not be communicated in our report 

because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 

benefits of such communica�on.

Other Ma�ers

14. We did not audit the financial statements of one

subsidiary whose financial statements reflect total assets

of Rs. 0.76 lakhs and net assets of Rs. 0.46 lakhs as at

March 31, 2023, total revenue of Rs. Nil, total

comprehensive income (comprising of loss and other

comprehensive income) of Rs. 0.54 lakhs and net cash

flows amoun�ng to Rs 0.76 lakhs for the period ended on

that date, as considered in the consolidated financial

statements. These financial statements have been

audited by another auditor whose report has been

furnished to us by the Management, and our opinion on

the consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates

to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of

this subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-sec�on (3)

of Sec�on 143 of the Act including report on Other

Informa�on insofar as it relates to the aforesaid

subsidiary, is based solely on the report of the other

auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

15. As required by paragraph 3(xxi) of the Companies

(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO 2020”), issued by

the Central Government of India in terms of sub-sec�on

(11) of Sec�on 143 of the Act, we report that the auditors

of the following company has given an adverse remark in

their CARO report on the standalone financial

statements of the respec�ve companies included in the

consolidated financial statements of the Holding

Company, as reproduced below:

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Name of the  CIN Rela�onship  Date of the  Paragraph number 
Company with the  respec�ve   and comment in the 

Holding auditors’  respec�ve CARO report
Company report reproduced below

AYM Syntex Limited L99999DN1983PLC000045 Holding  May 5, 2023  Refer comments below 
Company for paragraph no (i)(c) 

AYM Tex�les  U17299MH2022PTC385451 Subsidiary  April 28, 2023 Paragraph no (xvii)
Private Limited Company The company has incurred

cash losses of Rs. 0.54 lakhs  
for the period
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Descrip�on of  Gross carrying  Held in the  Whether promoter,  Period held -  Reason for not being 
property value  name of  director or their  indicate range,  held in the name 

rela�ve or employee where appropriate   of the Company

Residen�al Flats Rs. 14.85 lakhs  Documents of  No Since September  Documents of �tle
�tle deeds  30, 1998 deeds are not 
are not  traceable
traceable 

Paragraph no (i)(c) to the Holding company's CARO report. 

16. As required by Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, we report, to

the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the informa�on

and explana�ons which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the

purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated

financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as

required by law rela�ng to prepara�on of the

aforesaid consolidated financial statements have

been kept so far as it appears from our examina�on

of those books and the reports of the other

auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated

Statement of Profit and Loss (including other

comprehensive income), the Consolidated

Statement of Changes in Equity and the

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with

by this Report are in agreement with the relevant

books of account and records maintained for the

purpose of prepara�on of the consolidated

financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial

statements comply with the Accoun�ng Standards

specified under Sec�on 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons

received from the directors of the Holding

Company as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by

the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and

the reports of the statutory auditor of its subsidiary

company incorporated in India, none of the

directors of the Group companies incorporated in

India are disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from

being appointed as a director in terms of Sec�on

164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial

controls with reference to consolidated financial

statements of the Group and the opera�ng

effec�veness of such controls, refer to our

separate report in “Annexure A”.

(g) With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in

the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014,

in our opinion and to the best of our informa�on

and according to the explana�ons given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements

disclose the impact, if any, of pending

li�ga�ons on the consolidated financial

posi�on of the Group (Refer note 39 to the

consolidated financial statements)

ii. The Group was not required to recognise a

provision as at March 31, 2023 under the

applicable law or accoun�ng standards, as it

does not have any material foreseeable losses

on long-term contract.  The Group did not

have any deriva�ve contracts as at March 31,

2023.

iii. During the year ended March 31, 2023, there

were no amounts which were required to be

transferred to the Investor Educa�on and

Protec�on Fund by the Holding Company, and

its subsidiary company incorporated in India.

iv   (a) The respec�ve Managements of the Company

and its subsidiary which are companies

incorporated in India whose financial

statements have been audited under the Act

have represented to us and the other auditor

of such subsidiary respec�vely that, to the

best of their knowledge and belief, as

disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no

funds (which are material either individually

or in the aggregate) have been advanced or

loaned or invested (either from borrowed

funds or share premium or any other sources

or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or

its subsidiary to or in any other person(s) or

en�ty( ies) ,  including foreign en��es

(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,

whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise,

that the Intermediary shall, directly or

indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or

en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever
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by or on behalf of the Holding Company or its 

subsidiary (“Ul�mate Beneficiaries”) or 

provide any guarantee, security or the like on 

behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries. (Refer 

Note 49(a)(v) to the consolidated financial 

statements).

(b) The respec�ve Managements of the Company

and its subsidiary which are companies

incorporated in India whose financial

statements have been audited under the Act

have represented to us and the other auditors

of such subsidiary respec�vely that, to the

best of their knowledge and belief, as

disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no

funds (which are material either individually

or in the aggregate) have been received by the

Holding Company or its subsidiary from any

person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign

en��es (“Funding Par�es”),  with the

understanding, whether recorded in wri�ng or

otherwise, that the Holding Company or its

subsidiary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or

invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in

any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

Funding Party (“Ul�mate Beneficiaries”) or

provide any guarantee, security or the like on

behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries. (Refer

Note 49(a)(v) to the consolidated financial

statements).

(c) Based on the audit procedures, that has been

considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, performed by us and those

performed by the auditor of the subsidiary

incorporated in India whose financial

statements have been audited under the Act,

nothing has come to our or the other auditor’s 

no�ce that has caused us or the other auditor 

to believe that the representa�ons under sub-

clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any 

material misstatement.

v. The Holding Company and its subsidiary company

has not declared or paid any dividend during the

year.

vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), which

provides for books of account to have the feature

of audit trail, edit log and related  ma�ers in the

accoun�ng so�ware used by the Group, is

applicable to the Group, only with effect from

financial year beginning April 1, 2023, the

repor�ng under clause (g) of Rule 11 of the

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as

amended), is currently not applicable.

17. The Holding Company and its subsidiary has paid/

provided for managerial remunera�on in accordance

with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions

of Sec�on 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registra�on Number: 012754N/N500016 

sd/-
Pankaj Khandelia

Partner
Membership Number: 102022

UDIN: 23102022BGTWMZ1995
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 05, 2023
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ASSETS 

1. Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 3a 44,051.67

(b) Right-of-use assets 3b 730.88

(c) Capital work-in-progress 3a 3,096.46

(d) Intangible assets 4  19.33

(e) Financial assets 

ii. Loans 5 56.58

iii. Other financial assets 6 299.36

(f) Income tax assets (net) 7 180.37

(g) Deferred tax assets (net) 8 1,995.82

(h) Other non-current assets 9 568.91

Total Non-Current Assets 50,999.38

2. Current Assets

(a) Inventories 10 19,940.26

(b) Financial assets 

i. Trade receivables 11 10,404.75

ii. Cash and cash equivalents 12 908.80

iii. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 13 1,312.21

iv. Loans 14 52.61

v. Other financial assets 15 153.46

(c) Other Current Assets 16 8,264.65

Total Current Assets 41,036.74

Total Asset 92,036.12

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 17(a) 5,035.33

(b) Other equity 

Reserves and Surplus 17(b) 36,989.48

Total Equity 42,024.81

1. Liabili�es 

Non-Current Liabili�es 

(a)  Financial liabili�es 

i. Borrowings 18 15,162.37

ii. Lease Liabili�es 3(b) 171.18

iii. Other financial liabili�es 19 242.28

(b) Employee benefit obliga�ons 20 742.27

Total non-current liabili�es 16,318.10

 2. Current liabili�es

(a) Financial liabili�es 

i. Borrowings 21 11,637.96

ii. Lease Liabili�es 3(b) 602.84

ii. Trade payables 22 

Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises 1,590.41

Dues to creditors other than micro, small and medium enterprises 17,661.46

iii. Other financial liabili�es 23 946.72

(b) Employee benefit obliga�ons 24  535.32

(c) Income tax liabili�es 25 3.32

(d) Other Current Liabili�es 26 715.18

Total Current Liabili�es 33,693.21

Total Liabili�es 50,011.31

Total Equity and Liabili�es 92,036.12

Par�culars Note No.  As at March 31, 2023 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
as at March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The above Consolidated Balance Sheet should be read in conjunc�on with the accompanying notes. 
This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of the even date. 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
Firm Registra�on No: 012754N/ N500016 

Pankaj Khandelia Rajesh Mandawewala   Abhishek Mandawewala  
Partner Chairman   CEO and Managing Director 
Membership No. 102022 DIN 00007179   DIN 00737785 

Place:  Mumbai Himanshu Dhaddha   Ashitosh Sheth 
Date: May 05, 2023 Chief Financial Officer   Company Secretary     
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Par�culars Note No. Year ended 

 March 31, 2023 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

 The above consolidated statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunc�on with the accompanying notes. 
 This is the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of the even date.  

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
Firm Registra�on No: 012754N/ N500016 

Pankaj Khandelia Rajesh Mandawewala   Abhishek Mandawewala  
Partner Chairman   CEO and Managing Director 
Membership No. 102022 DIN 00007179   DIN 00737785 

Place:  Mumbai Himanshu Dhaddha   Ashitosh Sheth 
Date: May 05, 2023 Chief Financial Officer   Company Secretary     

INCOME 

Revenue from opera�ons 27 145,778.22

Other income  28 786.85

Total income 146,565.07

EXPENSES 

Cost of materials consumed 29 87,396.79

Changes in inventories of finished goods and goods-in-process 30 (192.71)

Employee benefit expense 31 6,547.98

Deprecia�on and amor�za�on expense 32 5,651.87

Other expenses 33 42,498.69

Finance costs  34 3,599.42

Total expenses  145,502.04

Profit Before Tax 1,063.03

Income Tax Expense 35 

Current tax 435.59

Deferred tax  (88.76)

Total Tax Expense 346.83

Profit for the year 716.20

Other comprehensive income 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Add : Remeasurements of post employment benefit obliga�ons 31 115.17

Less : Income tax effect on above 35 40.25

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 74.92

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 791.12

Earnings per share 42 

Basic (`) 1.42

Diluted (`)   1.41



CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Profit before tax 1,063.03

Adjustments for: 

Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on expense 5,651.87

Finance costs 3,599.41

Net unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss  (4.66)

Lease concessions (7.10)

Share based expense 216.38

Loss on sale/discard of property, plant and equipment (Net) 110.65

Unwinding of discount on security deposits (16.95)

Interest income (59.53)

Opera�ng profit before changes in opera�ng assets and liabili�es 10,553.10

Adjustments for changes in opera�ng assets and liabili�es: 

(Increase) / decrease in inventories (1,111.62)

(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables 786.44

Increase / (decrease) in trade payables 1,062.36

Increase / (decrease) in other current financial liabili�es 33.90

Increase / (decrease) in employee benefit obliga�ons (152.51)

Increase / (decrease) in other current liabili�es (20.01)

Increase / (decrease) in other non-current liabili�es (0.45)

(Increase) / decrease in Loans and other financial assets (103.91)

(Increase) / decrease in other current and non-current financial assets 1601.85

Cash Generated from Opera�ons 12,649.15

Income tax paid (837.38)

Net cash generated from opera�ng ac�vi�es 11,811.77 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Payment for property, plant, equipment and intangible assets (7,795.12)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 32.85

Realisa�on / (investment) in fixed deposit and margin money (Net) 298.69

Interest received 71.38

Net cash used in inves�ng ac�vi�es (7,392.20)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from issue of equity shares   19.97

Proceeds / (Repayments) of long term borrowings 768.84

Proceeds / (Repayments) of short term borrowings (1,703.41)

Principal elements of lease payments (615.28)

Proceeds from Intercorporate deposit 1,200.00

Finance costs paid (3,565.96

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing ac�vi�es  (3,895.84)

Net (decrease) / increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 523.73

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 385.07

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 908.80

Non-cash inves�ng/ financing ac�vi�es 

- Acquisi�on of right-of-use assets 67.38

Reconcilia�on of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of: 

Cash on Hand (Refer Note 12) 20.96

Balance with banks in current accounts (Refer Note 12) 887.84

Cash and bank balances at the end of the year 908.80

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 

(All amounts in `  Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Par�culars Year ended 

 March 31, 2023

for the Year ended March 31, 2023

Notes:  

1) Consolidated cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Indian Accoun�ng Standard (Ind AS) 3 “Statement of Cash 
Flows”.

 2) The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjuc�on with the accompayning notes.

 This is the consolidated cash flow statement referred to in our report of the even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
Firm Registra�on No: 012754N/ N500016

Pankaj Khandelia Rajesh Mandawewala   Abhishek Mandawewala  
Partner Chairman   CEO and Managing Director 
Membership No. 102022 DIN 00007179   DIN 00737785 

Place:  Mumbai Himanshu Dhaddha   Ashitosh Sheth 
Date: May 05, 2023 Chief Financial Officer   Company Secretary     
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in `  Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Balance as at March 31, 2022 5,015.36

Changes in equity share capital during the year 17(a) 19.97

Balance as at March 31, 2023 5,035.33

Par�culars Notes Amount

A        EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

B OTHER EQUITY 

Balance as at 1 April 2022 2,664.93 7,056.59 107.06 190.77 293.36 25,669.27 35981.98

Profit for the year - - - - - 716.20 716.20

Other comprehensive income - - - - - 74.92 74.92

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 791.12 791.12

Share op�ons outstanding account 17(b) - 103.26 - 216.38 - - 319.64

Employee stock op�ons exercised 17(b) - - - (103.26) - - (103.26) 

Balance as at 31 March 2023 2,664.93 7,159.85 107.06 303.89 293.36 26,460.39 36,989.48

 Reserves and Surplus Total
Par�culars Notes Capital Securi�es  General Share Capital  Retained  Other 

reserve premium  Reserve op�ons Redemp�on earnings Equity
reserve outstanding Reserve 

account 

Notes :

The above Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunc�on with the accompanying notes.

This is the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of the even/ date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
Firm Registra�on No: 012754N/ N500016

Pankaj Khandelia Rajesh Mandawewala   Abhishek Mandawewala  
Partner Chairman   CEO and Managing Director 
Membership No. 102022 DIN 00007179   DIN 00737785 

Place:  Mumbai Himanshu Dhaddha   Ashitosh Sheth 
Date: May 05, 2023 Chief Financial Officer   Company Secretary     



General informa�on

AYM Syntex Limited (herein referred to as “AYM” or “the 
Company”) and its subsidiary company AYM Tex�les Private 
Limited together comprises the “Group”. The address of its 
registered office is Survey No. 374/1/1, Saily, Silvassa -
396230 (U.T. of Dadra & Nagar Haveli), India. The Company is 
listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and the Na�onal 
Stock Exchange (NSE). Since the incep�on, the Group has 
grown manifold and today is amongst the largest 
manufacturers and exporters of Polyester Filament Yarn, 
Nylon Filament Yarn and Bulk Con�nuous Filament Yarn from 
India.

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for 
issue by the board of directors of the Company on May 5, 
2023.

Note 1: Significant Accoun�ng Policies

This Note provides a list of the significant accoun�ng policies 
adopted in the prepara�on of these consolidated financial 
statements.

1.1 Basis of Prepara�on of Consolidated financial 
statements

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with the
accoun�ng principles generally accepted in
India and comply in all material aspects with
Indian Accoun�ng Standards (IND AS) no�fied
under Sec�on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act) read with rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2015,
presenta�on requirement of Division II of
Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 and
other relevant provisions of the Act as
amended from �me to �me.

(ii) Historical cost conven�on

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on an accrual and going concern
basis. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except as stated in subsequent policies for the
following items:

- Certain financial assets and liabili�es -
Fair value

- Assets held for sale – Lower of cost or
fair value less cost of sale

- Share based payments – Fair value

(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the
group

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide
no�fica�on dated 23 March 2022 no�fied
Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2022 which amended
certain accoun�ng standards, and are effec�ve
1 April 2022. These amendments did not have
any impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly
affect the current or future periods.

iv) New and amended standards issued but not
effec�ve

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide
no�fica�on dated 31 March 2023 no�fied
Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2023 (the ‘Rules’) which
amends certain accoun�ng standards, and are
effec�ve 1 April 2023.

The Rules predominantly amend Ind AS 12,
Income taxes, and Ind AS 1, Presenta�on of
consolidated financial statements. The other
amendments to Ind AS no�fied by these rules
are primarily in the nature of clarifica�ons.

These amendments are not expected to have a
material impact on the group in the current or
future repor�ng periods and on foreseeable
future transac�ons. Specifically, no changes
would be necessary as a consequence of
amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the group’s
accoun�ng policy already complies with the
now mandatory treatment.

(v) Principal of consolida�on

a) The Company has incorporated a
subsidiary “AYM Tex�les Private
Limited” on June 27,  2022 and
therefore the Company is required to
prepare  conso l idated  financ ia l
statements for the first �me for the
y e a r  e n d e d  M a r c h  3 1 ,  2 0 2 3 .
Accordingly, the corresponding figures
for the year ended March 31, 2022 are
not required to be furnished in the
t h e s e  c o n s o l i d a t e d  fi n a n c i a l
statements.

b) Subsidiary is the en�ty over which the
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Company has control. The Company 
controls an en�ty when the Company is 
exposed to, or has rights to, variable 
returns from its involvement with the 
en�ty and has the ability to affect those 
returns through its power to direct the 
relevant ac�vi�es of the en�ty. 
Subsidiary is fully consolidated from 
the date of incorpora�on i.e. June 27, 
2 0 2 2  o n  w h i c h  t h e  c o n t r o l  i s 
established.

c) The Group combines the financial
statements of the parent and its
subsidiary line by line adding together
like items of assets, liabili�es, equity,
income and expenses. Accoun�ng
policies of subsidiary have been
changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

d) The financial  statements of the
subsidiary used in consolida�on is
drawn up to the same repor�ng date as
that of the parent company i.e. year
ended March 31, 2023.

e) Fo l l ow i n g  s u bs i d i a r y  h a s  b e e n
considered in the prepara�on of
consolidated financial statements:

Name of the  Country of  of Holding and
subsidiary incorpora�on %  vo�ng power

 as at  31.03.2023

AYM Tex�les Private  India 100%
Limited (Date of 
Incorpora�on: 
June 27, 2022) 

1.2 Foreign currency transla�on

a) Func�onal and presenta�on currency

Items included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are measured using
the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Group operates (‘the
func�onal currency’). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Indian
rupees (INR), which is Group’s func�onal and
presenta�on currency.

b) Transac�ons and balances

Foreign currency transac�ons are translated
and recorded into the func�onal currency using
the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the
transac�on. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resul�ng from the se�lement of such
transac�ons and from the transla�on of
monetary assets and liabili�es denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates
are generally recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an
adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in
the statement of profit and loss, within finance
costs. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the statement of profit
and loss on a net basis within other income or
other expenses, as applicable.

Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of ini�al transac�on.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Transla�on differences
on assets and liabili�es carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

The Group has applied the exemp�on from the
transi�on date i. e. April 1, 2016 in respect of
accoun�ng policy followed for long term
foreign currency monetary items. Accordingly,
foreign exchange differences, in respect of the
long term foreign currency items �ll the year
ended March 31, 2017, on account of
depreciable assets are adjusted in the cost of
depreciable assets and depreciated over the
balance life of the assets.

1.3 Revenue recogni�on

The Group derives revenues primarily from sale of 
manufactured goods and related services.The Group 
has assessed revenue contracts and revenue is 
recognised upon sa�sfying specific performance 
obliga�ons in accordance with provisions of contract 
with the customer.

It recognises revenue when control over the promised 
goods or services are transferred to the customer at 

NOTES 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)



an amount that reflects the considera�on to which 
the Group expects to be en�tled in exchange of those 
goods or services. This is generally determined when 
documents of �tle/goods are delivered/shipped to 
the customer in accordance with the agreed terms, 
following which the customer has full discre�on over 
responsibility, manner of distribu�on and price to sell 
the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss 
in rela�on to the goods and there is no unfulfilled 
obliga�on that would affect customer’s acceptance of 
the product. All the foregoing occurs at a point in �me 
upon shipment or delivery of the documents of 
�tle/product or goods.

The Group considers terms of the contract in 
determining the revenue. It is measured at the price 
that reflects the considera�on the Group expects to 
be en�tled to in exchange for sa�sfac�on of the 
performance obliga�on. The Group considers freight, 
insurance and handling ac�vi�es as costs to fulfil the 
promise to transfer products and related services and 
the customer payments for such ac�vi�es are 
recorded as a component of revenue.

In certain customer contracts where freight is 
arranged by the Group and recovered from the 
customers, the same is treated as a dis�nct separate 
performance obliga�on and revenue is recognised 
when such freight services are rendered. The related 
shipping and handling costs incurred are included in 
freight expenses when the Group is ac�ng as principal 
in the shipping and handling arrangement. For volume 
discounts and pricing incen�ves/concessions offered 
to the customers, the Group makes es�mates and 
provide for, based on customer performance and 
sales volume, which is recorded as deduc�ons from 
revenue.Revenue from sale of by-products are 
included in revenue. Revenue from services is 
recognised when the services are completed.Revenue 
excludes any taxes and du�es collected on behalf of 
the government. When there is uncertainty as to 
measurement or ul�mate collectability, revenue 
recogni�on is postponed un�l such uncertainty is 
resolved.

The Group does not have any contracts where in the 
period between the transfer of the promised goods or 
services to the customer and payment by the 
customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the 
Group does not adjust any of the transac�on prices for 
the �me value of money.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are 
delivered and to the extent it has an uncondi�onal 

right to considera�on (i.e. only the passage of �me is 
required before the payment of considera�on is due).

Considera�on received before a related performance 
obliga�on is sa�sfied or before the Group transfer 
goods or services to the customer are recognised as 
contract liabili�es. Contract liabili�es are recognised 
as  revenue when the Group completes i ts 
performance obliga�on under the contract.

Export Incen�ves

Export incen�ves and subsidies are recognised when 
there is reasonable assurance that the Group will 
comply with the condi�ons and the incen�ve will be 
received. Export benefits arising from duty drawback 
scheme, remission of du�es and taxes on export 
products and merchandise export incen�ve scheme 
are recognised on shipment for export at the rate at 
which they accrue and is included in other opera�ng 
income.

1.4 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their 
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that 
the grant will be received and the Group will comply 
with all a�ached condi�ons. 

Government grants rela�ng to income are deferred 
and recognised in the profit or loss over the period 
necessary to match them with the costs that they are 
intended to compensate and presented within other 
income.

Government grants rela�ng to the purchase of 
property, plant and equipment are included in 
liabili�es as deferred income and are credited to profit 
or loss over the periods and in propor�ons in which 
deprecia�on expense on those assets is recognised.

1.5 Income Tax

The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax 
payable on the current year’s taxable income based 
on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes 
in deferred income tax assets and liabili�es 
a�r ibutable  to  temporary  d ifferences  and 
unabsorbed tax losses.

a) Current income tax

Current income tax charge is based on taxable
profit for the year. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substan�vely enacted, at the

NOTES 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

158



repor�ng date where the Group operates and 
generates taxable income. Management 
periodically evaluates posi�ons taken in tax 
returns with respect to situa�ons in which 
applicable tax regula�on is subject to 
interpreta�on and considers whether it is 
probable that a taxa�on authority will accept 
an uncertain tax treatment. It establishes 
provisions where appropriate on the basis of 
amounts expected to be paid to the tax 
authori�es.

Current tax assets and liabili�es are offset 
when there is a legally enforceable right to set 
off current tax assets against current tax 
liabili�es and Group intends either to se�le on 
a net basis, or to realise the asset and se�le the 
liability simultaneously.

b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full using the
liability method on temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabili�es
and their carrying amounts for financial
repor�ng purposes at the repor�ng date.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
income will be available against which the
deduc�ble temporary differences, unused tax
losses, deprecia�on carry-forwards and unused
tax credits could be u�lised.

Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from ini�al recogni�on of an asset or
liability in a transac�on other than a business
combina�on that at the �me of the transac�on
affects neither accoun�ng profit nor taxable
profit (tax loss).

Deferred tax assets and l iabil i�es are
determined using tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substan�ally enacted by the
end of the repor�ng period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is se�led.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax
assets is reviewed at each repor�ng date and
adjusted to reflect changes in probability that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all

deduc�ble temporary differences and unused 
tax losses only if it is probable that future 
taxable amounts will be available to u�lize 
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are offset 
where there is a legally enforceable right to 
offset current tax assets and liabili�es and 
where the deferred tax balances relate to the 
same taxa�on authority. Current tax assets and 
tax liabili�es are offset where the Group has a 
legally enforceable right to offset and intends 
either to se�le on a net basis, or to realise the 
asset and se�le the liability simultaneously.

Current and Deferred Tax is recognised in profit 
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to 
items recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax 
is also recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity respec�vely.

Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) credit 
en�tlement is recognised as a deferred tax 
asset by credi�ng the Statement of profit and 
loss only when and to the extent there is 
convincing evidence that MAT credit will 
reverse in the foreseeable future and the Group 
will be able to u�lize the said credit against 
normal tax payable during the specified period.

1.6 Leases

As a lessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use (ROU) asset 
and a corresponding liability at the date at which the 
leased asset is available for use by the Group for all 
leases except short-term leases. Contracts may 
contain both lease and non-lease components. The 
Group allocates the considera�on in the contract to 
the lease and non-lease components based on their 
rela�ve stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real 
estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected 
not to separate lease and non-lease components and 
instead accounts for these as a single lease 
component.

Assets and liabili�es arising from a lease are ini�ally 
measured on a present value basis.

Lease liabili�es are recognised based on the net 
present value of the following lease payments:

• fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incen�ves receivable
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• variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, ini�ally measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date

• amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees

• the exercise price of a purchase op�on if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
op�on, and

• payments of penal�es for termina�ng the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that op�on.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain 
extension op�ons are also included in the 
measurement of the liability. The lease payments are 
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. 
If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is 
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s 
incremental borrowing rate at the date of ini�al 
applica�on is used, being the rate that the individual 
lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds 
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the 
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment 
with similar terms, security and condi�ons.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the 
Group:

• where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as a
star�ng point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing condi�ons since third party financing
was received

• uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by Group, which does not have
recent third party financing, and

• makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amor�sing loan rate is available 
to the individual lessee (through recent financing or 
market data) which has a similar payment profile to 
the lease, then the Group use that rate as a star�ng 
point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to poten�al future increases in 
variable lease payments based on an index or rate, 
which are not included in the lease liability un�l they 
take effect.

When adjustments to lease payments based on an 
index or rate take effect, the lease liability is 
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and 
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or 
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant 
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of 
the liability for each period.

The ROU assets are measured at cost comprising the 
following:

• ini�al amount of lease liability

• any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incen�ves
received

• any ini�al direct costs, and

• restora�on costs.

They are subsequently measured at cost less 
accumulated deprecia�on.  ROU assets  are 
depreciated from the commencement date over the 
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on 
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain 
to exercise a purchase op�on, the right-of-use asset is 
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately 
disclosed in the Balance Sheet and lease payments 
have been classified as financing cash flows.

Payments associated with short-term leases are 
recognised as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term 
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or 
less.

1.7 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other 
items of property, plant and equipment are stated at 
historical cost less accumulated deprecia�on and 
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes 
expenditure that is directly a�ributable on making the 
asset ready for its intended use and loca�on, relevant 
borrowing cost for qualifying assets and present value 
of any obligatory cost of decommissioning.

Subsequent costs of replacement and major 
maintenance or repair (overhaul costs) are included in 
an asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that 
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and 
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the cost can be measured reliably. The carrying 
amount of any asset or component of an asset 
replaced is derecognised when replaced. Overhaul 
costs associated with major maintenance are 
capitalised and depreciated over their useful lives. All 
other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit 
or loss during the repor�ng period in which they are 
incurred.

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost and related 
expenses, of property, plant and equipment that are 
not yet ready for their intended use at the repor�ng 
date.

Deprecia�on methods, es�mated useful lives and 
residual value

Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold 
improvements are amor�sed over the shorter of 
es�mated useful life or the related lease term, unless 
the Group expects to use the assets beyond the lease 
term. Deprecia�on is calculated using the straight-line 
method to allocate the costs, net of residual values, 
over the es�mated useful lives as follows:

Asset Useful life (years)

Office equipment 5

Furniture and fixtures 10

Computer hardware
and  so�ware 3/5

Vehicles 8

Plant and machinery*# 7 to 25

Electrical installa�on 10

Factory building 30

Residen�al and other buildings 60

Other buildings (carpeted roads) 10

*Extra shi� deprecia�on is provided.

#Useful lives determined based on technical 
evalua�on by the expert is equal to or lower than 
those specified in the Schedule II.

The useful lives have been determined based on 
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. The residual 
values are not more than 5% of the original cost of 
the assets. The assets’ residual values and useful 
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at 
the end of each repor�ng period. Each component of 
an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost 

that is significant in rela�on to the total cost of that 
item is depreciated separately, if its useful life differs 
from that of other components of the asset.

Es�mated useful l ives, residual values and 
deprecia�on methods are reviewed annually, taking 
into account commercial and technological 
obsolescence as well as normal wear and tear and 
adjusted prospec�vely, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is 
derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected to arise from 
con�nued use of the asset. Gains and losses on 
disposal or re�rement are determined as the 
difference between net proceeds and the carrying 
amount. These are recognised in statement of profit 
and loss within other expenses or other income, as 
applicable.

1.8 Intangible assets

a) Intangible assets with finite useful lives:

Intangible assets with finite useful lives
acquired by the Group are measured at cost
l e s s  a c c u m u l a t e d  a m o r � z a � o n  a n d
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Amor�za�on is charged on a straight-line basis
over the es�mated useful lives.

The es�mated useful life and amor�za�on
method are reviewed at the end of each annual
repor�ng period, with the effect of any changes
in the es�mate being accounted for on a
prospec�ve basis.

b) Research and Development

Research expenditure and development
expenditure that do not meet the criteria in
Note 1.8(a) above are recognised as an
expense as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not
recognised as an asset in subsequent period.

c) Amor�za�on method and period

Intangible assets comprise of computer
so�ware and licenses which are amor�sed on a
straight-line basis over the expected useful life
over a period of five years.

1.9 Impairment of assets 

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or 
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changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is 
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s 
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair 
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the 
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped 
at the lowest levels for which there are separately 
iden�fiable cash inflows which are largely 
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or 
groups of assets (cash-genera�ng units). Non-
financial assets that suffered an impairment are 
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at 
the end of each repor�ng period.

An impairment loss or a reversal of an impairment loss 
is immediately recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss.

1.10 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if 
their carrying amount will be recovered principally 
through a sale transac�on rather than through 
con�nuing use and a sale is considered highly 
probable. They are measured at the lower of their 
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

An impairment loss is recognised for any ini�al or 
subsequent write-down of the assets to fair value less 
costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent 
increase in fair value less costs to sell, but not in excess 
of any cumula�ve impairment loss previously 
recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by 
the date of the sale of the non-current assets is 
recognised at the date of de-recogni�on.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amor�sed 
while they are classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are 
presented separately from the other assets in the 
balance sheet.

1.11 Inventories

Raw materials and stores, goods-in-process and 
finished goods 

Raw materials, stores, goods-in-process and finished 
goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable 
value. Cost of raw materials comprises cost of 
purchases.

Cost of work-in progress and finished goods comprises 
direct materials, direct labor and an appropriate 

propor�on of  var iable  and fixed overhead 
expenditure, the la�er being allocated based on 
normal opera�ng capacity.

Cost of inventories also include all other costs incurred 
in bringing the inventories to their present loca�on 
and condi�on. Costs are assigned to individual items 
of inventory on moving weighted average basis. Costs 
of purchased inventory are determined a�er 
deduc�ng rebates and discounts. Net realizable value 
is the es�mated selling price in the ordinary course of 
business less the es�mated costs of comple�on and 
the es�mated costs necessary to make the sale.

1.12 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to 
a financial asset of one Group and a financial liability 
or equity instrument of another Group.

Investments and Other Financial Assets

a) Classifica�on

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

• Those to be measured subsequently at fair
v a l u e  ( e i t h e r  t h r o u g h  o t h e r
comprehensive income, or through profit
or loss), and

• Those measured at amor�sed cost.

The classifica�on depends on the Group’s 
business model for managing the financial 
assets and the contractual terms of the cash 
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and 
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or 
other comprehensive income.

For investments in debt instruments, 
recogni�on will depend on the business model 
in which the investment is held.

For investments in equity instruments, 
recogni�on will depend on whether the Group 
has made an irrevocable elec�on at the �me of 
ini�al recogni�on to account for the equity 
investment at fair value through other 
comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when 
and only when its business model for managing 
those assets changes.
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b) Recogni�on

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sale the financial asset.

c) Measurement

At ini�al recogni�on, the Group measures a
financial asset (excluding trade receivables
which do not contain a significant financing
component) at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transac�on costs that are directly
a�ributable to the acquisi�on of the financial
asset. Transac�on costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in profit or loss.

(i) Debt instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteris�cs of the
asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies
its debt instruments:

• Amor�sed cost:

Assets that are held for collec�on of
contractual cash flows where those
c a s h  fl o w s  r e p r e s e n t  s o l e l y
payments of principal and interest
are measured at amor�sed cost.
Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income
using the effec�ve interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecogni�on is recognised directly
in profit or loss and presented in
other gains/(losses). Impairment
losses are presented as separate line
item in the statement of profit and
loss.

• Fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Assets that are held for collec�on of
contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely

payments of principal and interest, 
are measured at fair value through 
other  comprehensive  income
(FVOCI). Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI,
except for  the recogni�on of
impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in
profit and loss. When the financial
a s s e t  i s  d e r e c o g n i s e d ,  t h e
cumula�ve gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from
e q u i t y  t o  p ro fi t  o r  l o s s  a n d
recognised in other expenses or
other incomes, as applicable.
Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income
using the effec�ve interest rate
method. Foreign Exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains
and losses and impairment expenses
in other expenses.

• Fair value through profit or loss:

Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amor�sed cost or FVOCI are
measured at fair value through profit
or loss. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit
or loss and is not part of a hedging
rela�onship is recognised in profit or
loss and presented net in the
statement of profit and loss within
other expenses or other incomes, as
applicable in the period in which it
arises. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other
income.

(ii) Equity instruments:

T h e  G r o u p  m e a s u r e s  a l l  e q u i t y
investments at fair value. Where the
Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on
e q u i t y  i n v e s t m e n t s  i n  o t h e r
comprehensive income, there will be no
subsequent reclassifica�on of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss.
Dividends from such investments are
recognised in profit or loss as other
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income when the Group’s right to receive 
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss 
are recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal 
o f  impa i rment  losses )  on  equ i ty
investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in
fair value.

d) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit loss associated with its
assets carried at amor�sed cost and FVOCI debt
instruments. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk. Note 38
details how the Group determines whether
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

For trade receivables only, the Group applies
the simplified approach permi�ed by Ind AS
109 Financial Instruments, which requires
expected life�me losses to be recognised from
ini�al recogni�on of the receivables.

e) Derecogni�on of financial assets revenue
recogni�on

A financial asset is derecognised only when

• the Group has transferred the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial asset
or

• it retains the contractual rights to receive
the cash flows of the financial asset, but
assumes a contractual obliga�on to pay
the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Group has transferred an asset, the 
Group evaluates whether it has transferred 
substan�ally all risks and rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset. In such cases, the 
financial asset is derecognised. Where the 
Group has not transferred substan�ally all risks 
and rewards of ownership of the financial 
asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Group has neither transferred a 
financial asset nor retains substan�ally all risks 
and rewards of ownership of the financial 

asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the 
Group has not retained control of the financial 
asset. Where the Group retains control of the 
financial asset, the asset is con�nued to be 
recognised to the extent of con�nuing 
involvement in the financial asset.

f) Income recogni�on

(i) Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is
disclosed as interest income within other
income. Interest income on financial
assets at amor�sed cost and financial
assets at FVOCI is calculated using the
effec�ve interest method is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss as part of
other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying
the effec�ve interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset
e xc e p t  fo r  fi n a n c i a l  a s s e t s  t h a t
subsequently become credit- impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the
effec�ve interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset
(a�er deduc�on of the loss allowance).

(ii) Dividends

Dividends are received from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
and at FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the
right to receive payment is established.
This applies even if they are paid out of
pre-acquisi�on profits, unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment.

g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
short term highly liquid investments with
original maturi�es of three months or less that
are readily conver�ble to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Bank overdra�s are shown within borrowings
in current liabili�es in the balance sheet.
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h) Trade receivable

Trade receivables are considera�on due from
customers for  goods sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
Trade receivables are recognised/measured
i n i � a l l y  a t  t ra n s a c � o n  p r i c e  t h a t  i s
uncondi�onal unless they contain significant
financing components.

Financial liabili�es

a) Measurement:

Financial liabili�es are ini�ally recognised at
fair value, reduced by transac�on costs (in case
of financial liability not at fair value through
profit or loss), that are directly a�ributable to
the issue of financial liability. A�er ini�al
recogni�on, financial liabili�es are measured
at amor�sed cost using effec�ve interest
method. The effec�ve interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts es�mated future cash
ou�low (including all fees paid, transac�on
cost, and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on ini�al
recogni�on. At the �me of ini�al recogni�on,
there is no financial liability irrevocably
designated as measured at fair value through
profit or loss. Liabili�es from finance lease
agreements are measured at the lower of fair
value of the leased asset or present value of
minimum lease payments.

b) Derecogni�on:

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obliga�on under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an exis�ng financial
liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substan�ally different terms, or the
terms of an exis�ng liability are substan�ally
modified, such an exchange or modifica�on is
treated as the de-recogni�on of the original
liability and the recogni�on of a new liability.
The difference in the respec�ve carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

c) Borrowings:

Borrowings are ini�ally recognised at fair value,
net of transac�on costs incurred. Borrowings

are subsequently measured at amor�sed cost. 
Any difference between the proceeds (net of 
transac�on costs) and the redemp�on amount 
is recognised in profit or loss over the period of 
the borrowings using the effec�ve interest 
method. Fees paid on the establishment of 
loan facili�es are recognised as transac�on 
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable 
that some or all of the facility will be drawn 
down. In this case, the fee is deferred un�l the 
draw down occurs. To the extent there is no 
evidence that it is probable that some or all of 
the facility will be drawn down, the fee is 
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity 
services and amor�sed over the period of the 
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance 
sheet when the obliga�on specified in the 
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. 
The difference between the carrying amount of 
a financial liability that has been ex�nguished 
or transferred to another party and the 
considera�on paid, including any non-cash 
assets transferred or liabili�es assumed, is 
recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

Where the terms of a financial liability are 
renego�ated and the Group issues equity 
instruments to a creditor to ex�nguish all or 
part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a 
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which 
is measured as the difference between the 
carrying amount of the financial liability and 
the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabili�es 
unless the Group has uncondi�onal right to 
defer se�lement of the liability for at least 12 
months a�er the repor�ng period. Where 
there is a breach of a material provision of a 
long-term arrangement on or before the end of 
the repor�ng period with the effect that the 
liability becomes payable on demand on the 
repor�ng date, the Group does not classify the 
liability as current, if the lender agreed, a�er 
the repor�ng period and before the approval of 
the consolidated financial statements for issue, 
not to demand payment as consequence of the 
breach.

d) Trade and other payables:

These amounts represent liabili�es for goods
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and services provided to the group prior to the 
end of financial year which are unpaid. The 
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid 
within 30-90 days of recogni�on. Trade and 
other payables are presented as current 
liabili�es unless payment is not due within 12 
months a�er the repor�ng period. They are 
recognised ini�ally at their fair value and 
subsequently measured at amor�sed cost 
using the effec�ve interest method.

e) Offse�ng financial instruments

Financial assets and liabili�es are offset and the
net amount is reported in the balance sheet
where there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an
inten�on to se�le on a net basis or realise the
asset and se�le the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be
con�ngent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

1.13 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly 
a�ributable to the acquisi�on, construc�on or 
produc�on of a qualifying asset are capitalised during 
the period that is required to complete and prepare 
the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets 
are assets that necessarily take a substan�al period of 
�me to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Borrowing cost includes exchange differences arising 
from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they 
are regarded as an adjustment to the finance cost.

Investment income earned on the temporary 
investment of specific borrowings pending their 
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the 
borrowing costs eligible for capitaliza�on.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in 
which they are incurred.

1.14 Employee benefits 

Short-term obliga�ons

Liabili�es for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits that are expected to be se�led 
wholly within 12 months a�er the end of the period in 
which the employees render the related service are 
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the 

end of the repor�ng period and are rendered at the 
undiscounted amount of benefits expected to be paid 
when the liabili�es are se�led. The liabili�es are 
presented as current employee benefit obliga�ons in 
the balance sheet.

Other long-term employee benefit obliga�ons

The liabili�es for earned leave are not expected to be 
se�led wholly within 12 months a�er the end of the 
period in which the employees render the related 
service. They are therefore measured as the present 
value of expected future payments to be made in 
respect of services provided by employees up to the 
end of the repor�ng period using the projected unit 
credit method. The benefits are discounted using the 
market yields at the end of the repor�ng period that 
have terms approxima�ng to the terms of the related 
obliga�on.

Remeasurements as a result  of  experience 
adjustments and changes in actuarial assump�ons are 
recognised in other comprehensive income.

The obliga�ons are presented as current liabili�es in 
the balance sheet if the Group does not have an 
uncondi�onal right to defer se�lement for at least 
twelve months a�er the repor�ng period, regardless 
of when the actual se�lement is expected to occur.

Post-employment obliga�ons

The Group operates the following post-employment 
schemes:

- Defined benefit plans such as gratuity, and

- Defined contribu�on plans such as provident
fund and superannua�on fund.

a) Defined Benefit Plans

(i) Gratuity obliga�ons

The liability or asset recognised in the
balance sheet in respect of defined benefit
gratuity plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obliga�on at the end of the
annual repor�ng period less the fair value of
plan assets. The defined benefit cost is
calculated annually by actuaries using the
projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit
o b l i ga� o n  d e n o m i n ate d  i n  I N R  i s
determined by discoun�ng the es�mated
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future cash ou�lows by reference to market 
yields at the end of the repor�ng period on 
government bonds that have terms 
approxima�ng to the terms of the related 
obl iga�on.  The benefits  which are
denominated in currency other than INR,
the cash flows are discounted using market
yields determined by reference to high-
q u a l i t y  co r p o rate  b o n d s  t h at  a re
denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms
approxima�ng to the terms of the related
obliga�on.

The service cost include current service 
cost, past service cost, gains and losses on 
curtailments and se�lements. Changes in 
the present value of the defined benefit 
obliga�on resul�ng from plan amendments 
or curtailments are recognised immediately 
in profit or loss as past service cost.

The net interest cost is calculated by 
applying the discount rate to the net 
balance of the defined benefit obliga�on 
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is 
included in employee benefit expense in 
the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising 
from experience adjustments and changes 
in actuarial assump�ons are recognised in 
the period in which they occur, directly in 
other comprehensive income. They are 
included in retained earnings in the 
statement of changes in equity and in the 
balance sheet.

Remeasurements are not reclassified to 
profit and loss in the subsequent periods.

b) Defined contribu�on plans

(i) Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance
Corpora�on (ESIC) and Labour Welfare
Fund (LWF).

The Contribu�on towards provident fund,
ESIC, LWF for certain employees is made to
the regulatory authori�es where the Group
has no further obliga�ons. Such benefits
are classified as Defined Contribu�on
Schemes as the Group does not carry any
further obl iga�ons apart  from the
contribu�ons made on a monthly basis.

(ii) Superannua�on Fund

Contribu�on towards superannua�on fund
for certain employees is made to defined
contribu�on scheme administered by
insurance Group where the Group has no
further obliga�ons. Such benefits are
classified as Defined Contribu�on Schemes
as the Group does not carry any further
obliga�ons, apart from contribu�on made
on monthly basis.

P a y m e n t  t o  d e fi n e d  c o n t r i b u � o n
re�rement benefit plans are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered
service en�tling them to the contribu�ons.

c) Shared based payments

Employee op�ons

The fair value of op�ons under the AYM Syntex
Limited Employee Op�on scheme is recognised
as an employee benefits expense at the grant
date with a corresponding increase in equity.
The total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the op�ons
granted:

• including any market  performance
condi�ons (e.g., the Group’s share price)

• excluding the impact of any service and
n o n - m a r ke t  p e r f o r m a n c e  v e s � n g
condi�ons (e.g. profitability, sales growth
targets and remaining an employee of the
Group over a specified �me period), and

• including the impact of any non-ves�ng
condi�ons (e.g. the requirement for
employees to save or holdings shares for a
specific period).

The total expense is recognised over the ves�ng 
period, which is the period over which all the 
specified ves�ng condi�ons are to be sa�sfied. 
At the end of each period, the Group reviews its 
es�mates of the number of op�ons that are 
expected to vest based on the non-market 
ves�ng and service condi�ons. It recognises the 
impact of the revision to original es�mates, if 
any, in profit or loss such that the cumula�ve 
expense reflects the revised es�mate with a 
corresponding adjustment to equity-se�led 
employee benefits reserve.
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Bonus Plan

The Group recognises a liability and an expense 
for bonus where contractually obliged or where 
there is a past prac�ce that has created a 
construc�ve obliga�on.

1.15 Provisions and con�ngent liabili�es

a) Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, quality claims and
volume discounts are recognised when the
Group has a present legal or construc�ve
obliga�on as a result of past events, it is
probable that an ou�low of resources will be
required to se�le the obliga�on and the
amount can be reliably es�mated. Provisions
are not recognised for future opera�ng losses.

Provisions for restructuring are recognised by
the Group when it has developed a detailed
formal plan for restructuring and has raised a
valid expecta�on in those affected that the
Group will carry out the restructuring by
star�ng to implement the plan or announcing
its main features to those affected by it. The
measurement of provision for restructuring
includes only direct expenditures arising from
the restructuring, which are both necessarily
entailed by the restructuring and not
associated with the ongoing ac�vi�es of the
Group.

Where there are a number of similar
obliga�ons, the likelihood that an ou�low will
be required in se�lement is determined by
considering the class of obliga�ons as a whole.
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an ou�low with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obliga�ons may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the nominal or
present value of management’s best es�mate
of the expenditure required, taking into
a c c o u n t  t h e  r i s k s  a n d  u n c e r t a i n � e s
surrounding the obliga�on, to se�le the
present obliga�on at the end of the repor�ng
period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the �me value
of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to the
passage of �me is recognised as interest
expense.

b) Con�ngent liabili�es

Con�ngent liabili�es are disclosed when there
is a possible obliga�on arising from past events
the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group or a present obliga�on
that arises from past events where it is either
not probable that an ou�low of resources will
be required to se�le or a reliable es�mate of
the amount cannot be made.

c) Con�ngent Assets

Con�ngent Assets are disclosed, where an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. The
Group shall not recognised a con�ngent asset
unless the recovery is virtually certain.

1.16 Contributed Equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental 
costs directly a�ributable to the issue of new shares 
or op�ons are shown in equity as a deduc�on, net of 
tax, from the proceeds.

1.17 Dividends

Provision is made for any dividend declared, being 
appropriately authorised and no longer at the 
discre�on of the Group, on or before the end of the 
repor�ng period but not distributed at the end of the 
repor�ng period.

1.18 Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the 
profit a�ributable to owners of the Group by the 
weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for 
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the 
year and excluding treasury shares (Note 41).

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in 
the determina�on of basic earnings per share to take 
into account the a�er income tax effect of interest and 
other financing costs associated with dilu�ve 
poten�al equity shares, and the weighted average 
number of addi�onal equity shares that would have 
been outstanding assuming the conversion of all 
dilu�ve poten�al equity shares.
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1.19 Segment Repor�ng

Opera�ng segments are reported in a manner 
consistent with the internal repor�ng provided to the 
chief opera�ng decision maker.

The Managing Director, who has been iden�fied as the 
chief opera�ng decision maker, assesses the financial 
performance and posi�on of the Group and makes 
strategic decisions. Refer Note 47 for the segment 
informa�on presented.

1.20 Excep�onal items

Excep�onal items are items of income or expense 
recorded in the year in which they have been 
determined by management as being material by 
their size or incidence in rela�on to the consolidated 
financial statements and are presented separately 
within the results of the Group. The determina�on of 
which items are disclosed as excep�onal items affect 
the presenta�on of profit for the year and requires a 
degree of judgment.

1.21 Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the consolidated financial 
statements and notes have been rounded off to the 
nearest lakhs with two decimal as per the 
requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

Note 2: Significant accoun�ng assump�ons, es�mates 
and judgements

The prepara�on of consolidated financial 
statements requires the use of accoun�ng 
es�mates which, by defini�on, will seldom equal 
the actual results. Management also needs to 
exercise assump�ons, es�mates and judgements 
in applying the Group’s accoun�ng policies. This 
note provides an overview of the areas that 
involved a higher degree of judgement or 
complexity, and of items which are more likely to 
be materially adjusted due to es�mates and 
assump�ons turning out to be different than those 
originally assessed. Detailed informa�on about 
each of these es�mates and judgements is 
included in relevant notes together with 
informa�on about the basis of calcula�on for each 
affected line item in the consolidated financial 
statements. Accoun�ng es�mates could change 
from period to period.

a) Es�ma�on of current tax expense and
deferred income tax

The calcula�on of the Group’s tax charge
necessarily involves a degree of es�ma�on
and judgement in respect of certain items
whose tax treatment cannot be finally
determined un�l resolu�on has been
reached with the relevant tax authority or,
as appropriate, through a formal legal
process. The final resolu�on of some of
these items may give rise to material
profits/losses and/or cash flows. Significant
judgments are involved in determining the
provision for income taxes, including
amount expected to be paid/recovered for
uncertain tax posi�ons (Refer Note 35).

The recogni�on of deferred income tax
assets (including MAT Credit)/ liabili�es is
based upon management’s assessment of
future taxable profits for recoverability of
t h e  d e f e r r e d  b e n e fi t .  E x p e c t e d
recoverability may result from sufficient
and suitable taxable profits in the future,
planned transac�ons and planned tax
op�mizing measures. To determine the
future taxable profits, reference is made to
the latest available profit forecasts.

b) Es�ma�on of Provisions and Con�ngent
Liabili�es.

The Group exerc ises  judgement in
measuring and recognizing provisions and
the exposures to con�ngent liabili�es which
is related to pending li�ga�on or other
outstanding claims. Judgement is necessary
in assessing the likelihood that a pending
claim will succeed, or a liability will arise,
and to quan�fy the possible range of the
financial se�lement. Because of the
inherent uncertainty in this evalua�on
process, actual liability may be different
from the originally es�mated as provision
(Refer Note 39).

c) Es�mated useful life of Property, Plant and
Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment represent a
significant propor�on of the asset base of
the Group. The charge in respect of periodic
deprecia�on is derived a�er determining an
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es�mate of an asset’s expected useful life 
and the expected residual value at the end 
of its life.

The useful lives and residual values of 
Group’s  assets  are  determined by 
management at the �me the asset is 
acquired and reviewed periodically, 
including at each financial year end. Internal 
and external factors such as changes in the 
expected level of usage, technological 
developments, product life cycle, rela�ve 
efficiencies and opera�ng costs may impact 
their life and the residual value of these 
assets. This reassessment may result in 
change in deprecia�on and amor�za�on 
expense and have an impact on profit in 
future years. For the rela�ve size of the 
Group’s property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets (Refer Note 3 and 4).

d) Provision for inventories

The Group writes down inventories to net
realisable value based on an es�mate of the
realisability of inventories. Write downs on
inventories are recorded where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying balances may not realised. The
iden�fica�on of write- downs requires the
use of es�mates of net selling prices, age
and quality/condi�on of downgraded
m ate r i a l s / i nve nto r i e s .  W h e re  t h e
expecta�on is different from the original
es�mate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and write-
downs of inventories in the periods in which
such es�mate has been changed.

Write-downs of inventories to net realisable
value amounted to ` 318.91 lakhs (March
31, 2022: ` 316.15 lakhs). These were
recognised as an expense during the year
and included in ‘changes in the inventories
of work-in-progress and finished goods’ in
statement of Profit and Loss.

e) Es�ma�on of Defined Benefit Obliga�on

The present value of the defined benefit
obliga�ons depends on a number of factors
that are determined on an actuarial basis
using a number of assump�ons. Significant
judgements are required when se�ng

t h e s e  a s s u m p � o n s  w h i c h  i n c l u d e 
es�ma�on of appropriate discount rate, 
infla�on, salary growth, a�ri�on rates and 
mortality rates. Any changes in these 
assump�ons will impact the carrying 
amount of such obliga�ons. All assump�ons 
are reviewed at each repor�ng date.

The Group determines the appropriate 
discount rate at the end of each year. This is 
the interest rate that is used to determine 
the present value of es�mated future cash 
ou�lows expected to be required to se�le 
the defined benefit  obl iga�ons.  In 
determining the appropriate discount rate, 
the Group considers the interest rates of 
g o v e r n m e n t  b o n d s  o f  m a t u r i t y 
approxima�ng the terms of the related plan 
liability. Refer Note 31 for the details of the 
assump�ons used in es�ma�ng the defined 
benefit obliga�on.

f) Es�ma�on of impairment of non-current
assets

Ind AS 36 requires that the Group assesses
whether there is  any indica�on of
impairment to an asset or a cash genera�ng
unit and recoverability of poten�ally
impaired assets. The indica�on come from
interplay of various internal and external
factors. Based on the indica�ons/condi�ons
which can be external  or  internal ,
impairment tes�ng requires an es�mate of
value in use of the assets. The Group applies
the discounted cash flow method based on
the con�nued use of the assets in the
present condi�on for calcula�on of value in
use. In considering the value in use, the
management requires the use of es�mates
of, among other uncertain variables,
capacity u�liza�on, sales, cost of materials,
opera�ng margins, rate of growth, currency
rate movements and discount rates of the
underlying business/opera�ons. Any
consequent changes to the cash flows due
to changes in any of the above factors could
impact the carrying value of the assets.

NOTES 
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NOTE 3A:     PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Par�culars Freehold Leasehold  Building Plant  Vehicles Furniture  Equipments Computers Total Capital
 Land Improve- & Mac-  and  work in

ments hinery Fixtures progress          

Notes: 

(i) Refer to Note 18 for informa�on on property, plant and equipment hypothecated / pledged as security by the Group.

(ii) Contractual obliga�ons : Refer to Note 40 for disclosure of contractual commitments for acquisi�on of property, plant and

equipment.

(iii) Borrowing costs allocated to fixed assets / capital work in progress is ̀  40.83 lakhs. (Refer note 34)

(iv) Capital work-in-progress - Capital work-in-progress mainly comprises of new plant and machinery for spinning and texturising

process, being installed/constructed in India. (Refer note 3a(i))

(v) In accordance with para D13AA of Ind AS 101 First �me adop�on of Indian Accoun�ng Standards and the op�on available in

the Companies (Accoun�ng Standards) (Second Amendment) Rules, 2011, vide no�fica�on dated December 29, 2011 issued

by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Group has adjusted the exchange rate difference arising on long term foreign currency

monetary items, in so far as they relate to the acquisi�on of a depreciable capital asset, to the cost of the asset.

Net carrying amount as at 
March 31, 2022 1,607.42 17.31 8,154.91 55,060.38 192.83 261.29 192.77 640.90 66,127.81 1,495.32

Addi�ons 44.62 - - 77.11 - 0.44 3.11 7.68 132.96 6,415.15

Disposals - - (4.43) (467.44) - (0.07) (0.02) - (471.96) -

Transfers from CWIP - - 843.53 3,871.11 - 5.90 93.47 4,814.01 (4,814.01)

Closing gross carrying amount 1,652.04 17.31 8,994.01 58,541.16 192.83 261.66 201.76 742.05 70,602.82 3,096.46

Accumulated deprecia�on 

Accumulated deprecia�on as At 
April 1, 2022 - 16.27 1,508.91 19,568.01 90.15 114.77 148.09 452.89 21,899.09 -

Deprecia�on charge during the year - - 384.17 4,460.11 22.11 25.02 20.48 68.63 4,980.52 -

Disposals  - - (1.30) (327.11) - (0.04) (0.01) - (328.46) -

Closing accumulated deprecia�on - 16.27 1,891.78 23,701.01 112.26 139.75 168.56 521.52 26,551.15 -

Net carrying amount as at 
March 31, 2023 1,652.04 1.04 7,102.23 34,840.15 80.57 121.91 33.20 220.53 44,051.67 3,096.46

NOTES 
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NOTE 3a (i)  CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

(A) AGING OF CWIP:

Projects in progress Amounts in capital work-in-progress for 

Less than one year 1 – 2 years 2 – 3 years More than 3 years Total

March 31, 2023 2,882.63 213.83 - - 3096.46

NOTE 3a (ii)  COMPLETION SCHEDULE FOR CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS WHOSE COMPLETION IS OVERDUE :  

Projects in progress To be Completed in  

Less than one year 1 – 2 years 2 – 3 years More than 3 years Total

March 31, 2023 - - - - -

NOTE 3a (iii) TITLE DEEDS OF IMMOVABLE PROPERTY NOT IN THE NAME OF THE COMPANY

Relevant 
line item in 
the balance 
sheet

Descrip�on of item of 
property

Gross carrying 
value 

Title deeds 
held in the 
name of

Whether �tle deed 
holder is a 
promoter, director 
or rela�ve of 
promoter/ director 
or employee of 
promoter/ director

Property held 
since which 
date

Reason for not 
being held in the 
name of the 
company

Building - Residen�al 
flats -  Flat No. C-4-18 to 
C-4-23  (6 flats) at
Vardhman Co-op. Hsg
Soc.Ltd. Survey No. 91,
Village Lavachha Tal.
Pardi.

14.85 Original 
�tle deeds 
not 
traceable

No 30-Sep-98 Original �tle 
deeds not 
traceable

Building

NOTES 
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Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Note 3(b): LEASES 

This note provides informa�on for leases where the Company is a lessee. 

The Company leases various offices, warehouses and vehicles etc. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 6 months to 
5 years, but may have extension op�ons  as described in (ii) below. 

(i) Amounts recognised in balance sheet

The balance sheet shows  the following  amounts rela�ng to leases:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023

Lease Liabili�es 

Current 602.84

Non-current 171.18

Total 774.02

Addi�ons to the right-of-use assets during the current financial year were ̀  67.38 lakhs 

(ii) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss

The statement of profit or loss shows  the following  amounts rela�ng to leases:

Par�culars Note No As at March 31, 2023

Interest expense (included in finance costs) 36 107.23 

Expense rela�ng to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 35 18.00 

Total 125.23 

Par�culars Note No As at March 31, 2023

The total cash ou�low for leases for the year ended March 31, 2023 was ̀  722.51 lakhs .

The majority of extension and termina�on op�ons held are exercisable only by the Company and not by the respec�ve lessor.  

Deprecia�on charge of right-of-use assets 

Buildings 32 656.50 

Vehicles 32 2.36 

Total 658.86 

NOTES 
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Right-of-use  assets

Buildings 730.88

Vehicles -

Total 730.88



Note 4:         INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Par�culars Computer So�ware

Year ended March 31, 2022 

Gross carrying amount 

Opening 137.25 

Addi�ons during the year  -   

Disposals during the year  -   

Closing gross carrying amount  137.25  

Accumulated amor�sa�on 

Opening  105.43 

Charge during the year  12.49 

Amor�sa�on on disposals -   

Closing accumulated amor�sa�on  117.92  

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023  19.33 

 NOTE 5:     LOANS- NON-CURRENT 

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Loans to employees 56.58

Total 56.58

 NOTE6 :     NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Security deposits 193.00

Deposits with banks with maturity period of more than 12 months 106.36

Total 299.36

NOTES 
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NOTE 7:     INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Income tax assets  108.64

Add : Taxes Paid 259.08

           MAT u�lised 248.24

Less : Provision for current tax (435.59)

Total 180.37

 The above asset are net of provision for tax ₹ 2,874.86 lakhs
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NOTE 8:     DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Deferred tax assets

Defined benefit obliga�on 377.07

Provision for doub�ul debts 21.85

MAT credit en�tlement*  5,825.92

Lease liabili�es 270.47

Others including expenses allowable on payment basis 408.55

6,903.86

Deferred tax liabili�es 

Deprecia�on 4,652.64

Right-of-use assets 255.40

4,908.04

Net defered tax assets 1,995.82

 Note: 

*In assessing the realisability of deferred tax on MAT credit en�tlement, the Company considers the extent to which it is probable
that the credit will be realised. En�tlement of MAT credit is recognised to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company
will be able to u�lise the said credit against normal tax payable during the period of fi�een years succeeding the year of filing of
return of Income tax.The Company considers the expected projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making
this assessment. Based on this, the Company believes that it is probable that it will realise the benefits of this MAT credit
en�tlement.

MOVEMENT IN DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabili�es

Unabsorbed  MAT credit Defined Provision Lease Deprecia�on Right-of-use Net deferred
tax losses- en�tlement benefit Liabili�es assets tax assets

deprecia�on obliga�on 

At March 31, 2022 - 6,074.16 430.73 451.52 575.10 4,763.83 572.13 2,195.55 

As at April 1, 2022 - 6,074.16 430.73 451.52 575.10 4,763.83 572.13 2,195.55 

Charged / credited 

- to statement of Profit & Loss - - (13.41) (21.12) (304.63) (111.19) (316.73) 88.76

- MAT credit u�lisa�on - (248.24) - - - - - (248.24)

- to other comprehensive income - - (40.25) - - - - (40.25)

At March 31, 2023 - 5,825.92 377.07 430.40 270.47 4,652.64 255.40 1,995.82

 # U�lisa�on of deferred tax assets on carry forward MAT credit is towards current tax payable and hence not routed through the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

NOTES 
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 NOTE 9 :     OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Capital advances 465.11

Prepaid expenses 18.47

Balances with government authori�es 85.33

Total 568.91



 NOTE 10 :     INVENTORIES

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Raw Materials

-In stock 3,877.56

-In transit 4,078.95

Goods-in-process 2,363.58

Finished goods 

-In stock 4,811.45

-In transit 2,731.47

Consumables, packing materials, stores and spares 2,077.25

Total  19,940.26

 Refer Note 1.11  and Note 2 (d) for basis of valua�on and provision. 

 NOTE 11 :     TRADE RECEIVABLES - UNSECURED 

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Current Trade receivables from contracts billed with:

Related par�es (Refer Note 46)  209.99

Others 10,257.29

Less: Loss allowance (62.53)

Total 10,404.75

AGING OF TRADE RECEIVABLES : AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

 Outstanding for following periods from the due date

Par�culars Not Due Less than 6  6 months -  1-2 years 2-3 years More than  Total
Months 1 years 3 years 

Undisputed trade receivables 

considered good          7,899.86 2,466.85 38.04 - - - 10,404.75

which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - -

credit impaired  - 23.83 17.30 16.81 4.59 - 62.53

Less: Loss allowance - (23.83) (17.30) (16.81) (4.59) - (62.53)

Total 7,899.86 2,466.85 38.04 - 0.00 - 10,404.75

NOTES 
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 NOTE 12 :     CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Balance with Banks

- in current accounts 780.37

- in EEFC account 107.47

Cash on hand 20.96

Total 908.80
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 NOTE 13 :     BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ABOVE 

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Balance with Banks in

- in margin money deposits with banks having maturity period upto
twelve months (Refer below} 1,312.21

Total 1,312.21

Notes: 

Fixed money deposits with banks having maturity period more than 12 months are disclosed under "Non-current financial assets - 
Other financial assets" (Refer Note 6) 

 NOTE 14 :     LOANS

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Loans and advances to employees 52.61

Total 52.61

 NOTE 15 :     CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Security deposits 105.32

Less : Provision for doub�ul balances (70.76)

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 19.35

Other receivables 99.55

Total 153.46
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 NOTE 16 :     OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Assets held for disposal 5.70

Advances to vendors (recoverable in cash or kind) 986.39

Prepaid expenses 127.29

Balances with government authori�es 6866.54

Export benefits receivable 278.73

Technology upgrada�on fund subsidy receivable 391.31

Less: Loss allowance (391.31)

Total 8,264.65

 NOTE 17(A) :     EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Authorized equity share capital

9,20,00,000  Equity Shares of ` 10/- each 9,200.00

2,80,00,000 Op�onally Conver�ble Cumula�ve  Preference Shares of  ` 10/- each  2,800.00

12,000.00

 Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital  

50,35,3314 Equity Shares of  ` 10/- each fully paid up 5,035.33

Total  5,035.33



NOTES 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at April 1, 2022 50,153,634

Add: Exercise of op�ons - proceeds received 199,680

As at March 31, 2023 50,353,314

Terms/ rights a�ached to equity shares 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of �10 per share. All issued shares rank pari-passu and have 

same vo�ng rights per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in indian rupees.
In the event of liquida�on of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be en�tled to receive remaining assets of the 
Company, a�er distribu�on of preferen�al amounts. The distribu�on will be in propor�on to the number of equity shares held by 
the shareholders.

Equity shares held by holding company As at March 31, 2023

Mandawewala Enterprises Limited 36,734,927

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares As at March 31, 2023

Mandawewala Enterprises Limited Number of equity shares 36,734,927

Mandawewala Enterprises Limited Percentage of holding 72.95%

As at March 31, 2023

Details of shareholding of promoters Number of  Percentage of Percentage of 
Shares total number  change during

of shares the year

Mandawewala Enterprises Limited 36,734,927 72.95% 0.00%

RRM Family Trust 500,000 0.99% 0.00%

Movement in equity share capital Number of equity shares

 NOTE 17 (B):    OTHER EQUITY - RESERVES AND SURPLUS 

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Capital reserve 2,664.93

Capital redemp�on reserve 293.36

Securi�es premium 7,159.85

General reserve  107.06

Share op�ons outstanding account 303.89

Retained earnings 26,460.39

Total 36,989.48
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- Capital reserve

As per last balance sheet 2,664.93

Add/(less): Changes during the year -

2,664.93

- Capital redemp�on reserve

As per last balance sheet  293.36

Add/(less): Changes during the year  -

293.36

- Securi�es premium

As per last balance sheet 7,056.59

Add: Exercise of op�ons - proceeds received 103.26

7,159.85

- General reserve

As per last balance sheet 107.06

Add/ (Less): Changes during the year -

107.06

- Share op�ons outstanding account

As per last balance sheet 190.77

Add: Employee share based payment expense 216.38

Less: Employee stock op�ons exercised 103.26

303.89

- Retained earnings

Opening balance 25,669.27

Restated Balance 25,669.27

Add/(Less): 

Net profit for the year  716.20

Item of other comprehensive income recognized directly in retained earnings 

- Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obliga�on, net of tax 74.92

26,460.39

Movement As at March 31, 2023

 Nature and purpose of reserves 

 Capital reserve  

 Capital reserve represents capital surplus and is not available for distribu�on as dividend.

 Securi�es premium reserve  

 Securi�es premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is u�lized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 Capital redemp�on reserve (CRR)  

 CRR is created on redemp�on of preference shares in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

 Debenture redemp�on reserve (DRR)  

 DRR was created on issue of debentures in the earlier years. This has been transferred to general reserve as the debentures have been redeemed.

 General reserve   

 General reserve represents appropria�on of profits by the Group. 

 Share op�ons outstanding account 

 The share op�ons outstanding account is used to recognise the grant date fair value of op�ons issued to employees under AYM Syntex Limited employee stock op�on 
plan. 

 Retained earnings   

 Retained earnings represent the accumulated undistributed earnings.
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 NOTE 18 :    NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Secured

Term loans from banks 

- Rupee loans 18534.56

Unsecured, considered good 

Inter-corporate deposits from related par�es 2400.00

Less: Current maturi�es of long-term debt (included in current borrowings) (5,772.19)

Total 15,162.37

Note: 

The rate of interest on the borrowings are in range of 7.75% to 9.30% p .a. The rupee term loans from banks are eligible for Central and 
State Government interest subsidies/ rebates.

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalent 908.80

Lease liabili�es (774.02)

Term Loans from banks (20,934.56)

Current borrowings (including overdra�) (5,865.77)

Net debt (26,665.55)

Net debt reconcilia�on

This sec�on sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented.

Par�culars Other assets Liabili�es from financial ac�vi�es
Cash and Cash Lease  Non Current Current Total

equivalents Liabili�es borrowings* borrowings 

Net debt as at March 31, 2022                385.07             (1,645.76)           (18,965.72)            (8,356.94) (28,583.35)

Cash flows (net) 523.73 615.28 (1,968.84) 2,491.17 1,661.34

New leases - (67.38) - - (67.38)

Interest expense - (107.23) (1,765.07) (513.34) (2,385.64)

Interest paid - 107.23 1,765.07 513.34  2,385.64 

Non-cash movements 

- Fair value adjustment - 323.84 - - 323.84 

Net debt as at March 31, 2023 908.80 (774.02) (20,934.56) (5,865.77) (26,665.55)
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Par�culars Last  Terms of  As at March  
installment   Repayment 31, 2023

due

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the present  April-2024 Repayable in 28 quarterly 340.78
and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable proper�es and installments commencing 
2nd pari passu charged over current assets of the Company  from  Jan 2017 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the present  April-2024 Repayable in 28 quarterly  486.95
and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable proper�es and  installments commencing  
2nd pari passu charged over current assets of the Company  from Jan 2017 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the present  September - Repayable in 27 quarterly  448.58
and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable proper�es and 2024 installments commencing 
2nd pari passu charged over current assets of the Company from July 2017 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the present  January 2025 Repayable in 30 quarterly 771.03
and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable proper�es and  installments commencing  
2nd pari passu charged over current assets of the Company  from  July 2017 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the present  April-2025 Repayable in 28 quarterly  851.32
and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable proper�es and  installments commencing  
2nd pari passu charged over current assets of the Company  from June 2018 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the present  April-2025 Repayable in 28 quarterly  528.84
and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable proper�es and  installments commencing 
2nd pari passu charged over current assets of the Company from October 2018 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge  July-2026 Repayable in 28  1,558.94
over the present and future fixed assets, all movable  quarterly installments  
and immovable proper�es and 2nd pari passu charged  commencing from 
over current assets of the Company  October 2018 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the present  Jun-2026 Repayable in 29 quarterly 4,383.15
and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable proper�es and  installments commencing
2nd pari passu charged over current assets of the Company from December 2019 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the present  June-2022 Repayable in 18 Monthly  -
and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable proper�es and  installments commencing  
2nd pari passu charged over current assets of the Company  from January 2021 

Rupee working capital term loan is secured by 2nd pari passu charge  February-26 Repayable in 48 Monthly  678.13
over the present and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable  installments commencing  
proper�es and 2nd pari passu charged over current assets of the  from March 2022.           
Company  

Rupee working capital term loan is secured by 2nd pari passu charge  February-26 Repayable in 48 Monthly 1,808.33
over the present and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable  installments commencing  
proper�es and 2nd pari passu charged over current assets of the  from April 2022. 
Company  

Rupee working capital term loan is secured by 2nd pari passu charge March- 2026 Repayable in 48 Monthly  225.00
over the present and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable  installments commencing  
proper�es and 2nd pari passu charged over current assets of the  from April 2022. 
Company  

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the present  November Repayable in 18 quarterly 1,932.40
and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable proper�es of the  - 2026 installments commencing  
Company  from August 2022 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the en�re  August- 2027 Repayable in 16 quarterly  2,488.96
fixed assets, and 2nd pari passu charge over the en�re current asset  installments commencing 
of the Company  from Nov 2023 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the present  Mar- 2028 Repayable in 20 quarterly  2,032.15
and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable proper�es of the  installments commencing  
Company  from Jun 2023 

Total         18,534.56
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 NOTE 19 :     OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Creditors for capital purchases 242.28

Total 242.28

 NOTE 20 :     NON-CURRENT EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 33) 742.27

Total 742.27

 Note: 

The working capital loans, which includes cash credit and packing credit from banks, are secured by hypotheca�on of raw material, 
stock-in-process, finished goods, semi finished goods, stores, spares and book debts and other current assets of the Group and 
second charge on en�re fixed assets of the Group.

 NOTE 21 :    CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Secured

Working capital loan from banks

- Rupee loans 5,560.51

Current maturi�es of long-term borrowings (Refer Note 19) 5,772.19

Unsecured 

Buyers’ credit from banks 305.26

Total  11,637.96
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 NOTE 22 :    TRADE PAYABLES

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Acceptances 11,721.69

Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises (Refer Note 42) 1,590.41

Dues to other 5,939.77

Total 19,251.87

 For payables to Related par�es (Refer Note 46) 

 AGING OF TRADE PAYABLES: FOR MARCH 31, 20223

 Outstanding for following periods from the due date

Par�culars Not Due Less than    1-2 2-3 More than  Total
1 year years years 3 years 

Undisputed trade receivables  

Mono enterprises and small enterprises 1,590.41 - - - - 1,590.41

Others 15,263.59 2,235.09 49.55 30.95 82.28 17,661.46

Total 16,854.00 2,235.09 49.55 30.95 82.28 19,251.87
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 NOTE 23 :    OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 116.20

Creditors for capital purchases 664.32

Security deposits 166.20

Total 946.72

NOTES 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

 NOTE 24 :    CURRENT EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Provision for gratuity 80.64

Provision for compensated absences (Refer Note 32) 256.17

Employee benefit payables 198.51

Total 535.32

 Note:  

The en�re amount of the provision of  ̀  256.17 lakhs is presented as current, since the Group does not have an uncondi�onal right to defer 
se�lement for any of these obliga�ons. However, based on past experience, the Group does not expect all employees to avail the full amount 
of accrued leave or require payment for such leave within the next 12 months. 

 NOTE 25 :    INCOME TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Opening balance 581.61

Add : Current tax payable for the year -

Less : Taxes paid (578.29)

Closing Balance 3.32

 The above liabili�es are net of advance taxes paid of � 1830.51 lakhs. ( Refer Note 35) 

 NOTE 26 :    OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Contact Liabili�es 543.46

Statutory dues 171.25

Deferred capital subsidy 0.47

Total 715.18

 NOTE 27:    REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Par�culars Year ended
March 31, 2023

Revenue from contract with customers 

Sale of products 142,287.38

Sales of Services 343.00

Other Opera�ng Revenue 

Sale of scrap 606.88

Export incen�ves (Refer Note 1.3) 2,540.96

Total 145,778.22



 NOTE 28:    OTHER INCOME

Par�culars Year ended
March 31, 2023

Exchange difference (net) 359.32

Interest on: 

- Fixed deposits 59.53

- Others 161.87

Profit on sale of current investments -

Insurance claim 11.43

Miscellaneous 194.70

Total 786.85

NOTES 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

 NOTE 29:    COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED 

Par�culars Year ended
March 31, 2023

Raw material consumed  

Inventory at the beginning of the year  7,281.04

Add: Purchases 88,072.26

95,353.30

Less: Inventory at the end of the year 7,956.51

Total 87,396.79

 NOTE 30:    CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND GOODS-IN-PROCESS 

Par�culars Year ended
March 31, 2023

Inventory at the end of the year

Goods-in-process 2,363.58

Finished goods 7,542.92

9,906.50

Less: Inventory at the beginning of the year  

Goods-in-process 1,795.73

Finished goods 7,918.06

9,713.79

Total changes in inventories of finished goods and goods-in-process  (192.71)

 NOTE 31:    EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 

Par�culars Year ended
March 31, 2023

Salaries, wages and allowances 5364.80

Employee share based payment expense (Refer note 49) 216.38

Managerial remunera�on 223.46

Contribu�on to provident and other funds 355.56

Gratuity 169.48

Workmen and staff welfare expenses 218.30

Total 6547.98

*Provident fund contribu�on � 12.37 lakhs and gratuity � 5.03 lakhs are included in managerial remunera�on.
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 Defined Contribu�on Plans  Year ended
March 31, 2023

During the year, the Company has recognized the following amounts in 

the statement of Profit and Loss:  

Employers’ Contribu�on to Provident Fund*  329.17

Employers’ Contribu�on to Employees’ State Insurance *  26.08

Employers’ Contribu�on to Labour welfare fund*   0.31

Total  355.56

* Included in Contribu�on to Provident and Other Funds

NOTES 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Defined Benefit Plan 

Contribu�on to Gratuity

The Company provides for every employee who is en�tled to a benefit equivalent to fi�een days salary last drawn for each 
completed year of service in line with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The same is payable at the �me of separa�on from the 
Company or re�rement, whichever is earlier. 

Risk exposure 

These defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risk such as longevity risks, interest rate risks, market (investment) 
risks.

 Major Assump�ons   Year ended
March 31, 2023

% p.a.

Discount Rate   7.50

Salary Escala�on Rate *  7.00

Rate of Employee Turnover:  

-Upto 30 years 4.00

-From 31 to 44 years 6.00

-Above 44 years 2.00

Mortality Rate During Employment 100% of IALM
(2012-2014)

* The es�mates for future salary increases considered takes into account the infla�on, seniority, promo�on and other relevant factors.

 Change in the Present Value of Obliga�on     Year ended
March 31, 2023

Opening Present Value of Obliga�on  846.88 

Current Service Cost  112.52 

Interest Cost  61.99 

Total amount recognized in profit or loss  174.51 

Remeasurement  

(Gain)/Loss from change in demographic assump�ons and experience adjustments (26.24)

(Gain)/Loss from change in financial assump�ons  (88.93)

Total amount recognized in other comprehensive income  (115.17)

Benefit/ Exgra�a paid  83.31

Closing Present Value of Obliga�on  822.91



 Amount recognized in the Balance sheet  Year ended
March 31, 2023

Present value of Obliga�on 822.91

Funded Status [(Surplus/ (Deficit)]  (822.91)

Expense recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss  174.15

Expense recognized in Other comprehensive income  115.17

Net (liability)/ Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet  (822.91)

Expenses Recognized in Profit and Loss  Year ended
March 31, 2023

Current Service Cost  112.52

Interest Cost  61.99

Expenses recognized in the of profit or loss* 174.51

* Included in Employee Benefits Expense

NOTES 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Expenses recognized in Other Comprehensive Income  Year ended
March 31, 2023

Re-measurement (Refer Note b above)  

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obliga�on For the year  (115.17)  

Net (Income)/Expenses for the Period Recognized in OCI  (115.17)  

Sensi�vity Analysis  Year ended
March 31, 2023

Projected Benefit Obliga�on on Current Assump�ons  822.91

Delta Effect of  

+0.5% Change in Rate of Discoun�ng (42.86)

-0.5% Change in Rate of Discoun�ng 32.60

+0.5% Change in Rate of Salary 32.60

-0.5% Change in Rate of Salary (31.31)

+0.5% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover* 1.16

-0.5% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover* (1.23)

The above sensi�vity analyses are based on a change in an assump�on while holding all other assump�ons constant. In prac�ce, this 
is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assump�ons may be correlated. When calcula�ng the sensi�vity of the defined 
benefit obliga�on to significant actuarial assump�ons the same method (present value of the defined benefit obliga�on calculated 
with the projected unit credit method at the end of the repor�ng period) has been applied as when calcula�ng the defined benefit 
liability recognized in the Balance Sheet.  

The methods and types of assump�ons used in preparing the sensi�vity analysis did not change compared to the prior period. 

Defined benefit liability and employer contribu�ons  

The Group considers that the contribu�on rates set at the last valua�on date are sufficient to eliminate the deficit over the agreed 
period and that regular contribu�ons, which are based on service costs, will not increase significantly. 
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Year Amount

2023 - 2024  183.90

2024 - 2025  100.15 

2025 - 2026  91.98

2026 - 2027  113.89

2027 -2028 100.61

 Less than a year

As at March 31, 2023  

Defined benefit obliga�on (gratuity)  80.64

As at March 31, 2022  

Defined benefit obliga�on (gratuity)  40.05

 Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obliga�on 

Other employee benefit 

The liability for compensated absences as at year end is ` 256.17 Lakhs .

NOTES 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The weighted average dura�on of the defined benefit obliga�on is 16.37 years. The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted 
gratuity is as follows:

 NOTE 32:    DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE 

Par�culars Year ended
March 31, 2023

Deprecia�on on property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 3a) 4,980.52

Deprecia�on of right-of-use assets (Refer Note 3b) 658.86

Amor�za�on of intangible assets (Refer Note 4)  12.49

Total  5,651.87



 NOTE 33:    OTHER EXPENSES  

Par�culars Year ended
March 31, 2023

 Consump�on of stores and spares    3,606.65 

 Packing materials      4,488.71 

 Dyes and chemicals  4,219.33 

 Power, fuel and water  10,374.64 

 Contract labour charges  4,433.65 

 Repairs and maintenance:  

-Buildings 162.85

-Property, plant and equipment 581.84

-Others 244.30

 Rent  18.00

 Rates and taxes  45.93

 Insurance   328.27

 Directors si�ng fees  14.49

 Prin�ng and sta�onery   33.50

 Travelling and conveyance expenses  479.08

 Legal and professional charges  826.42

 Payment to auditors [Refer Note (a) below]  32.80

 Communica�on charges  38.69

 Vehicle expenses  63.18

 Loss on sale/discarding of property, plant and equipment (net)  110.65

 Freight and forwarding expenses  9,164.23

 Brokerage and commission   2,004.68

 Dona�ons  5.11

 Corporate social responsibility expenditure (Refer Note:52)  72.41

 Miscellaneous expenses  1,149.28

 Total  42,498.69

 Note (a) Payment to auditors for:  

 As auditor:   

-Audit fees 29.00

-Tax audit 2.25

 In other capaci�es:  

-Cer�fica�ons 1.15

-Reimbursement of expenses 0.40

 Total  32.80

NOTES 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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 NOTE 34:    FINANCE COSTS 

Par�culars Year ended
March 31, 2023

Interest and finance charges on lease liabili�es and financial liabili�es   

- Long term borrowings   1,765.07

- Short term borrowings 513.34

- Others 252.03

Bank and other financial charges  1,068.98

Total  3,599.42

Par�culars As at 
March 31, 2023

Current tax  

Current tax on profits for the year     435.59

(A)  435.59

Deferred tax  

Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets#  339.16

(Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabili�es  (427.92)

(B)  (88.76)

 Income tax expense charged to profit or loss (C) = (A) + (B)  346.83

 NOTE 35:    INCOME TAX EXPENSE

a) This note provides an analysis of the Group’s income tax expense, show amounts that are recognised directly in equity and how
the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deduc�ble items. It also explains significant es�mates made in rela�on to
the Group’s tax posi�ons.

i) Income tax related to items recognised directly in profit or loss of the Statement of Profit and Loss

b) The reconcilia�on of es�mated income tax expense at the Indian statutory income tax rate to the income tax expenses reported
in statement of profit and loss is as follows:

ii) Deferred tax related to items recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI)

Par�culars As at
March 31, 2023

 Deferred tax on remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plan  40.25

 Deferred tax credited to other comprehensive income   40.25

Par�culars As at 
March 31, 2023

Profit before income tax  1063.03

Tax at the Indian tax rate of 34.94% (March 31, 2022: 34.94%)  371.47

Expected tax expense at the enacted tax rate in India  

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax expense:  

1) Non-deduc�ble expenses

CSR Expenditure  and Dona�ons 27.09

Other items  4.49

2) Tax benefit items (7.81)

3) Re-measurement of Deferred tax assets / Deferred tax liabili�es (48.41)

Income tax expense charged to the statement of profit and loss  346.83

Note:  Total borrowing costs is ₹ 3,640.25 out of which, ₹ 40.83 lakhs allocated to fixed assets / capital work in progress.

NOTES 
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NOTE 36:     FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Financial instruments by category:

       As at March 31, 2023

Financial assets Note Amor�sed cost FVTPL

Trade receivables  11 10,404.75 -

Margin money deposits with banks 13 1,312.21 -

Cash and cash equivalents 12 908.80 -

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 6, 13 106.36 -

Security deposits 6, 15 227.56 -

Loans 5, 14 109.19 -

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 15 19.35 -

Total financial assets 13,088.22 -

As at March 31, 2023

Financial liabili�es Note Amor�sed cost FVTPL

Borrowings 18, 21 26,800.33 -

Trade payables 22 19,251.87 -

Payable for capital goods 19, 23 906.60 -

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 23 116.20 -

Security deposits received 23 166.20 -

Lease liabili�es 3(b) 774.02 -

Total financial liabili�es 48,015.22 -

Fair value hierarchy

The fair values of the financial assets and liabili�es are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transac�on between market par�cipants at the measurement date.

This sec�on explains the judgements and es�mates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) 
recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amor�sed cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial 
statements. To provide an indica�on about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its 
financial instruments into three levels prescribed under the Ind AS. An explana�on for each level is given below. 

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, 
exchange traded funds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock 
exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the repor�ng period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing Net Assets Value 
(NAV), NAV represents the price at which, the issuer will issue further units and will redeem such units of mutual funds to and from 
the investors. 

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an ac�ve market is determined using valua�on techniques which 
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as li�le as possible on en�ty-specific es�mates. If all significant inputs required 
to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. Instruments in the level 2 category for the Group 
include foreign exchange forward contracts. 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in this level. 

NOTES 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
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There are no internal transfers of financial assets and financial libili�es between Level 1, Level 2, Level 3 during the period. The Group’s 
policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy level as at the end of the repor�ng period.  

Financial assets and liabili�es measured As at March 31, 2023

at amor�sed cost for which fair values Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
are disclosed

Financial assets

Margin money deposits with banks - - 1312.21

Security deposits  - - 227.56

Loans  - - 109.19

Interest accrued on fixed deposits - - 19.35

Financial liabili�es 

Borrowings  - - 26800.33

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - - 116.20

Security Deposits received - - 166.20

Financial assets and liabili�es measured at amor�sed cost   As at March 31, 2023

Carrying Amount Fair Value

Financial assets

Security deposits 227.56 245.34

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, fixed deposit having maturity period upto 12 months and its 
interest accrued, export benefits receivable,  current loans, current borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabili�es are 
considered to be approximately same as their value, due to the short -term maturi�es of these financial assets/liabili�es.

During the periods men�oned above, there have been no transfers amongst the levels of hierarchy.

Valua�on techniques used to determine fair value: 

Specific valua�on techniques used to value financial instruments include: 

• the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

• the fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date.

• the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

NOTES 
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 NOTE 37 :    CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Gross debt (inclusive of long term and short term borrowing) 27,574.35

Less: - Cash and bank balances 908.80

Net debt 26,665.55

Total equity 42,024.81

Total capital 68,690.36

Net debt to equity ra�o 0.63

Risk management 

The Group’s objec�ves when managing capital is to safeguard con�nuity, maintain a strong credit ra�ng and healthy capital ra�os in 
order to support its business and provide adequate return to shareholders through con�nuing growth. The Group’s overall strategy 
remains unchanged from previous year. 

The Group determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term opera�ng plans which include 
capital and other strategic investments. 

The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund genera�on and other long term borrowings. The Group’s 
policy is to use short-term and long-term borrowings to meet an�cipated funding requirements. 

For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, equity includes paid up capital, securi�es premium and other reserves. Net debt 
are long term and short term interest bearing debt as reduced by cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances (including 
earmarked balances) and current investments. The Group’s strategy is to maintain a gearing ra�o within 2:1.

The capital composi�on is as follows:

 NOTE 38 :    FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s ac�vi�es are exposed to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial 
instruments. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company, deriva�ve financial instruments, 
such as foreign exchange forward contracts are entered to hedge certain foreign currency risk exposures. Deriva�ves are used 
exclusively for hedging purpose and not as trading or specula�ve instruments. 

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement  Management

Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,  Ageing analysis   Diversifica�on of bank
deriva�ve financial instruments,  deposits, credit limits and
financial assets measured at amor�sed cost. le�ers of credit

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabili�es Rolling cash flow  Availability of commi�ed
forecasts  credit lines and borrowing  

facili�es

Market risk - foreign exchange Future commercial transac�ons Recognised  Cash flow forecas�ng Forward Foreign Exchange
financial assets and liabili�es not denominated Sensi�vity analysis Contracts
in Indian Rupee (`) 

Market risk – interest rate Long-term borrowings at variable rates Sensi�vity analysis Interest rate swaps

Market risk – security prices Investments in Bonds Sensi�vity analysis Por�olio diversifica�on

The Group’s risk management is carried out by a central treasury department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. 
Group’s treasury team iden�fies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close coopera�on with the Group’s respec�ve department 
heads. The Board provides wri�en principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign 
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of deriva�ve financial instruments, non deriva�ve financial instruments and 
investment of excess liquidity.

Loan covenants

Bank loan agreements contain certain debt covenants relang to limita�on on indebtedness, debt-equity ra�o, debt service coverage 
ra�o and fixed assets coverage ra�o. The lower than mandated debt service coverage ra�o has no implica�ons on the cash flows as 
the Group complies with and sa�sfies all other condi�ons in the respec�ve sanc�on of the banks.

NOTES 
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A.  Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obliga�on under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a

financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its opera�ng ac�vi�es (primarly trade receivables) and from its financing

ac�vi�es, including deposits with banks, investments in mutual funds, foreign exhange transac�ons and other financial

instruments. The credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of deteriora�on of credit worthiness as well

as concentra�on risks. To manage this, the Group periodically assesses the financial reliability of counter party, taking into

account the financial condi�on, current economic trends, analysing the risk profile of the counter party and the analysis of

historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable etc. Individual risk limits are set accordingly.

The Group determines default by considering the business environment in which the Group operates and other macro-

economic factors. The Group considers the probability of default upon ini�al recogni�on of asset and whether there has been a

significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each repor�ng period. To assess whether there is a significant

increase in credit risk the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the repor�ng date with the risk of

default as at the date of ini�al recogni�on. It considers reasonable and suppor�ve forwarding-looking informa�on such as:

i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business;

ii) Actual or expected significant changes in the opera�ng results of the counterparty;

iii) Financial or economic condi�ons that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to meet its

obliga�ons;

iv) Significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same counterparty;

v) Significant changes in the value of the collateral suppor�ng the obliga�on or in the quality of the third-party guarantees.

None of the financial instruments of the Group result in material concentra�on of credit risk. The carrying value of financial

assets represent the maximum credit risk. Financial assets are wri�en off when there is no reasonable expecta�on of recovery,

such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.

i)  Trade receivables

The Group extends credit to customers in normal course of business. The Group considers factors such as credit track record in

the market and past dealings for extension of credit to customers. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing

credit limits, payment track record, monitoring financial posi�on of the customer and other relevant factors. Outstanding

customer receivables are regularly monitored and reviewed.

The Group evaluates the concentra�on of risk with respect to trade receivables as limited, as its customers are located in several

jurisdic�ons and industries and operate in largely independent markets. The exposure to customers is diversified and no

substan�al concentra�on of risk as no single customer contributes more than 10% of revenue and of the outstanding

receivables. Sales made in domes�c market predominantly are through agents appointed by the Group, the agents being del

credere agents most of the credit risk emana�ng thereto is borne by agents and the Group’s exposure to risk is limited to sales

made to customers directly. In case of direct sale, the Group has a policy of dealing only with credit worthy counter par�es. The

credit risk related to such sales are mi�gated by taking advance, security deposit, le�er of credit, se�ng and monitoring internal

limits on exposure to individual customers as and where considered necessary. An impairment analysis which includes

assessment for indicators of impairment  is performed at each repor�ng date on an individual basis for all major customers and

provision for impairment taken. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteris�cs.The

expected loss rates for trade receivables has been computed based on reasonable approxima�on of the loss rates and paste

trend of outstanding debtors
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A.  Trade receivables

Loss allowance as at 31 March 2023 was determined as follows for trade receivables and contract assets under the simplified
approach:

As at 31 March 2023  Not Due 0 - 30 days 31 - 60 Days 61 - 90 Days 91 - 180 Days 181-360 Days Over 360 Days Total

Gross carrying amount            7,966.32            1,843.80              182.38               106.20 291.84 55.34 21.40              10,467.28 

Expected loss rate 0.00% 0.30% 1.23% 3.24% 4.29% 31.25% 100.00% -

Expected credit losses  -    5.62  2.24  3.44  12.53                17.30 21.40  62.53 

Carrying amount 
(net of impairment)           7,966.32            1,838.18              180.14               102.76  279.31                38.04 - 10,404.75 

Reconcilia�on of loss allowance provision of trade receivables :

Par�culars As at 
March 31, 2023

Loss allowance - opening 165.97 

Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit or loss during the year - 

Receivables wri�en off during the year as uncollec�ble 31.87 

Unused amount reversed 71.57

Loss allowance - closing 62.53

ii) Financial Instruments and Cash Deposits

The Company maintains exposure in Cash and Cash equivalents, term deposits with banks and investments in mutual funds, the

same is done a�er considering factors such as track record, size of the ins�tu�on, market reputa�on and service standards.

Generally, the balances are maintained with the ins�tu�ons from whom the Company has also availed borrowings. Individual

risk limits are set for each counter party based on financial posi�on, credit ra�ng and past experience. Credit risk and

concentra�on of exposure are ac�vely monitored by the Company. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in

material concentra�on of credit risk.

iii) The ageing analysis of the trade receivables (other than due from related par�es) has been considered from the date the

Invoice falls due.

Par�culars As at 
March 31, 2023

Not due 7,756.33

Up to 6 months  2,424.22

More than 6 months  76.74

Total                  10,257.29

NOTES 
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B. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to se�le or meet its obliga�ons, by delivering cash or other
financial assets, on �me or at a reasonable price. For the Company, liquidity risk arises from obliga�ons on account of financial
liabili�es – borrowings, trade and other payables, deriva�ve instruments and other financial liabili�es.

The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabili�es when due, under both normal and stressed condi�ons, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to
the Company’s reputa�on. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash and drawable reserves, by
con�nuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of the financial assets and liabili�es.
The Company regularly monitors liquidity posi�on through rolling forecast based on es�mated free cash flow generated from
business. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposits and liquid schemes of mutual funds, which carry
no/negligible mark to market risks.
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i) Financing arrangements

The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facili�es at the end of the repor�ng period:

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Floa�ng rate

- Expiring within one year (Packing credit, cash credit,
post shipment credit and term loans 7,443.99

- Expiring beyond one year (Term Loans) -

Total 7,443.99

The working capital facili�es may be drawn at any �me and may be terminated by the bank without no�ce. 

ii) Maturi�es of Financial liabilii�es
The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liabili�es into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual
maturi�es for:
- all non deriva�ve financial liabili�es, and
- net and gross se�led deriva�ve financial instruments for which the contractual maturi�es are essen�al for an understanding of
the �ming of the cash flows.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

 Maturi�es of non – deriva�ve financial liabili�es  

 Long term borrowings  5,772.19 15,162.37 - 20,934.56 

 Short term borrowings  5,865.77 - - 5,865.77 

 Interest accrued and not due  116.20 - - 116.20 

 Lease liabili�es  602.84 171.18 - 774.02 

 Trade payables  19,251.87 - - 19,251.87 

 Other financial liabili�es  830.52 242.28 - 1,072.80 

 Total  32,439.39 15,575.83 - 48,015.22

As at March 31, 2023 Less than  Between  Beyond  Total
1 year 1  and 5 years 5 years 
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Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity or commodity prices will 
affect the Group’s income/cash flows or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objec�ve of market risk management is 
to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while op�mising the return. The sensi�vity analysis 
excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying value of postemployment benefit obliga�ons provisions and 
on the non-financial assets and liabili�es. Financial instruments affected by market risk include receivables, loans and borrowings, 
advances, deposits, investments and deriva�ve financial instruments. The sensi�vity of the relevant profit and loss item is the effect 
of the assumed changes in respec�ve market risks. 

The Group’s ac�vi�es expose it to risks on account of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates.

The Group uses deriva�ve financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts of varying maturity depending upon the 
underlying contract as a risk management strategy to manage its exposures to foreign exchange fluctua�ons and interest rate.  

Foreign currency risk  

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument or future cash flows fluctuate because of changes in market price of 
the func�onal currency. The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk on their receivables, payables and foreign currency loans 
which are mainly held in the United State Dollar (“USD”), the Euro (“EUR”), Bri�sh Pound (‘GBP’), the Australian Dollar (“AUD”), the 
Swiss Franc (“CHF”) and Japanese Yen (“JPY”). Consequently, the Company is exposed primarily to the risk that the exchange rate of 
the Indian Rupees (“¹ ”) rela�ve to the USD, the EUR, the CHF, and the CNY may change in a manner that has a material effect on the 
reported values of the Company’s assets and liabili�es that are denominated in these foreign currencies. 



 As at March 31, 2023
 Foreign Currency exposure in

USD EUR GBP JYP AUD CHF

Financial assets 

 - Trade receivables 5919.64     906.50 185.18 - - -

 - Advance to Suppliers 578.20         17.18 - 47.18 - -

 - Capital advances 152.62             123.30 - - - 1.78

- Cash and Cash equivalents 107.46 - - - - -

  - Other financial assets   44.22 55.33 - - - -

Net exposure to foreign currency risk 
(Assets) 6,802.14   1,102.32 185.18 47.18 - 1.78

Financial liabili�es 

- Buyers credit from banks 305.26     - - - - -

- Trade payables 5,233.49     130.49 10.03 - 16.73 -

- Creditors for Capital Purchases - 491.67 - - - -

- Advance from Customers 378.43         24.55 - - - -

Net exposure to foreign currency risk  

Liabili�es) 5,917.18  646.71 10.03 - 16.73 -

Net open exposure 884.96      455.61 175.15 - (16.73) 1.78

* The net open exposure as at March 31, 2023 excludes export stock in transit of  ₹ 1,013.98 lakhs.
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The Group evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transac�ons and follows established risk management 
policy wherein exposure is iden�fied, a benchmark is set and monitored closely for suitable hedges, including minimising cross 
currency transac�ons, using natural hedge and the use of deriva�ves like foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge exposure to 
foreign currency risk. 

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the repor�ng period are as under -  

Sensi�vity to foreign currency risk 

The following table demonstrates the foreign exchange sensi�vity by assuming rates shi� in the USD, EUR, CHF, GBP, JPY, CHF and 
other currencies with all other variables held constant. The impact below on the Group’s profit/equity before considering tax impact 
is due to changes in the fair value of unhedged foreign currency monetary assets and liabili�es at balace sheet date: 

USD 44.25 (44.25)

EUR 22.78 (22.78)

GBP 8.76   (8.76)

JPY 2.36  (2.36)

AUD (0.84)     0.84

CHF 0.09     (0.09)

Currencies / Sensi�vity As at March 31, 2023

Increase by 5% Decrease by 5%

Gain / Loss 

Based on the movements in the foreign exchange rates historically and the prevailing market condi�ons as at the repor�ng date, 
management has concluded that the above men�oned rates used for sensi�vity are reasonable benchmarks. 
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II Interest rate risk 

This refers to risk to the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument on account of movement in market interest rates. 

For the Group, the interest risk arises mainly from debt obliga�ons, both short term and long term with floa�ng interest rates. 
Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensi�vity for changes in variable interest rate.  

III Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensi�vity for changes in variable interest rate. The Group uses a mix of 
interest rate sensi�ve financial instruments to manage the liquidity and fund requirements for its day to day opera�ons like 
vendor bill discoun�ng, suppliers’ and buyers’ credit. The risk is managed by the Group by maintaining an appropriate mix 
between fixed and floa�ng rate borrowings. As the Group does not have exposure to any floa�ng interest bearing assets, its 
interest income and related cash flows are not affected by changes in the market interest rates.  

a) Interest rate risk exposure:

b) Interest rate Sensi�vity

The following table illustrates the sensi�vity of profit and equity before considering tax impact to a reasonably possible change
in interest rate of 50 basis point increase or decrease. The calcula�ons are based on the risk exposures outstanding at the
balance sheet date.

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Variable rate borrowings          24,095.07

Fixed rate borrowings 2,705.26

Total borrowings 26,800.33 

As at the end of the repor�ng period, the Group had the following variable rate borrowings:

As at March 31, 2023 

Par�culars Weighted  % of total 
average Balance loans

interest rate 

Borrowings - Term Loan 9.21% 24,095.07 90%

Net exposure to cash flow  
interest rate risk 24,095.07 
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Par�culars Impact on Profit

As at March 31, 2023

Interest rates - increase by 50basis points* (120.48)

Interest rates - decrease by 50basis points* 120.48

*Holding all other variables constant including change in interest subsidy

NOTE 39:     CONTINGENT LIABILITY DISCLOSURE

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Excise, Customs and Service Tax Ma�ers 1,100.21

Income Tax Ma�ers 6.32

Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts 488.27

The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India, through a ruling in February 2019, provided interpreta�on on the components of salary on which 
the Group and its employees are to contribute towards provident fund under the Employee’s Provident Fund Act. Based on the 
current evalua�on, the Group believes it is not probable that certain components of salary paid by the Group will be subject to 
contribu�on towards provident fund due to the Supreme Court order. The Group will con�nue to monitor and evaluate its posi�on 
based on future events and developments.



Notes: 

(a) It is not prac�cable for the Group to es�mate the �ming of cash ou�lows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolu�on of the
respec�ve proceedings.

(b) The Group does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above con�ngent liabili�es.

Descrip�on of con�ngent liabili�es: 

Excise, GST, customs and service tax ma�ers  

The Group has ongoing disputes with tax authori�es mainly rela�ng to availment of input tax credit on certain items and classfica�on 
of finished goods.  

Income tax ma�ers

The Group has ongoing disputes with Income tax authori�es rela�ng to tax treatment of certain items. These mainly includes 
disallowed expenses, claimed by the Group as deduc�ons. 

Claims against Group not acknowledged as debts 

Represent claims disputed by the Group wherein the Group has filed applica�on for dismissal of the ma�ers. 

NOTES 
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NOTE 40:     CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

(a) Capital Commitments

Es�mated value of Contracts in Capital Account remaining to be executed 
(Net of Capital Advances) 1,576.79

(b) Other Commitments

Custom duty on pending export obliga�on for import under   
Advance License and EPCG scheme 475.79

NOTE 41:     EARNINGS PER SHARE

Par�culars Year ended 
As at March 31, 2023

Profit a�er tax (A) ( ` in lakhs) 716.20

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (B)            50,268,023

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic earning per share           50,268,023

Adjustements for dilluted earning per share - op�ons 501,853

Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted earning per share (C)           50,769,876

Basic earnings per share (A)/(B)  1.42

Diluted earnings per share (A)/(C)  1.41

Nominal value of an equity share (`) 10.00
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NOTE 42:     DISCLOSURE FOR MICRO, MEDIUM AND SMALL ENTERPRISES

Par�culars As at March 31, 2023

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and 
remaining unpaid as at year end 1,488.68

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and  
remaining unpaid as at year end 101.73

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act,  
beyond the appointed day during the year 7,374.47

Interest paid, under Sec�on 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered  
under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year 48.04

Interest paid, other than under Sec�on 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered 
under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year - 

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but  
without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act -

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accoun�ng year -

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 
years, un�l such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the  
small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deduc�ble expenditure  
under sec�on 23 of the MSMED Act  101.73

NOTE 43:  DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO THE REGULATION 34(3) READ WITH PARA A OF SCHEDULE V OF SEBI LISTING 
REGULATIONS, 2015 

There are no loans and advances, in the nature of loans to firms/ companies in which directors are interested 
outstanding during the year ended March 31, 2023.  

NOTE 44:  RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE 

Revenue research and development expenses incurred during the year, debited to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
account are  ¹ 1001.81 lakhs which include materials cost, power cost, employee cost. 

There was no capital expenditure incurred during the year for research and development.  

NOTE 45: OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

There are no financial assets or financial liabili�es which are subject to offse�ng as at March 31, 2023 since the Group 
neither has enforceable right or an intent to se�le on net basis or to realise the asset and se�le the liability 
simultaneously. Further, the Group has no enforceable ma�ers ne�ng arrangements and other similar arrangements as 
at March 31, 2023. 
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NOTE 46:      RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(i) Rela�onships

Holding Company Mandawewala Enterprises Limited 

Key Management Personnel Mr. Abhishek Mandawewala (Managing Director & CEO) 
Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala (Whole Time Director) 
Mr. Himanshu Dhaddha (Chief Financial Officer) 

Independent Directors Mr. Atul Desai 
Mr. K H Vishwanathan 
Mr. Mohan Tandon 

Other Related par�es Mertz Estates Limited  
RRM Enterprises Private Limited 
Welspun Global Brands Limited  
Welspun Flooring Limited 
Welspun India Limited 

NOTES 
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(ii) Terms and condi�ons

- All transac�ons were made on normal commercial terms and condi�ons and at market rates.

- All outstanding balances are unsecured and repayable in cash.

Mandawewala Mertz  RRM Welspun  Welspun  Welspun
Enterprises  Estates Enterprises  India  Flooring  Global
Limited Limited Private  Limited Limited Brands

Limited Limited

Holding Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel or rela�ves of such  
Company personnel exercise significant influence or control and with whom  

 transac�ons have taken place during the year 
Par�culars

Key  Independent
Management Directors

Personal 

Transac�ons during the year 

Intercorporate deposits received 1,200.00 

Cross charge 14.31 

Interest expense -                  205.35 

Short term employee benefit         313.96  

Stock Op�ons           31.20  

Loan advanced -

Loan repaid           11.00  

Director si�ng fees              14.49

Purchase of goods/services/ 
expenses incurred 3.13 221.25  45.51             55.26        3,579.92  

Sale of goods           452.84        1,914.64  

Closing balance 

Intercorporate deposits received            2,400.00  

Interest accrued 47.93  

Debtors 28.12          181.87  

Creditors          123.73           115.94  

*All amount is inclusive of taxes
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Note 47:  Segment informa�on

i) Informa�on about primary business segment iden�ûca�on of segments:

The Group is engaged in the business of Synthe�c Yarn which in the context of Ind AS 108 on segment repor�ng are
considered to cons�tute single primary business segment.

The chief  opera�onal decision maker monitors the opera�ng results of its business segment separately for the
purpose of making decision about proût or loss in the ûnancial statements, Opera�ng segment have been iden�ûed
on the basis of geographical segment and other quan�ta�ve criteria speciûed in the Ind AS 108.

(i) Segment revenue :

The segment revenue is measured in the same way as in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

2023

Segment Revenue India Outside India Total

 
Total segmental revenue* 78,058.44 67,719.78 145,778.22

*excluding other income

Revenue from outside India Year ended 
As at March 31, 2023

Australia and New Zealand 16,713.41

European Union 10,988.07

U.S.A 25,144.24

U.K. 1,804.05

Others 13,070.01

Total 67,719.78

The Company is domiciled in India.  The amount of its revenue from external customers broken down by loca�on of the customers is 
shown in the table below.

(ii) Segment assets :

Segment assets are measured in the same way as in the financial statements.  These assets are allocated based on the
opera�ons of the segment and the physical loca�on of the asset.

As at March 31, 2023

Segment Assets India Outside India Total

 Carrying amount of segment assets 73,535.85 9,045.11    82,580.96

Addi�ons to non-current assets# 65,48.09    - 6,548.09

Total segment assets   80,083.18 9,045.11    89,129.05

Unallocated: 

Right-of-use assets     -  - 730.88

Deferred tax assets (net)    -   - 1,995.82

Income tax assets (net)   -           - 180.37

Balancesheet Assets 92,036.12

# Addi�ons to non-current assets also includes expenditure incurred on capital work-in-progress.
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As at March 31, 2023

Segment Liabili�es India Outside India Total

 

# Addi�ons to non-current liabili�es also includes external commercial borrowings (ECB).

(iii) Segment liabili�es :

Segment liabili�es are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These liabili�es are allocated based on
the opera�ons of the segment and the physical loca�on of the liability.

Carrying amount of segment liabili�es     16,148.24 6,285.40 22,433.64

Total segment liabili�es     16,148.24 6,285.40 22,433.64

Unallocated: 

Borrowings  -      - 26,800.33

Lease liabili�es - - 774.02

Income Tax Liabili�es (net) - - 3.32

Balancesheet Liabili�es 50,011.01

The Group has formulated employee share-based payment schemes with objec�ve to a�ract and retain talent and align the interest of 
employees with the Group as well as to incen�vize and mo�vate them to contribute to its growth and profitability. At present two share-
based payment schemes are in existence.

1) AYM Employee Stock Op�on (AYMSOP 2018) was approved by shareholders at Extra Ordinary general mee�ng in 2018.

2) AYM Employee Stock Op�on Scheme 2021 (AYM ESOP SCHEME 2021) was approved by the shareholders through postal ballot on
March 05, 2021. Details of these employee share-based schemes are given below:

Persons covered under this scheme include all permanent employees working in India or out of India, whole �me and other directors. 

The schemes however exclude employee outside india who is an employee of a subsidiary, holding or associate of the Group,promoters or 
person belonging to the Promoter group, promoter director, director holding directly or indirectly more than 10% of the outstanding share of 
the Group. 

Op�ons are granted under the plan for no considera�on and carry no dividend or vo�ng rights.  When exercisable, each op�on is conver�ble 
into one equity share. The exercise price of the op�ons shall not be less than face value of equity share and shall not exceed market price of 
the equity share of the Group as on the date of grant of Op�on. 

AYM Employee Stock Op�on (AYMSOP 2018) 

The Grant date is August 13, 2018

NOTE 48:     EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN DISCLOSURE FOR IND AS  

Ves�ng Propor�on Date of ves�ng

10% of the op�ons granted 13-Aug-19

10% of the op�ons granted 13-Aug-20

20% of the op�ons granted 13-Aug-21

20% of the op�ons granted 13-Aug-22

40% of the op�ons granted 13-Aug-23

Opening balance 10 315,600

Granted during the year -                         -

Exercised during the year 10 102,680

Cancelled during the year 10 7,560

Closing balance 205,360

As at March 31, 2023
Average  Number of

exercise price Op�on
per share op�on (`) 

Set out below is a summary of op�ons granted under the plan

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of op�ons exercised during the year ended 31 March 2023 was ̀   86.53 per share. 

Weighted average remaining contractual life of op�ons outstanding at end of period 1.37 years

NOTES 
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Ves�ng Propor�on Date of ves�ng

10% of the op�ons granted 24-Apr-22

10% of the op�ons granted 24-Apr-23

20% of the op�ons granted 24-Apr-24

20% of the op�ons granted 24-Apr-25

40% of the op�ons granted 24-Apr-26

Once vested, the op�on remains excercisable for a period of one year and expire therea�er.

The fair value at grant date of op�ons granted was ̀  43.50

Set out below is a summary of op�ons granted under the plan

No op�on expired during the periods covered in the above tables. 

The fair value at grant date of op�ons granted was  ̀ 4 1.20 

The fair value at grant date is determined using Black Scholes Model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the op�on, the 
share price at grant date and expected price vola�lity of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for 
the term of the op�on. 

The model input for the op�on granted during the year ended March 31, 2023 included: 

a) op�ons are granted for no considera�on and vest upon comple�on of minimum employment of one year from the date of grant.
Ves�ng op�ons will be subject to con�nued employment with the Group. Vested op�ons are exercisable for a period of one year a�er
ves�ng.

b) Exercise price: ` 10 

c) Grant date: August 13, 2018 

d) expiry date: August 13, 2024 

e) Share price at the grant date: ` 41.2 

f) expected price vola�lity of the Group’s shares: 41.22% 

g) expected dividend yield: 0.00% 

h) risk free interest rate: 7.61% 

The expected price vola�lity is based on historic vola�lity (Based on the remaining life of the op�on), adjusted for any expected changes to 
future vola�lity due to publicly available informa�on. 

AYM ESOP SCHEME 2021 Grant -1 

The Grant date is April 24, 2021 

Opening balance 10 600,000

Granted during the year -                         -

Exercised during the year 10 60,000

Cancelled during the year - -

Closing balance - 540,000

As at March 31, 2023
Average  Number of

exercise price Op�on
per share op�on (`) 

No op�on expired during the periods covered in the above table.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of op�ons exercised during the year ended 31 March 2023 was � 133.38 per 

share.

Weighted average remaining contractual life of op�ons outstanding at end of period 3.07 years
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The model input for the op�on granted during the year ended March 31, 2023 included:

a) op�ons are granted for no considera�on and vest upon comple�on of minimum employment of one year from the date of grant.
Ves�ng op�ons will be subject to con�nued employment with the Group. Vested op�ons are exercisable for a period of one year
a�er ves�ng.

b) Exercise price: ` 10   

c) Grant date: April 24, 2021   

d) Expiry date: April 24, 2027   

e) Share price at the grant date: ` 43.50   

f) Expected price vola�lity of the Company’s shares:  64.09%

g) Expected dividend yeild: 0.00%   

h) Risk free interest rate: 4.15%   

The expected price vola�lity is based on historic vola�lity (Based on the remaining life of the op�on), adjusted for any expected 
changes to future vola�lity due to publicly available informa�on.

AYM ESOP SCHEME 2021 Grant -2

The Grant date is January 29, 2022

Ves�ng Propor�on Date of ves�ng

10% of the op�ons granted 29-Jan-23

10% of the op�ons granted 29-Jan-24

10% of the op�ons granted 28-Jan-25

15% of the op�ons granted 28-Jan-26

15% of the op�ons granted 28-Jan-27

40% of the op�ons granted 28-Jan-28

Set out below is a summary of op�ons granted under the plan

Opening balance 10 390,000

Granted during the year -                         -

Exercised during the year 10 37,000

Cancelled during the year 10 20,000

Closing balance - 333,000

As at March 31, 2023
Average  Number of

exercise price Op�on
per share op�on (`) 

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of op�ons exercised during the year ended 31 March 2023 was � 62.17 per share.

Weighted average remaining contractual life of op�ons outstanding at end of period 3.56 years

No op�on expired during the periods covered in the above table.

The fair value at grant date is determined using Black Scholes Model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the op�on, the 
share price at grant date and expected price vola�lity of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for 
the term of the op�on. 

The model input for the op�on granted during the year ended March 31, 2023 included: 

a) op�ons are granted for no considera�on and vest upon comple�on of minimum employment of one year from the date of grant.
Ves�ng op�ons will be subject to con�nued employment with the Group. Vested op�ons are exercisable for a period of one year a�er
ves�ng.

b) Exercise price: ` 10 

c) Grant date: January 29, 2022 

d) Expiry date: January 27, 2029 

e) Share price at the grant date: `  136.95 

f) Expected price vola�lity of the Group’s shares: 53.48% 

g) Expected dividend yield: 0.00% 

h) Risk free interest rate: 4.45% 

The expected price vola�lity is based on historic vola�lity (Based on the remaining life of the op�on), adjusted for any expected changes to 
future vola�lity due to publicly available informa�on. 
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Expenses arising from share-based payment transac�ons 

Total expenses arising from share based payment transac�ons recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expenses were as 
follow:

31-Mar-23

Employee-share based expense 216.38

NOTE 50:     ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY SCHEDULE III IN RESPECT OF SUBSIDIARY 

Name of the En�ty Net assets (total assets minus  Share of profit or (loss)   Share in other comprehensive Share in total comprehensive  
total liabili�es) income income 

As % of  Amount  As % of  Amount  As % of  Amount  As % of  Amount 
consolidated  (`in lakhs) consolidated  (` in lakhs) consolidated  (`  in lakhs) consolidated  (` in lakhs)

net assets profit or loss other  total  
comprehensive comprehensive  

income income 

Parent 

AYM Syntex Private Limited 

March 31, 2023 100.00%          42,025.35  100.00% 716.74  100.00%             74.92  100.00% 791.66 

Subsidiary 

AYM Tex�les Private Limited 

March 31, 2023 0.00% 0.46  -0.08% (0.54) 0.00% -    0.00% -   

March 31, 2023 (Total) 100.00%          42,024.81  100.00% 716.20  100.00%             74.92  100.00% 791.12 
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 Note 49: Other regulatory informa�on required by Schedule III  

 (i) No proceedings have been ini�ated on or are pending against the Group as at March 31, 2023 for holding benami property
under the Benami Transac�ons (Prohibi�ons) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

 (ii) The Group has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns filed by the Group with
banks are in agreement with the books of accounts.

 (iii) The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial ins�tu�on or government or any government
authority.

 (iv) The Group has no transac�ons with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

 (v) 1. The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es 
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Group (Ul�mate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ul�mate beneficiaries

2. The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es (Funding Party) with
the understanding (whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise) that the group shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (Ul�mate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ul�mate beneficiaries

 (vi) There is no income surrendered or transac�on disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

 (vii) There are no charges or sa�sfac�on which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory
period.

 (viii) The borrowings obtained by the Group from banks have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were was taken.



NOTE 51:     EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Signatures to Notes to Financial Statements

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
Firm Registra�on No: 012754N/ N500016

Pankaj Khandelia Rajesh Mandawewala   Abhishek Mandawewala  
Partner Chairman   CEO and Managing Director 
Membership No. 102022 DIN 00007179   DIN 00737785 

Place:  Mumbai Himanshu Dhaddha   Ashitosh Sheth 
Date: May 05, 2023 Chief Financial Officer   Company Secretary  

NOTES 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

No adjustments on account of events occuring a�er the repor�ng date have been iden�fied to the figures reported.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REACH US

Rajesh Mandawewala

Atul Desai
Lead Independent Director

KH Viswanathan
Independent Director

Mohan Tandon
Independent Director

Abhishek R. Mandawewala
Managing Director & CEO

Khushboo Mandawewala

Abhishek R. Mandawewala
Managing Director & CEO

Khushboo Mandawewala

Himanshu Dhaddha

Ashitosh Sheth
Company Secretary

Bank of Baroda
Central Bank of India
Bank of India 
HDFC Bank
IDBI Bank Limited
Indian Bank
Karur Vysya Bank

Shinhan Bank
State Bank of India

Price Waterhouse Chartered
Accountants LLP

Registrar and Transfer Agents

C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg,
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai – 400 083

Trade World, B/9
Kamala Mills Compound
Lower Parel (W) 
Mumbai- 400 013

Survey No. 374/1/1, Village Saily,
Silvassa, U.T. of Dadra and Nagar Haveli,
396230, India

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

BANKERS

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Silvassa
U.T. of Dadra & Nagar Haveli

Naroli
U.T. of Dadra & Nagar Haveli

Palghar
Maharashtra
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